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-lIntroduction

The Judgment of NOSENKO s bona fldes entalled the

" distillation ‘of the" ‘huge volume of counterintelligence
information assembled in connection with his case, . includlng
- the product of.'his lengthy dinterrogations, the analysis of .

. KGB_ operations’ which he related, the results of file checks
of " thousands ‘of individuals" involved comparison of hlS
assertions’ agalpst ‘collateral 1nformatlon from all sources
and with- counterlntelllgence records on - the KGB and related
matters. . The- examination herein reéduces this volume of
materlalvto manageable proportlons, to essential. elements

:of NOSENKO .8 claims, .in order to permit comparison of his
Astatements with matters:of known fact and to permit’ appll—
cation' of: reasonable Judgment.u Conclusions are drawn from
.the ‘examination of each major period- in his claimed ' R T
biography. . .The final. conclu51ons represent the aggregate ;-' .
of: conc1u51ons 1ndependently drawn from the examination of "

each major- period in. his clalmed blography.-j S o
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- Summarz of Case

‘?. ; ;_TheﬁN0SENKO.caseQOpenednon'S»Juﬁe 1962‘in the corridors

 'dffthe“Pa1aisldes Nations in

ﬂ‘UDiSarmameht'Conferénéé. .AQSoviet'official'approached'an' :
_‘American diplomat with the suggestion that they get together
- for a’'talk the following day. Theﬁdiplomat advised'CIA,of -
;?therappointmEnt,'explainiﬁg that he thought the approach so

- 5 ved the Sov ._to'be”Yuriy‘IvanoyichWNOSENKQ,
xﬁ:?§fmember¥0f,the?sovfet'DiSanmament'Delegation.”“ S

f;ﬁﬁj'Latef"meeting with the American &iplOmat,‘the§Soviet}.
?“;uOfficialfidentified'himselfsas-NOSENKO:aﬁd~st ed
- KGB'cbunterintelligenée officer sent .to Genev
“ i security of the Soviet delégatioﬁ.:'Ha’knew that the American
“had previously served in Moscow and erronedusly belieVed,that '
~he was the "American Rezident" in Geneva. " 'NOSENKO stated.
“that he needed apprbximately‘900‘Swissvfrancs*imﬁediatély"to,-
‘ﬂ”covér,KGB‘opgratibnal'fUnds'which_he‘had»quandered‘pnv;::' A
7. liquor and a’prostitute5infGeneva,,'He:offered for' this amount
“ ][td'Sel1wao itemS:oflihformation-té Américan:Intelligenée.
' “These were the identity of a former
Auf}inﬁnos¢0w3thTwasEa”KGB¢égent“”ﬁeaf‘ci
" area, and'the'identi;yfbfvadeviet:in Moscow who, although = -
~ostensibly a CIA agent, was actually controlled by. the. KGB. .
fInvrePly;fthejAmeritangéxplained that he was not an intelli-"
gence officer;vbuththat;Hefpouldvaacé,NOSENKO in_ contact
T“withnan“appropriate,U,$; offigial infGeQeva laterfthatpsame.

a to ensure ‘the:-

7"fiﬂat,eveh£hg’NOSENk0‘wag”ﬁet'bY°é'ciAfoffiéer'aﬁd'a.three-.
hour‘meeting.follOWed»at'a,CIA safehouse in_Genevaal Describing
- himself ‘as a KGB major experienced in operations dgainst. the:
- American Embassy in Moscow and against -tourists and other - .
-travellers to the Soviet Union, NOSENKO . told the CIA officer -
~.of 'his financial difficulties and repeated his offer to sell"
o 600127
TS No. 197124

Geneva during the United Nations .

offer of cooperation or defection, .
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(Summary of Case)

the two items of information. He said that the neced for money
was his immediate motive for contazting Cla, altheupgh 1n the
ensuing discussion he also expressed dissatisfastion with the
Communist regime in the Soviet Union.

NOSENKO met CIA° representarives four more tlmes in Geneva
in June 1962. With the second meeting on 1l June, his eavlier
expressed reservations disappeared almost entirely. He
answered most questions put to him on KGB organization and
operations. His knowledgeability was almosct exciusively
jimited to the KGB Second Chief Directorate (responsible for
counterintelligence and security within the USSR). NOSENKO
seemed to be what he claimed to be: a KGB officer in a
sensitive position with knowledge of important KGB operatious.

NOSENKO returned to Moscow on 15 June, having promised
to do everything within certain limits to collect information
on matters indicated to be of interest to CIA. The only
restrictions he placed on his cooperation were his absolute
refusal to permit operational contact with him inside the
USSR and his request that mno mention of his coilaboration be
communicated to the American Embassy in Moscow. He promised
to notify CIA via an accommodation address when he came to
the West again. ; = ‘
NOSENKO again accompanied the Soviet delegation to the
Disarmament Conference in Geneva in January 1964. Since last
meeting with CIA he had been promoted to the rank of lieu-
tenant colonel and had become the Deputy Chief of the largest
department in the Second Chief Directorate. At the first
of the new series of meetings on 23 January he announced
that he had decided to defect to the United States. He
cited as reasons his continuing dissatisfaction with the
Soviet regime and the fact that he.probably would have no
further opportunities to travel to the West in the foresee-
able future. Although he implied that he wanted to defect
as soon as possible, he agreed to remain in place in Geneva
while arrangements for his reception were being made in
Washington. NOSENKO had brought a large amount of new
information, much of it in scribbled notes, on KGB opera-
tional activity which he had collected in the 18 months
since his last meeting with CIA.

=

'~ 000127'é TS No. 197124
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(Summarj of Césé)

S On4 February, four days
J‘Séleéted_for»NOSENKO’S‘defec
received a cable from KGB He
ﬂreturngtoﬁMoscowatp‘particip
'7f0reign:touriSm to the Sovie

before the date tentatively
tion, he'reported~thatvheyhad. ,
adquarters ordering his immediate
ate in a KGB conference'on';_ R
t. Union.  -That night exfiltfatidn,.
was driven across the '
‘ ing was resumed in a
The decision;wgsareached;oﬁ Il*Eebruary
e United States, and in the early.:. -~ "
vhe*and-his;CIA‘escorts arrived im =

s> thence to.a safehouse

‘offices of the U.S.
He told bothfthap

xCiAfécﬁﬁléfédlitéj

- . initiai
18}E¢b;uary,-and,bn 2

udebriefings”of‘NOSENKO?oﬁ«f"'
4 February he was introduced to. -
he FBI for questioning. At about the -
a8 marked change in NOSENKO' . -
Y cooperative during most g
s increasingly difficult to get him to .
aspohd*to'specific_quéstioning;:-His free time in Washington
~and nearby cities was Punctuated by drinking bouts, crude: S
‘behavior, and disputes with.his,security_escort.h'He”explained.V-‘~ ;
-his behavior by saying that he‘whs“under~great'tensidn.&sﬁ P
.a reSulpﬁofwhis'defection,'abgndbnment 6f hisﬂwife,and]h}-,ﬁ‘*
?childreh;{andﬂthé:disgracé“that,he had brought to his family "
,name;uandpon»thistbaéis CIA acceded to NOSENKO's deémand for
‘a vacation.  On 12 March, NOSENKO left Washington with a
'“;CIAiqaseiofficeffand two CIA security guards for;é'two;weekv
_7jvisitgtofHawaii{a Therefhiéﬁbeha&iqr-deteribfiated s:il1ﬂ“
'iﬂfufther.'QHe drank heayily-and*almostjchstantlyf he S
cdnsorted with a: number of Prostitutes; he was loud and crude
,Lin'publicfplaces; and he spent money extravagantly and
'7_:cbnspicuously,« R U sl

00127
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(Summary of Case)

During NOSENKO's absence from Washington, consultations
were held with the FBI regarding steps to be taken to restricr
his movements and activities. This Agency was concerned

~that his behavior would attract undesirable atrention and

publicicy, perhaps police arrest, and that doubts about his
bona fides, which were becoming known to a widening group

in the U.S. Government, might be inadvertently revealed to
NOSENKO himself. The FBI on 1 April indicated it would

"not interpose objectrion" to the CIA plan to limit NOSENKO's

.fireedom of movement, and the Acting Attorney General, the

Department of State, and the White House were advised.

On 4 April NOSENKO was driven to a new safehouse in a

Washington suburb, and told that this safehouse thenceforward

would be his regular place of residence. Since that time’

NOSENKO has had contacts with CIA personnel only, has been

under full-time guard, and has not been permitted access to
news media. : o

Intensive interrogation of NOSENKO, including a polygraphic
examination, was begun on 4 April 1964 in order to obtain

‘information which he had been reluctant to divulge earlier,

and to clarify contradictions in what he had already reported.
The polygraph exgmination results were inconclusive. This
phase of the interrogations was terminated on 24 April 1964.

Despite the searching nature of the questions and the
implicitly and explicitly expressed doubts of his veracity,
NOSENKO asserted that he was willing to answer, or to try to
answer all questions put to him. Because more information
pertinent to the question of his bona fides was needed, a
new series of interrogations was begun in mid-May 1964,

" Different interrogators were introduced and questioning was
‘resumed in a neutral, non~hostile manner. The period of
mneutral questioning continued until mid-November 1964.

After further consultations with the FBI, a round of
hostile interrogations began on 26 January 1965. Between
then and 5 March, NOSENKO was questioned for a total of
about 140 hours by individual interrogators and interrogation
teams, and he was directly challenged on many of his previous
assertions. He admitted that certain of his earlier statements
had been incorrect, and that he could not explain contradictions

6001278 . TS No. 197124
Top Secret Copy
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- in hi$ té§tim0ny;"Néverthelesé;“NOSENKOVmaintaihed’ﬁé

had

"been basically truthfgl, and that'he~had_come'to»thé7Unipedﬂ 

States sdlely{for'thé‘reasbﬁs’he had originally given.

[

Ihesg}interrbgatiohsﬁWere'suspended on SMMérch 1965 .-

ngétiohinéuoTvNOSENKO;&uring&fhe'summer5andlautﬁmn'

of:ff-f

‘ 19645andA;he,;nterrqgapipng-Qf January and.Eebruaer1965’ﬂ.jk"
~ concentrated on the period of his claimed service in the =~

American .Embassy Section of the American Department,; KGB ..

. Second Chief Directorate, from Janharyvl960>to”January
Among the reasons for selecting this particular period

.the comparatively large amount of collateral informarion :

19625,
were . :.

available against which NOSENKO's statements.could be cheékéé;f’
“the importance of the Embassy and its personnel as critical. .

.. KGB SecondUChiefEDiréctoratewtargets;.their»importancg

' the standpoint of ‘American security; and the extent of

" NOSENKO's claimed knowledge of the activities of“théAEﬁbasgy

. Sectiop;;Q£jwhich_he claimed to. have been Deputy-Chief

from. .-

';In kee§ingfwith a Soviet practice with~wﬁi¢h;NOSENK0"ﬁa$;5

f fémiliar;vCIA}askéd NOSENKO in February .1965 to sign ‘a

series.”

of interrogation reports,'sb—éalled_"protocols";Zmostfof‘:

- which cdncerned. the period.of his claimed service in the -
".American DepaftmentoprheséAwere written. by the CIA interro-
" gators, and they:were designed to, set forth NOSENKO's exact:

'stg:ementsiand'meaning«on*variousJépeCific subjects. . The .=

f~pfot¢colé were in no;way”presented‘;o.NQSENKO’as;doqumentéry>kff¥
" portions of a.'"confession", but rather as distilled and final . -

"ﬁStatemenﬁsﬂoffwhat.he-did,and did ﬁot_knowwconcerninga

l;ﬁarticular‘topics@g NOSENKO -was asked to read each page.of’
. each protocol carefully and to- sign his name at the bottom:.
.- to “indicate that he understood and agreed with its contents;
“he was allowed the use: of a dictionary. and was permitted to

askfany;questions}and mékéiany'changes that he wished.
“(Améndments were entered by the interrogators and were

-“ini;ialed»by NOSENKO.) NOSENKO 'was asked, after reading}~

each page and after completing the.entire protocol, whether -’

‘5hé‘understoodiwhat‘w353Written there and whether there
any more changes'he.wished,to-make,TgHe~was then asked

_were- .
to Sy

sign and date the statement, "I have read and understood v .

"this report and certify it as correct", 'at the ‘end of

the

}'ﬂfinalfpage;-'With one exception, he ‘did .so calmly'apdfwithoﬁt5
-..objections. ‘In one or two instances he remarked that his

statements were presented in such a manner as to make

B .74“
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"Anything I have signed is absolutely correct. I absolutely

understand what I anm doing when I ap signing any paper,
This is an officidl document, and I fully undersctand what
I'm doing when 1 sign it as being absolutely correct .

Further questioning was conducted from 26 July until
14 August 1965 with the participation of Pets DERYABIN, a
former KGB ocfficer. These interrogations, held in Russian,
were for the purpose of using DERYABIN's KGB experience to
obtain a clearer understanding of NOSENKO's claimed personal
and professional background.

topics ranging from his identity to his involvement in and
knowledge of specific KGB operations. Questioning was in
both Russian and English. Although the interrogations
identified topics and time periods in NOSENKO's accounts
which contained the greatest number of contradictions and
discrepancies, neither the contradictions nor the discrep~
ancies could be resolved, -

Becanée of the incidence of deranged persons CIA has

. éncountered among would-be defectors, the question of

NOSENKO's mental stability was a matter considered early
after his defection in Geneva. From his arrival in the.
United States in 1964 NOSENKO has been under psychiatric
observation. A CIA pPsychiatrist and a CIA psychologist,

monitored many of NOSENKO's interrogations. 1In May 1965

the psychologist for three weeks questioned NOSENKO on his
life from birth until 1953, when NOSENKO claimed he joined

the KGB, in an attempt to identify psychological factors

which might underlie NOSENKO's contradictory and inconsistent
accounts. The psychiatrist has continued his periodic
observations of NOSENKO to the Present time. The psychiatrist
and the psychologist concluded independently, on the basis

of their observations, that NOSENKO was mentally stable,
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o NOSENKO has not been interrogated since October 1966
%+ . The" perlod since has. been devoted 'to the examination and
¢ . .review of the accumulated’ 1nterrogat10n ‘notes,- transcrlpts:
~and other materlals, and in the preparation of the presentm
'paper. L : :
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CHAPTER I

FOUNDATIONS OF NOSENKO'S CLAIMS

Evidence of NOSENKO's bona fides is comprised of his own
statements, the corroborating statements of Soviet officials,
and the counterintelligence informationm he has provided.

NOSENKO's Statements About Himself

In his meetings in 1962 and 1964 with CIA abroad and in
~the course of the interrogations since, NOSENKO has' made
numerous statements about himself. More than any other,
however, a statement written in July 1964 (after the initial
" hostile interrogation was concluded) is a thoughtful and
well-expressed exposition of how he wished CIA to regard
him. It is quoted here in its entirety.

My life, my childhood and youth passed in very
comfortable circumstances since the position of
my father gave us the opportunity to live without
lacking for anything. And the only difficult
periods of my life before the death of my father
were at the naval schools attended in Kuybyshev,
Baku and Leningrad, and at the beginning of my
working life, when I was in the Far East in 1950-
1952. The opportunity. to be alwvays well-dressed,
to have a sufficient amount of money, to have my
own car, to be able to use the car given me by my
family and also my father's car, the opportunity
to travel to the South and to vacation . -in the best
sanitariums, dachas, and so forth; all this
unquestionably T€FTt its mark on me and became
something of a habit. After the death of my father,
my successful progress in my work gave me a higher
salary, and although I did not have all that which
I had while my father was alive, still I did not
experience any serious difficulties. But already
I wanted to live still better. ’

6001282
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(FOUNDATIONS OF NOSENKO'S CLAIMS) .

_ 'Up to 1953,.over the course of my entire life--at
ﬁfschool “in the Instltute,_at work, “at home in the
-famllym—lt was always pounded into my head that’ o
'Stalin was a great genlus, that he was good keen,.rf~
fetco, and the thought never occurred:to me to . RN
"question his words or his deeds because everything" SRR
“that he said, .and everything he did, were completely.
axiomatic." The arrests)and trials only involved ‘
‘traitors and it was con51dered -and explained that
“the. betrayor of the people was’ Yezh@w the head of .
.. .the NKVD.  Not even the“shadow of ‘doubt fell on . the
. name-of Stalin. ' Soon after Stalin's death- in 1953~
1 read a certain document glven me by my. fathercg
.This was ‘a.secret letter of the Central Committee’
of the CPSU on-the 'case of the doctors;'.it was
" not. addressed to.all communists but only to members;\
and candidate members of the Central Committee. -
- . :.l was - deeply shaken by. this letter which described
R Codine deta11 how these: ‘people, ‘important. speciallsts
in the field of medicine, were brought to such. a SR
'condition that they condemned" ‘themselves; that is,_ Co e T
"~ they - confessed £ thlngs ‘which“had never happened o
}“fto things. which they had never’ done. They were. i
_+ simply forced to give.the evidence which was neededf,
by ‘the- 1nvest1gators.; ‘The secret letters on the
- “cult of Stalln and 'much” that I‘ heard in the KGB*
vfabout the 'reign of" Stalln, all this' left "its mark
“and ‘forced me to think deeply about . ‘the’ real truth
and to. look at everything more-. critically. I-no .- ‘"0
~ ° longer had faith ‘in-all-‘those” 1deas which for yearsﬁ”
'-fhad been pressed 1nto my head* : : ‘. Lo

_ The ‘new leaders (Khrushchev and- Company) used the
same ;methoéds. but already diluted w1th the water of -7 .
democracy, with playing up to the people and attempts;
"to. convince ‘them that a new era would arise, a new.

. .and better life, and ‘that now the’ Party was always
‘going to:conce¥n itself w1th the welfare of the -~
’_people,, In fact, it was a.- struggle for . power’ and .
the use of all means in this struggle, even mlcro-7*
.phones.’ (they listened to the conversations of’ L
.'Berlya and his friends; later they listened to the

- conversations of Molotov, Malenkov, Kaganovich, -and -
others)..- Khrushchev s endless blabblng about 3

| '.',"lf2’ o
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successes, when in fact they didn't exist, the
figures about how the USSR had passed the USA in
the production of butter and milk, when in the
stores they were available only infrequently. The
endless promises of a better life when in fact
nothing of ithe sort is taking place. All this
'similarly forced me to re-evaluate not only the
events which were taking place in the country, but
already the entire ideology of the Party, its
external and internal course.

The events in Novocherkassk where 20,000 to
25,000 people rose up and the way in which this
popular indignation was suppressed by troops with
many casualties. This also made a deep impression
on me. When I was resting in the summer of 1961
in Nikolayev, from my relatives--my father's
'1 . brothers--I understood well the real relation of

the workers both to the leadership and to the .
Party as a whole. At the same time I saw how the
workers really lived, how they eat, what they have
and what they can buy with their wages.

I heard a great deal from my father about the
domestic policies of Khrushchev in regard to the
development and the course of construction in
industry, about his complete illiteracy in
engineering technology and industrial economics,
about incorrect decisions in regard to many
industries, and this was not only the opinion of

-my father, but also of other important leaders in
various fields of industry. But no one dared to
open his mouth and when in December 1955 my father
tried, as an engineer, to prove that a certain
decision would be incorrect, he received such a
rebuff from Khrushchev that he was profoundly
shaken and in the opinion of my mother this brought
‘him to his illness and death in August 1956.

The events in Germany and especially in Hungary
showed with absolute clarity the bankruptcy of
communist ideology. What was especially important
for me was the fact that in these countries it was a
protest not of individuals or groups, but of the

13 (001204
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A,;entire people who | could no longer endure a: regime~i$e;f--7'”
W‘1mposed on them by: force.; Here it is necessary to.
" emphasize that the life -of the’ people in these. e
. countries was much better than that of the: people'~'
- in. the USSR.(I: saw-  for myself ‘how. people live in i
:¢Czechoslovakia, in Germany,'and beyond any doubt = - %
- ..they live’ better than the entire people of the'“v~"
T Sov1et Union) e . - S S -

) ,j The spllt of the 1nternat10na1 Communlst move-
-ment became for meé a clear fact: and confirmed: my
. opinion’that the. theory of Communism is .a theory
“built on sand and that it is practiced. accordlng to

'the needs- of the leadership.of the Party at a given
,fstage of. - ‘life and: that in reality full ‘material. :

- welfare ‘would mever be enjoyed by the people but
only by the leadershlp and the Party and the R
-’:;'-governmentc " Cn

S Working in the KGB I came to. understand much andﬁﬁvf
" became conscious‘of the contradiction: between the'm
;- iowinternal’ and external course of the USSR. - - Such . -
93 “._ﬁw{quuestions as’ disarmament, the ban of atomic weapons,
“wss 0 v thes position. of the USSR in- the. United: Nations=-all®’
... these are.used. only in the ‘interest of. propaganda -
" rand as a-screen for carrying ‘out of - the policies.
. needed by .the communist. party:-’ (1 was myself
/present” ‘at 'the negotiations in Geneva and - saw'the
- ‘*of the Sov1et delegation )=~-*» :

Q’My trlpS abroad opened my eyes w1de ‘to: the true
_realltyof 'With my -own eyes, I saw how" people live,:
‘how much: they ‘earn, how 'they can dress. énd -live on.
. their wages, and 1. paid: special attention to ‘the - oo
1ife of . ordinary people and not . to that of scientists,‘~wﬁ
gengineers, ‘etc.  "And.all” ‘the propaganda -about: the“" s
_ffenormous armies of unemployed in the countries of.
“the West,.about the 'heavy exploitation , and the,ﬁ
‘unbelievably: difflcult life' was immediately
dispelled. - And what I met 1n _my own work, how _ .
which. Sov1et 01tlzens get sent where abroad-—thls.'j‘
'flnally ‘debunked this propaganda. - Many of my KGB .
- acquaintances- think back w1th great pleasure about
Hlife,abroad.f" : : -

14
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I entered the Komsomol completely without thinking
about it. The time came, the right age, and I
became a Komsomol member like all the others. It
was different in regards to the Party: I joined
the Party in- 1956 after the death of Stalin and
while I was working in the KGB and already at that
time there was a lack of faith and indecisiveness
in me. My father continually insisted on this,
saying that without the Party I would never move
ahead and would not have success in life. . But I
myself understood and saw that I would not be able
to work in the KGB unless I was a member of the
Party. And if I worked somewhere else, I would
truly never move ahead in my career unless I entered
S the Party. But from the very beginning of my entry
i I into the Party, I deeply hated all the Party talmudism
§f and dogmatism. All the Party meetings were literally
a torture. Especially when I became the Deputy
Chief and then Chief of a section, and then Deputy
Chief of a department, because then I had to speak
_at these meetings. Because this meant to lie, .to
twist my soul, and to attempt to show myself as
deeply dedlcated to the Party and its course.

o et

b

In 1960 my oldest girl's asthmatic attacks became
worse. The question of a change of climate was
raised. At that time the Second Chief Directorate

" needed to send an officer to Ethiopia for two to

. three years to conduct counterintelligence work
among the Soviet specialists there. It cost me a
great deal of effort to persomnally talk Second Chief
Directorate Chief General GRIBANOV into letting me -
go. The Party and work references had been confirmed,
all the questionnaires were already filled out, the
photos had been submitted; that is, all the formal~
ities had been accomplished. But at the very last -
moment the Central Personnel Office of the KGB began
to protest against my going with my family to
Ethiopia. The reason for this was that from the
house check made at my place of residence they
received information that I sometimes came home in
a drunken condition and on this ground had quarrels
with my wife. A tour abroad with my family was
necessary because of the health of my daughter

15 6001286
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':(31nce 1963 the 111ness has become better) and also.
it would: have been advantageous from the financ1al

. point of view. ‘From this time on I unde¥stood that .

“Personnel would not 1et me go abroad w1th my famlly.

Know1ng many officers 1n the First (Foreign .
_AIntelligence) Chief Dlrectorate, I began to under-
- stand that being" sent abroad is entirely’ ‘determined,
_”fnot by knowledge, experlence in:work -and success, .
.. but only by the absolute' cleanliness' of ‘the
7“5person s autobicgraphy and: complete assurance as’ to
© his llmltless dedication to the Party and the - s
"government. . But- not only belng 'sent ‘abroad but. t:he-"_"~
‘j“_assignment of personnel in the First ‘and Second .
" Chief Directorates and the entire KGB depends on"f"’ .
. "theé Treasons 1ndicated by me. and also . on good relations
with the Leadershlp and’ good connectlons w1th workers
in Central Personnel.<. / : S -

i

- I 11ved about 11 years w1th my w1fe and our 11fe

was not- a hell.~ It is trde that there were quarrels .

- and ba51ca11y they ‘boiled down to the fact- that shef?'_ '
" “took an -extremely unfavorable attitude towards my = . " g

idelays at’ work and also:.when I would be delayed W1th;

. some of my- friends and ‘acquaintances after work and - -

- 'would come home. with a few drinks’ under my belt. Of

" course, I _loved- and love. my children and - only the}“j“"

- fact that they are taken care’ "of financially until’: )
“they grow up: and ‘have received an education to somej{y'
" extent consoled me in taking the decision to leave

.. the USSR.  What do I have in‘mind when I. ‘speak of ST
~ financial. secur1ty7' ‘After the death of my father,l'“ifuh
S the famlly received a large ‘monetary allowance;’ plus .7
“the money that my. mother had saved and valuable - o
,r]pr0perty,'etc°. My mother many times offered to _
-divide all this .in. three parts: for me, my brother, .

and for her, but. I suggested that we mot do this -

- before her death.” And, of course, my mother w1ll

not leave my children w1thout attention, and my

share of the property and the money w1ll be glven tO"

S my chlldren.,j; : . » . S
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= If the defections of [former KGB officers] PETROV,
RASTVOROV and DERYABIN passed without evoking any
particular thoughts, the defection to the United
States of GOLITSYN, whom I had heard of as an -
intelligent person and a capable officer, undoubtedly
caused me to think very deeply. Because to act thus,
it is necessary to have not only boldness and
decisiveness, but also great strength of will. And
already I put to myself the question, will I be able
to act thus in view of the dissatisfactions and
disillusionments which had accumulated inside of me?

0 S N

Being in Geneva in 1962, not long before my
“departure I myself of my own desire entered into

contact with you. The reason for this was the loss
of money received by me for operational expenses.
I would have been unable to accumulate such a sum
of money before my departure and there was nobody
to borrow from. To tell the truth about the loss
of the money would have meant that it would be
necessary to explain where and in what circumstances
it had been lost. This would have risked expulsion
from the KGB and a serious reprimand from the Party.
Not to tell .the truth, to think up some sort of a

story-—they wouldn't believe, and worst of all, they
might think that I had appropriated the money, that’
is, stolen it. And this would be for me the worst
of all and I would, of course, in such event have
told the truth. :

o R

To tell the truth, it was only after my return
home from Geneva in 1962 that I gradually, not
immediately, began full to realize all the seriousmness
of my contact with you and its full meaning. And
although I did not give, you any promises or assurances
about ocur continued contact in the future, I under-
stood that you sooner or later would set yourself
the task of continuing our contact. And here it was
that weighing up all the reasons and causes which I
have indicated above that in 1962 I took for myself
‘the decision to leave the USSR at the first opportunity
.and that I started to work towards being sent on a
trip abroad.

:
B o sageerns’l | R
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f Of1coufse;jI*wénﬁed;EO-COme‘abroadeithfsdmeisdit“

”off?baggage','thatﬂis,_with'matérials which could: -
. be.useful and necessary for you. In this entire. S
’ PEri0dvUPwtonJanuarYil964 T tried to collect: infor~ " .

.- mation:which would be of the maximum value for you. @7

. My assignment to the position of Deputy Chief of the '

"Seventh*Departmentvin:Julyﬂ1962 gave me a- greater - : -

. opportunity than before: ' But at the same time  this -

- assignment almost excluded the pOSSibiIity'ofjé‘trip“%f,' S
B abroadﬂand,it,wéSOonly with*great'difficpltyﬁthat‘lfug*_‘,} )
' was able toﬂget”awayﬂforfthe:trip'in-January;l964{,’f 5[' : o

It,was~neCessafy«tb'conVince’my?supericr CHELNOKOV . s

- and..then to astCHELNOKOV“to,qonvince#bthefs,ﬂ In - - 0.0
© - this I advanced many reasons:. that I-had not ‘spent: -

s all thevmoneyg(1n~foreignncurrency); that the = . - 5 0o
",;médicing which I bought for my daughter had proven’ ke
.- .very successful and that-I heeded ‘to buy some.more - i’

.-.medicine to carry outfone~more-3eriesfof’t:eatments}ﬁf”

”chatzthiSQtriPWWOuldfnot“be'é long one and that since’ .

I was already the Deputy Chief of the Department. I. .77 "
'wouid'not;bejable-toxtravel'abroad any:more and so, . .

‘ wthérefore;fthisft:ipiwpuld'probébly be-my last'.: Of =7
:gCQgrse;Qa11 :hisvWasmsﬁid7at;convenieht~mqmentSTandfy'
outside of4Work;ffThihgsgweteféaSieerith“the~¢”g*ﬂ.f

"Eleventh Depa:tmént»(whith{deals*with'trips abroad)
' because I was on good perms*withfthéfKGBfoffiéérn  

fjwhbicpvered'SwitZerland”jbesidesfwhichfwhenfiﬁcame] o

'“bacszroh'Genevauin.1962*15had brought him a number . -

j;?fﬂIhe.publiCatiOnﬂ;nf1963&ijthe,fbreign;préSSRQEQ
J;the”VASSALLVcase-put.me10n>my”guéfd since in the: . S
; newspaper Timesyit‘said~dhtrightfthat;the English™ "o o0 L
. . learned abcut‘himfthank§uéoAthe‘Americans who ~“=iio o T
‘_'1eafned,abou;‘vASSALL'inﬁ:he:SPring_of 1962, -0 U
"Fortunately, .the leadership of the First Chief: = . =
Directorate, as.'I. learned from my colleagues,*camef'

7 to’ the conclusion that here the Americans had been . '
~~ helped by ‘GOLITSYN.. “But at.the. same time the -
. First Chief Directorate -was not completely sure of "
- this. But the publication in the American press of
.. Alsop's articles on the CIA alarmed me extremely.
'This article in one spot said plainly that as far
as:is known the KGB ‘does not have any sources in the

SN L e enn
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CIA while at the same time the CIA has penetrated the
KGB. From this moment, I do not conceal this fact,

I began to feel afraid that the KGB would somehow
learn of my contact with you. This article. deeply
'interested' the KGB.

During ‘the closed trial of PENKOVSKIY I got a
pass from the Second Department and went, in order
to look at him myself. For sometimes it is enough
to simply look at a man, to see how he holds himself
and to hear how he speaks in order to form some sort
of an initial opinion of him. Personally, I liked
how PENKOVSKIY held himself at the trial; I liked
his appearance and I understood that everything
which had been said in the KGB about him and the
sort of person they were trying to make him out to
be (that he was morally degraded, that he had
descended and sunk into a swamp) that all this was
nonsense, bluff, and chatter. And PENKOVSKIY, the
‘"same as GOLITSYN, gave me a feeling of greater
confidence in the correctmness of the decision taken
by me to leave the Soviet Union. '

26 July. 1964
. R &

‘Signed: Yu. NOSENKO -
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.Séviéf”Officiéis'ithﬁéméntéiAbSdt NOSENKO . ©

The portrait of NOSENKO whlch emerges from Sov1et ;”Pw'f
'sofficials ‘statements about him since his - defection coin=. o
'cides markedly with NOSENKO's self-description.. According"
,fro the comments of Soviet officials,'principally intelldi--
- .gence officers most likely to be speaking- authoritatlvely,
Ejdefector ‘NOSENKO" ‘was' the son of the deceased Minister,'he
- . served: over a decade in the KGB, his pPersonal shortcomings '’ -
o.owere overcome through the patronage of KGB General GRIBANOV
,gand in connection w1th operations ‘against’ Amerlcans he S
" occupled positions of .progressively greater trust and
»_'lresponsibility, ultlmately becoming ‘Deputy Chief .of the
" largest department in ‘the key Second (Counterintelligence)
© .Chief Directorate.: ‘According. ‘to. these sources, his, defection
- wrought severe- damage'"for years to '¢ome" 'to .the KGB SR
" because of his . knowledge of KGB.operations. against- American:
" targets, and his treachery prompted the expulsion and -
disgrace of numerous senior KGB- personnel ‘the recall” of“

many: othetrs from abroad . the virtual suspension of KGB s
. operations in . the United States, and extraordinary plans tot
‘“jassassinate him.** e ' - - o

f;fooeiégirf;ﬁ
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The Product of NOSENKO's Debriefing
A

Positive Intellipence Information

At his first meeting with CIA in 1962 NOSENKO asserted
that he was acquainted with Ministers of the Soviet Govern-
ment, who were friends of his father, and he heard what
was said in their circles. His debriefing and interroga-
tions did not bear out his assertion that he was inforped
of the attitudes and aims of the Soviet leaders. His
responses to questions about the viability of the then
Soviet Government, for example, were couched in vague and
general terms and did not reflect any specific knowledge.
From his debriefing it emerged that NOSENKO had spent his
entire adult life either as a student or as a state security
official, and he stressed that since the early 1950's he
had had few interests and "no real contacts" outside of the
KGB itself. Questioned on a wide range of topics, including

various aspects of nuclear weaponry, missiles, electronics,

communications, unconventional weapons, military industry,
military units and equipment, and research and development,
NOSENKO repeatedly said that he had no knowledge of such
matters and that his responses reflected only personal
opinions. Because of his two assignments to Geneva with

the Soviet Delegation to the Disarmament Conference, questions
were put to NOSENKO about Soviet underground testing, Soviet
efforts in the fields of chemical and biological warfare,
Soviet disarmament aims and Soviet views of the corresponding
attitudes and intentions of the United States. Becausé

his assignments to the Soviet Disarmament Delegation were

for cover purposes only, NOSENKO disclaimed any special
knowledge. He explained that he took no part in the
substantive work of the Delegation nor did he have any
connection in the USSR with officials or organizations

concerned with arms control or disarmament policies.

NOSENKO's failure to provide any useful positive
intelligence information was not unique, although previous
KGB defectors did not have NOSENKO's claimed access, either
on the basis of his family ties or on the basis of his KGB
counterintelligence position within the Soviet Union. KGB

21
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1,of£1cers who defected earlier to Western services. prov1ded
'7Qno 31gn1f1cant mllitary,_economic or sc1ent1f1c information,
~i.on-the USSR, and the political information: provided by a U
?:few (usually relating to the personalities and relatlonshlps’

,d{in ‘the rullng group of the Communist Party) was of marglnal
- value,.qﬁ A = .

f}Counterintelligence Information

/

e NOSENKO s knowledge of KGB foreign 1ntelligence operatlons
i‘@;was llmited “for-his whole career had been spent in the
ff:Second Chlef (Counterintelllgence) Directorate concerned S
-,hw1th KGB - operations within the -Soviet Union.. His, 1nformation o
Com Second- Chief. Dlrectorate operations, however, was .’ '
i%apparently a counterlntelllgence windfall, because . most of

. his KGB.assignments . -involved .operations agalnst Amerlcan
‘itargets, either visitors to the Soviet Union or members of
‘the Embassy staff: in: Moscow.“ From.this circumstance he O
lrepresents himself as an authoritatlve source on KGB- success

lb”years 1953 1963.“

. NOSENKO has described scores of KGB operatlons mounted
against Amerlcan Embassy personnel during that ten year
'period.; Because of lasting relationships he established
with KGB colleagues, NOSENKO kept abreast of KGB operation5~
~against the. Embassy, even while serving. elsewhere than. 1n

- the Embassy Sectlon., ‘NOSENKO has stated that ‘he would .

- know if.ithe’ ‘facts: were otherwise, -and he. ‘has asserted',
,unequlvocally that no Amerlcan stationed permanently at

-~the Embassy ‘was" recrulted between the ‘early - 1950"'s ‘and” his
fdefectlon i 1964 NOSENKO named six members of the Embassy
"staff ‘who'! rejected KGB recruitment overtures, and 'all have:
{confirmed ‘his: assertlons.& He provided 1nformation on the .
”vulnerability of a significant .numbeér of Embassy personnelj;
R particular,“two Forelgn Service Officers were consequently
" - withdrawn from Moscow.:. Physical search has confirmed the-

*,*inrormation ‘he provided: regarding the KGB audio survelllance
”_1nstallatlons in the Embassy. : »

Among Amerlcans other than Embassy personnel whom NOSENKO
described .as KGB' ‘targets, he prov1ded information- leading
7 to the identification'of 51 KGB agents, including seven:
3torrespondentsyin Moscow, the Moscow. representative of the
Zﬁ E%erlcag\ﬁxpress Companﬂ\'the former code clerk "ANDREY"
ayle SMITH, see. P 33), and Sgt. Robert Lee JOHNSON '
0T Top Seeret . copy
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Mrs. JOHNSON, and James Allen MINTKENBAUGH. Twenty-five of
this number acknowledged KGB recruitment before or after
NOSENKO's information was received. In fifteen other
instances NOSENKO's information has been corroborated in

"part by the individuals' admissions of contact with (if

not recruitment by) the KGB, or by other sources' reports
of their recruitment. Besides these 51, NOSENKO provided
leads to four other American KGB agents, including an
officer in an American military intelligence organization,
none of whom has: yet been identified. Lastly, NOSENKO
jdentified 22 Americans whom the KGB knew or suspected to
be American Intelligence agents.

From NOSENKO's information 68 non-American KGB agents
have been identified. Although investigations are still
incomplete, in 39 of these cases the individual's KGB
recruitment has been reported by other sources, or the
individuals were suspect for\other reasons. Among these
68 individuals were al fand a Canadian Ambassador to
Moscow, an Austrian aﬁ?‘an[ a ff
Director and a.Deputy Secretary of the Forelgn”
Ministry, and a British Admiralty employee (William VASSALL,

. ..see below). .In addition, NOSENKO provided leads on 22 odther

KGB foreign agents, yet to be identified. NOSENKO's infor-
mation about the KGB electronic attack on the Embassyﬂ
in Moscow was confirmed by subsequent technical and physical
search. :

With respect to the KGB itself, NOSENKO named (if not
completely identified) approximately 1,000 Soviet citizens
who are or have been affiliated with Soviet intelligence ’
‘and security organizations. These included over seven
hundred active KGB staff officers, of whom 435 were serving
in the Second Chiéf Direéctorate. Of the 165 KGB officers
he named as belonging to the First Chief (Foreign Intelli-
gence) Directorate, over one hundred had been previously
reported to be KGB personnel, as reflected in CIA files.
NOSENKO's information'permitted updating CIA holdings on
previously received reports of the 1959 KGB reorganization,
particularly as it affected the Second Chief Directorate.

He described further refinement of responsibilities, the
Second Chief Directorate's absorption of previously inde-
pendent directorates, the creation of new units from elements

23 6001224
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rormerly belonglng to: other numbered dlrectorates,'and . -
,1nd1v1dual officers prominent in each. . NOSENKO was not. as:‘-jgg.‘"
) productive with respect to KGB operational methods and . o T
'Headquarters procedures, although he- furnished numerous’

ekamples, particularly regarding operations mounted agalnst
-~ Embassy’ personnel which provided useful insight on these
ﬁjtopics.ﬁ.. S : - :

B Slgniflcant KGB Operations Not Directly Related to
[* NOSENKO s Claimed Serv1ce

All of the KGB operations which NOSENKO has descrlbed
- " are favorable evidence of his bona fides, but they break -
- down into . two qualitatively ‘different groups. Operatlons'{f
which NOSENKO related .to specific KGB positions he held at
_lparticular times are described 'in the follow1ng section din. ' -
.. -connection with an. examination of his KGB career.. The.a:i“f'
';-remaining operations are those which NOSENKO said he learned
of informally, or by accident, or - even .despite (not because'
of): the KGB p051t10n ‘he.-held -at- the time.; Since these are:
‘not material to. hlS claimed: p051tions at ‘various times in
the" KGB, they are summarized in Annex B. (NOSENKO s . 1eads
‘to most mnon- -American KGB. agents belong. 1n this latter. group,.
;»but for reasons of bnev1ty they are omitted from this paper.)

B Among the items of information which NOSENKO prov1de4
;gbut which do not relate to. specific KGB p031tions he held ..
. at;particular times, there are several: ‘which merit spec1a1
:,note here.uiThese, which are among. the most significant of,
'1fhis revelations,: are'the leads to Sgt. .Robert Lee JOHNSON,"
"the KGB agent - in thewBritish Admiralty" (William VASSALL) ;i
_d"SASHA" (the KGB. agent in American Military Intelligence),
© "ANDREY" (Embassy military code clerk’ Dayle W. SMITH),,;;;?:_;iT
. Edward SMITH (CIA officer) and the KGB electronic attack fﬁfwlf“
" on the‘ Embassy in Moscow.w-‘ :

B\ b

Ry

f?"The KGB Agent in Paris (Sgt. Robert Lee JOHNSON)

‘ ﬂiThe first 1tem of information given by NOSENKO

'upon meeting CIA in Gemneva in 1964 was a lead to a KGB R
agent who was:an American. serviceman stationed at a sen51t1ve'sv,'
. U.S. military installation. in the Paris. area. The agent had
’f-been the source: of documentary 1nte111gence which had been

edofess e
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r

shown to Premier Khrushchev personally. Although still
active, the agent had ‘lost access to classified documents
some months earlier, in 1963. NOSENKO characterized the
lead as the most important single counterintelligence item '
that he acquired during the vear and a half he was a CIA
collaborator at KGB Headquarters in Moscow.

NOSENKO's Information

Shortly after returning to Moscow from Geneva in 1962,
NOSENKO first learned of a KGB agent's successful penetra—
tion of a classified documents vault at an "important
American military installation"” in the Paris area. Because
the documents included information om strategic targets in
France as well as in the Soviet Union, he assumed that it
was a '"'strategic planning installation" The installation
had its own airfield and that there were '"procedures for
bringing Top Secret documents in and for taking them out".

There had been six successful entries of. the vault, four

in 1962 and two in 1963. On .each occasion Special Section
-technicians travelled TDY to Paris under diplomatic courier
cover to assist the local KGB case officer in the technical

details of the operation. Their function was to advise the
case officer concerning the entry to the vault and later
surreptitiously to unwrap and re-~seal the documents. The
case officer, on this basis, would give appropriate instruc-

“tions to his agent, and the technic1ans probably never met
-the American.. : :

Although this was a First Chief Directorate operatlon,
officers of the Special Section of the Second Chief

. Directorate were used. . The.Special Section was comprised
‘of technicians transferred from the KGB Operational~-
‘Technical Directorate, and usually it handled surreptitious

entries to Western embassies in Moscow. Among these officers
were S.A. IONOV, L.A. LEBEDEV, S.D. ILYIN, V.V. SINITSYN,
V.Z. KARETNIKOV, M.I. PREOBRAZHENSKIY and Fedor FOFANOV.
IONOV, LEBEDEV and ILYIN took part in this operation, and
FOFANOV was later 1nvolved°

‘The specialists were not the ones that carried out the
operation. It was carried out by the case officers of the
Paris Legal Residency. The specialists just opened and then

GoG12¢
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resealed'the packages.~ LEBEDEV said that they also placed
some radioactlve substance, with the help of the Amerlcan
agent, in the. lock 6f the vault: .ddéor; when the substance was
".removed they could pick the lock. They. did the same thing

" lused some, radloactlve substance] to the safe' in the vault.” -
_Before everythlng was. finally ready,.:the Special Section.
Ltechn1c1ans had to visit, Paris- several ‘times.- The" first’ _
- time was the beginning of 1962. " The Paris" Residency couldn t
have launched the operation. before 1962 because - ‘they. i
“couldn't do it without ‘the’ help of. Special ‘Section techni- -
‘c1ans and the 1atter did not travel to Paris in 1960 or 1961'

Entry 1nto the vault area was" first achieved after the‘“f”
agent used. some radioactive’ substance to determine the
«combination. ' The agent: also photographed ‘the lock for 'KGB .
,study. Subsequent entrles were always made between two and
five o'cloeck in the ‘morning.." The ‘agent removed documents
. from’ the vault and delivered. ‘them:to. his 'KGB. case officer,

. who in turn passed them to Spec1al Section technlcians. .

<. The envelopes wereithen. opened;,’ photographs were made, the
documents wvere: repackaged and the envélopes were given. '

- ~back to theé case- officer for: return to the-vault. - There—'
-afteéry the Paris.Legal’ ‘Residency pouched the films to: Moscow 5
‘"and the techniclans themselves left Paris untll the ‘next

;;iﬂaasjﬂa;nja!e«

AR :TThe KGB officers were able to- complete the whole operation"
7;"dur1ng the . agent's night . duty. . ‘During ‘this time, they had

S to pick up the materials, -drive:some place ("maybe the . - ,
;dSov1et Embassy ) 0pen the" documents, photograph them,«close
:fthem .again. just. as ‘they were, and return them to the: agent.

"~ The KGB could mnot’ specify which documents ‘the - agent was to

"brlng ‘outy. the fact- ‘that all’ “the documents had to be: opened
{shows that the ‘were’ sealed when they were received from

“hthe agent. o P R ; . S

_ Since he. heard’ thataalmost all of the materlal obtalned S
_3wwas of. . interest to the" Mlnistry of Defense, NOSENKO concluded *
- that it came- from a. m111tary 1nstallation. - The agent couldn't
.bring out a great. deal ‘of material, only what he ‘could hide

on his person. - From what.the KGB techn1c1ans ‘said, NOSENKO
thought the agent was not alone on duty.”The techn1c1ans

- said that "the agent explained [to co-workers] that he is

going out for coffee 'or a sandw1ch",'and that "he is gone -
_for only 5 or lO minutes" ‘ - T - T s
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The last time the vault was entered was in the fall of
1963. At about that time the agent, a military man, '
received a promotion and was relieved of his night watch
duties. (The agent was scheduled for rotation to the
. United States but, with his promotion, he had obtained an
«ﬁjf{ET ‘ extension until May 1964.) Although the agent was still

2

i active in January 1964 and was still assigned to the same
military post, he had lost access to the classified
it documents. The information obtained from the agent's vault
‘éi 'was highly sensitive and so valuable to the KGB that the
B Paris Legal Rezident as well as several case officers there

had been rewarded for their part in the operation.

f

Before leaving Moscow for Geneva in January 1964,
NOSENKO had been told that the technician FOFANOV had been
sent to Paris in the KGB hope that the agent would be able
to re-enter the vault again before his transfer to the
United States in May. .When NOSENKO visited the Soviet
Embassy in-Paris on 19 January 1964 while ‘en route to
Geneva, FOFANOV was on duty at the entrance and NOSENKQO

“chatted with him. FOFANOV said he "was not doing good"
and he "would probably be sitting there until May'™, but
~he had hopes '"that something might happen". .

The .American agent was getting paid by the KGB and he
was recruited with the promise of a substantial sum of
money. NOSENKO didn't know if he was recruited in Paris

or if it was even a formal recruitment, nor what plans the
KGB had for him after he left Paris.

- NOSENKO learned of the case "in little pieces" at . .

. separate times from various members of the Second Chief

.. Directorate Special Section who participated in it, » _
‘principally LEBEDEV or KARETNIKOV in Moscow, and FOFANOV
later in Paris.  [Under intensive questioning, NOSENKO has
-also alleged he learned of the case from IONOV, the Chief
of the Special Section.] NOSENKO explained that he knew
LEBEDEV and KARETNIKOV from their visit to his office to
discuss technical installations at new tourist hotels, when
NOSENKO was Deputy Chief of the Seventh Department.

GG 2c
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fINOSENKO ¢ lead was 1dentif1ed as Army Sergeant
" Robert Lee JOHNSON; who ‘served in'the period . -
S 1962- 1963 at a mllltary courier statlon at Orly
,f;Fleld "Paris. JOHNSON confessed to KGB

7+ reeruitmént of himself. and his wife, his

* recruitment of Jamés Allen MINTKENBAUGH, ‘and

" the latter's. subsequent collaboratlon w1th the :
TyKGB.‘ Mrs; JOHNSON and MINTKENBAUGH: have S
fcorroborated JOHNSON's statements.‘ ‘

‘i . NOSENKO is apparently unaware of JOHNSON's:
'fearller (since 1952) involvement with the KGB
R £ Berlln, the United States, and in’ Orleans,
. France. With respect to the 1962-1963 .
.fsurreptltious entires of the courier station. ..
“:vault, however,’ JOHNSON'Ss adm1551ons c01ncide7jf
'with the information- provided by NOSENKO with .
no 51gn1f1cant dlfferences.,‘ R

"SASHA“ (KGB crvptonvm.lldentlty unknown)

. When NOSENKO announced in Geneva 1n 1964 that he
_was g01ng to defect, he ‘was. ‘told that ‘as a- consequenceV%V
fiaddltional persons in €IA would be informed of his case:

- and he was asked to" search his recolléction for any
Vf,evidence of -a KGB. penetratlon of CIA. NOSENKO knew of’

" mnone .in ‘CIA, “but. he’ recalled a KGB agent, .an Amer;canw
known. as,"SASHA"‘ who was a. member of -a U. S. military = -
‘intelllgence organlzatlon.';~ E o R

NOSENKO '8 Information

, NOSENKO 1earned of."SASHA" from M A.‘SHALYAPIN" the KGB -’
jsofficer who,‘whlle a551gned to:the First Chief Directordte

- and working in Berlln,:recruited the agent in 1955~ ~1957 .
MSASHA" who'had been.recruited by financial inducements,,.;'
"~ had officer- status, he . wore c1v111an clothes ‘to his meetlngs

- 'with his KGB handler and he could have been either 'a ' .
“.civilian or military’ intelligence officer. '"SASHA" returnedw
‘to the United States."ln ‘the 1960's" or “in 1962". '"SASHA"
.was stationed in the United States at the time of the Cuban
“ﬂmissile cr151s but had been unable to prov1de the KGB any ‘

:ﬁi. itf‘}f. o ‘ 28:; A : : ‘ o e
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relevant intelligence of any significance. NOSENKO thought
that "SASHA" served as a department chief in intelligence
when he was re-assigned to Germany in November 1962 - early
1963.

NOSENKO met SHALYAPIN for the first time in September or
October 1962 [after NOSENKO's first visit to Geneva and
initial contact with CIA] through his friend, Yu. I. GUK.
GUK had known SHALYAPIN when they had served together in
the First Chief Directorate in Moscow. SHALYAPIN had
served in the United States, Uruguay, Berlin, and Cuba. In
1962 he had been assigned to the Latin American Department
of the First Chief Directorate, as a case officer. He
-retired from the KGB and through NOSENKO's intervention with
Second Chief Directorate Seventh Department Chief CHELNOKOV,
. SHALYAPIN obtained a position with Inturist. Presumably
out of gratitude to NOSENKO, SHALYAPIN felt free to talk,
and over drinks he expressed his bittermess at his treat-
ment by the First Chief Directorate which, without him,
‘would not have had the agent "SASHA" in Germany "at that
. time" [1963]}. NOSENKO heard such details as. he knew. of :

"SASHA" in . the course of several such talks with SHALYAPIN.

. Under intensive questioning on the "SASHA" case NOSENKO
retracted his statement that he had first heard of the case
from SHALYAPIN, though maintaining that he was sure he had
discussed the case -with- SHALYAPIN "at some time'". Pressed
- to identify his first source, NOSENKO then cited several
officers—~-some First Chief Directorate, some Second-who
could have told him about it.because they were likely to
know of it though none of them was actually involved.in the
operation. Ultimately NOSENKO refused to commit himself

on. this point, saying he did not remember from whom he first
learned of "SASHA". ’ S '

Comment: "SASHA" has not been identified.

6J61320
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Hilllam VASSALL ("KGB Agent in the Britlsh Admlralty")

JAsked in’ the June 1962 meetings w1th CIA 1f he

Swas- famlllar with ‘the case of George BLAKE, the former KGB
_,:fagent in "MI-6, NOSENKO ‘replied.that he knew of another, more
important; KGB agent who was. employed in, the British v
5Adm1ra1ty.; SRR : : :

NOSENKO S Informatlon R A -
. . L . P 7
ziThe KGB ‘has. now - (1n 1962) ‘an agent in a hlgh government
p051tlon in London ‘who - provides most valuable information, -

some :from NATO. intelligence serv1ces conferences. .The
jagent was'recruited in Moscow. in 1956 or 1957 on: the ‘basis
“of-a homosexual ‘compromise. - In Mostow he was ''a First
wSecretary O LT chief Jof protocol"_of the Britlsh Embassy. -
CAfter: leav1ng Moscow “he became an “assistant to . the- Mlnlster, -
B3 "somethlng like" that" Adn ‘the: Admiralty. ~"He may be an .
¥ass1stant,.ch1ef of the secretarlat, ‘but he's: close to the.--~~
‘Minister. . All: papers for the Minister go.through him. He's'

not anJlntelligence officer. ‘He ‘is meeting with  the 'KGB
5 zSeveral KGB offlcers received the Order of Lenin’ for
1nclud1ng the London Rezident
ZNOSENKO learned of the agent 8 existence, but. not.

“of his’ 1dent1ty,.from his friend .and colleague in.the’ Second
‘Chief. Dlrectorate, V. A._CHURANOV who had made the recruit-

ment" whil ‘chief. of a section ine the Brltish Department. ;xf

Cqu?nt?ﬂﬁGOLITSYN had earller prov1ded a lead to a KGB

. .agent who was the source of Admiralty documents;j”

;which”GOLIISXN_had?reviewed in KGB Headquarters.
“_ . On-the basis of that lead, British security

. -authorities on 11 June 1962 passed to CIA a.
- list. of- twenty‘sdspects, including VASSALL.

"On 17 June CIA gave the British authorities a
prellminary report ‘on NOSENKO's informationj.
on-the basis of which the twenty-man list was
. reduced ‘to VASSALL ‘and one other suspect. Full

- 0001301 e
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Comment: {(Continued) ,
‘ details of NOSENKO s information were passed to
British authorities on 20 August, and on 12 "
September 1962 VASSALL was arrested. He promptly
confessed. o
VASSALL's confe551on confirmed what NOSENKO
had reported. He had been recruited in Moscow
in 1955, after a homosexual entrapment, by two
KGB officers, one of whom he identified as
CHURANOV. He continued to collaborate with
the KGB after returning to London, first in -
his job in the Admiralty Naval Intelligerce
Division, as clerical officer assistant to. the
Civil Lord's private secretary, and finally,
as an employee in the secretariat of the Naval
staff. In London he was met by KGB officer
"KOROVIN" who has been identified as London
-Rezident RODIN. VASSALL's last meeting with
. the KGB in London was on 17 August 1962, At
- the time of his arrest in September he had _
preparation for his next meeting on 30 October,
5 fifteen rolls of film containing 140 photo-
7graphs of classified Admlralty documents.

1| .
 KGB Audio Attack on the Embassy .

-In 1962 and 1964 NOSENKO reported on KGB microphones
'concealed in several Western embassies in Moscow. Aside
from the American Embassy (see’ P. 25), he furnished the
”fgreatest deta11 on the microphones in theﬂ NﬂEmhassy.
. : T . -

NOSENKO s Informatlon‘

The KGB was able to enter surreptitiously every embassy
in Moscow, with the exception of the American and British
Embassies., It had been particularly successful with respect

'\{50 the| lEmbassy. KGB microphones monitored the

“[ LAmbassador as he dictated his reports or held
"discussiond with diplomatic colleagues, including American
Ambassador Thomp&osii. The microphones were operative during
the period 1959 through 1961, and the KGB monitored then-
AmbassadorE;;::;;:]dictation of cables, dispatches and

Db | 31
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_f_conversatlons as’ well as passages of ‘a book he was wrltlng
%juon the Soviet Unlon..i 7 ' -

e

L

c NOSENKO learned of the KGB mlcrophones e1ther from
7.0, SQ_BUBNOV Deputy Chief of the Second Chief Directorate's
.. Third (Austrla and’ Germany) Department, or Mikhail SKORIK,

- ‘Chief’of- that Third Department's - First Section. In 1960-
...1961Tatyana GRISHNYAT brought from the Operational.
f;aTechnlcal Directorate. to’ NOSENKd in the American Embassy
VAySeCtlon daily monltorlng .reports - from. microphones in the
.Ameérican Embassy,» On such occasions she had a much larger

" which "NOSENKO concluded that the KGB was even more successful
cUoin monitorlng the[ [Embassy than ‘it was the USRS
fAmerican Embassyo‘. - T ‘

0 iComment: 'NOSENRO's- 1nformat10n was', substantlally correctt
e Independent of that 1nformat10n, however,

} authorltles ~learned. in 1963 that their -

":;technlcal securlty officer -in Moscow had been

{ . recruited- by’ ‘the KGB. - They surmised. that the’

' ‘recruitment may have taken ' place as early as -
'1956.,:In August 1964 the leader of a téchnical.

,n«search ‘team: was serlously disabled by mustard

. gas- p01son1ng, presumably at the hands .0f the

;KGBQ;‘In_1965 flnally, ‘another search team . -

“-cdmpleted a. tear down" of. thel e

% Embassy; -in the’ course of which two separate

. audio systems with'.24. microphones were found,

~,as_well as~27- mlcrophones in the residence of

._'the Ambassador.w In addition,'ev1dence ‘was ' A
found 1nd1cating ‘that the Embassy had béeen the

‘target of a sophlstlcated electronic attack

’agalnst 1ts c1pher machines and 1ts acoustlcjj

‘room. .. .

NOSENKO s assertion that the KGB mlcrophone31,

‘were ‘operative 'in 1959 and -his sourcing of:. his -

-information to the perlodic visits of Tatyana

"GRISHNYAT to- the ‘American: Sectlon, are comntra-

vdictory. . NOSENKO claims he was mnot 1n the e

'Amerlcan Sectlon unt11 1960 o - . R

.. T5 No. 197124
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"ANDREY" (Dayle W. SMITH)

When contacting CIA in 1962 NOSENKO offered to sell
information about two KGB operations, one of which he knew
only under the KGB cryptonym "ANDREY", a KGB agent recruited
in Moscow in 1949 or 1950 who in 1962 was working in
Washington "near ciphers"

NOSENKO's Information—-1962

"ANDREY" was a U.S. Army sergeant who was spotted for the
KGB by "QUEBEC" (Roy RHODES). [RHODES served in Moscow
from April 1951 to July 1953. He dated his own recruitment
by the KGB as January 1952.] RHODES was still in Moscow .
when "ANDREY" was recruited by the Second Chief Directorate,
although RHODES was not aware of "ANDREY' s" recruitment.,
The KGB approach to "ANDREY" was based on "women and money"

<"ANDREY"‘W0rked satisfactorily in‘Moscow'fcr thc'KGB;'

providing "materials" and information on ciphers. He

promised that he would cooperate with the KGB in future
assignments abroad, but would not work with them in the

United States as he did not want to "sit in the electric

chair". He was paid well for his cooperation in Moscow.

The KGB wanted to pay him more but he refused; he said he
could not plausibly explain the possession of -too much

money. When the KGB offéred him diamonds and other gems for -
later sale, he did not take them, telling his .case officers
that possession could arouse the attention of the American

.police. In 1950 the agent left Moscow for the United
‘States. The KGB waited for him to reappear in some other
.country, but he did not. Finally, in 1955, the KGB sent

V.M. KOVSHUK, the then-Chief of the American Embassy Section

"of the Second Chief Directorate, and a participant in

“"ANDREY's" recruitment in Moscow, to the United States to
find the agent. KOVSHUK travelled under the alias "KOMAROV",
under the cover of either Second or Third Secretary of the
Soviet Embassy in Washington.
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o KOVSHUK w1th the help of the KGB Legal Re51dency in
=Washington, learned ‘where the agent was living, identified
his automobile,. and- contacted him at the end.of 1955 or
the. beglnnlng of 1956. " .KOVSHUK" had looked for him. a long
tlme,d He found where "ANDREY" parked his .car, but "ANDREY".

‘was difficult to get close. to him. At first "ANDREY" was -
;frlghtened and refused to. work ‘but -when at the third :
-contact he was offered $1, 000, "the agent. accepted the money
“from KOVSHUK,because, due to hlS gambling, he was again: in
jfinanEial straits. - From that -point on he worked well with
‘. the He again. prov1ded good: informatlon, information
‘ﬂ@considered important. by the KGB. When KOVSHUK found him,

i+ "ANDREY" was working in, the Pentagon and he .was still
7working there in 1962 o P

;'In reference to hlS modus gperandl for meetlngs with
"ANDREY", KOVSHUK knew ‘he .was.under survelllance by the
5FBI.; His' meetlngs always took place in.cars. KOVSHUK
.would lose his surveillance the:day before : the meeting- and
;travel out31de of -Washington where he " would wait by the .
thghway,Q"ANDREY" would dr1ve by and - st0p, KOVSHUK: would
sit; with* ‘him 'in the- car, ‘receive: "ANDREY 5! ’1nformation,

nd" glvex him. the money. }jThen KOVSHUK would get out ‘and};
‘the’ Amerlcan would drlve on- B R

€t:.who "compromised- Rudolf Ivanovich ABEL
“{Reino HAYHANEN ‘who defected dn Parls in May’ 1957] ‘also’
provided the’ information 1ead1ng :to -the ‘arrest of Roy . .
PRHODES.a When' RHODES ‘was ‘under- 1nvest1gatlon, "ANDREY" "
was called’as a- w1tness because” ‘he."had worked with: RHODES
in- Moscow.@;"ANDREY" was the only such witness, called,
‘andhe was called ‘upon’ severaL times: to tell" how RHODES
had“behaved .in Moscow.a "ANDREY": could’ ‘be- identified-as. [ .
the ‘only person who testified at the tr1a1 During. thlsfﬁ;;
investigation of RHODES, '"ANDREY" ‘stopped: meeting 'KGB v
offlcers, because he was afrald ‘he-.too. would be exposed and
ifarrested.w.”ANDREY"'may ‘have feared that RHODES was. involved
<. in  his’ own recruitment, or he may merely have been- panlcky
'q=because he knew he. could be accused of the same thing as
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RHODES. Little by little, however, "ANDREY" resumed his
meetings with the KGB, "having little other choice".

KOVSHUK turned "ANDREY" over to a member of the Washington

Legal Residency and returned to Moscow. NOSENKO did not

know who succeéded KOVSHUK as the handler, but KOVSHUK's
successor eventually turned the case over to N.G. BAGRICHEV,
who concluded his tour in Washington in 1961. NOSENKQ did
not know BAGRICHEV's successor, but asserted that there
must have been one since. "ANDREY" was still working with

‘the KGB in 1962.

NOSENKO's Information-1964

. While continuing to associate "ANDREY's" recruitment

with RHODES' presence in Moscow, NOSENKO in different

discussions of the case asserted that "ANDREY" was recruited
in "1948-1949" "in'l952 or earlier™, or "in 1953"

"ANDREY" had been recruited by KOVSHUK and N.M. BORODIN.

~After returning to the Unlted ‘States, "ANDREY" worked at’

the Pentagon, "in codes", but by the time KOVSHUK. recontacted

" him in the United States ‘he was’ néaring the end of his

enlistment, and he was working in ‘an Army recruiting office.

- He was 'still- working in the recruiting office when’ BAGRICHEV

took over the case from KOVSHUK.

‘It ‘was mnot’ RHODES' trlal at which "ANDREY" appeared, but

" he was among persons called during the pre-trial investigation.

"ANDREY" was called just once, and he was scared to death.

_'tANDREY" did not testify'at the‘RHODES trial.

In Moscow, "ANDREY"'had explained to the KGB how the code
machines in the Embassy worked and may have given the KGB

. parts of code machines such as "dises" [sic, meaning rotors]
' -Aleksandr SELEZNEV, :a deputy department chief in.the -

Communications Directorate of the KGB, had been involved in

‘the "ANDREY" case: NOSENKO first saw him in 1953 during the

period that "ANDREY" was working for the KGB in Moscow.
SELEZNEV came to meetings in the American Department to
discuss and plan KGB meetings with "ANDREY". The reason for
SELEZNEV's presence was that the case officers were not
technical specialists, and SELEZNEV would supply them with
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ifquestlons to be asked of "ANDREY"  Since SELEZNEV came  t'o

" .these’ meetlngs in civilian clothes, whereas NOSENKO later
““Saw hin in uniform in his visits to the American Department,
. ¥ NOSENKO: speculated that" SELEZNEV may "have attended some of

i, the meetings with "ANDREY". . Although NOSENKO did not know -
. how the KGB exploited him, he repeatedly emphasized "ANDREY' s
c-great. importance to the KGB during the. time he worked for.

o them.'in Moscow. "Thanks to his help they were able to read
~your Stateé Department codeés.. To-date we have never been
_."able ' to read your. military codes..." _"ANDREY" brought no

m111tary code material to the KGB, only State Department. .
materlal.a Malnly, he described’ the operation of code machlnes'
.and what dally or other perlodic settings ‘were made.

. "ANDREY" supplled valuable materlal from the time that’_
“‘the first recontact was made in the United States until he
;fceased meeting the KGB because of the RHODES trial. Agaln, .
. rafter the trial, he was able to furnlsh good material. This
.was_ true both- wh11e KOVSHUK was" handllng him and while 7 '

“BAGRICHEV was .the case offlcer.n Between June 1962 and
fJanuary 1964, _while NOSENKO was-in Moscow, he heard that
: somethlng 1s g01ng wrong w1th thlS operatlon '

“Comment: - "ANDREY" ‘was identified- as formeér U.S. Army
Celpel v - ‘Sergeant Dayle W.  SMITH, who served as a .code
‘v 'machine mechanlc whlle ‘assignéd to the office -

. of ‘the-U.S. Military Attache -in . the Embassy in
" Moscow from April 1952 to April 1954. . .
= NOSENKO's. information -has beéen confirmed as‘x'
_,substantlally correct by, adm1851ons of Roy. - .
~ "RHODES 'and Dayle W. SMITH ‘("ANDREY") . RHODES
fﬂlnformed the FBI in -2 1963. interview that.
"{ﬁamong other American enllsted personnel of the’
fﬂEmbassy in Moscow,: ‘he reported on SMITH to
~the KGB. . After denying 1nvolvement with the
.~ KGB in 1nterv1ews ‘with the FBI in 1964 and

1965, SMITH admitted. that:he had been approached
by the KGB in Moscow in late 1953, that he had
'~ been offered a large sum of cash. and gems in
exchange for cla551f1ed information concerning.
Embassy clpher systems, and that he had provided
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Comment: (Continued)
the KGB with a mock code machine rotor. He

further acknowledged that he had been recon-
tacted by the KGB in the United States in
1957, where he met KGB officers regularly
until September 1962, He identified by photo-
graph all of the KGB officers described by
NOSENKO as having taken part in the operation.
NOSENKO '"cannot be certain' that he did not
know about "ANDREY" while he served in the
Embassy Section in 1953-1955, and when pressed
to describe specifically the source of his
information, he invariably indicated that he
learned of the American agent later, informally

from KGB colleagues. ]

1

Edward Ellis SMITH
- NOSENKO's Information

In. the context of a 1962 discussion of KGB operations
against the American Embassy in Moscow, NOSENKO was asked
whether He knew "about SMITH". 'He answered: '"SMITH?. The
red-head. Listen, he headed the FBI, he was a.colonel and
headed counterintelligence." NOSENKO went on to describe

_the mounting of a blackmail operation, of which he was

the case officer, against SMITH (whose KGB cryptonym was
"RYZHIY", or "REDHEAD"). '

SMITH hadjbeen‘sleepingdwith.his Russian housemaid, who
was an agent planted on him by the KGB. When the KGB was
unable to obtain actual incriminating photographs, she was
instructed to take photographs of herself on SMITH's bed.
These were then combined.with photographs of SMITH to
produce photomontages, copies of which were delivered to
SMITH together with a letter inviting him to a meeting with
the KGB. SMITH came. The KGB was represented at. the
meeting by GRIBANOV, NOSENKO and one other officer. At
this initial meeting SMITH was not interrogated nor asked
for classified information. SMITH agreed to come to further

meetings.
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with GRIBANOV, NOSENKO sought out the maid to find out what
had happened. ©She reported that SMITH was in a state of
desperate indecision; he had paced his room all night as

if his mood was alternating between despair and defiance.

To increase the pressure on him, the KGB sent him threatening
letters on each of the succeeding three days. Finally, on
the third day, instead of meeting the KGB, SMITH went to
Ambassador BOHLEN and reported the blackmail attempt. SMITH
was immediately withdrawn from Moscow and -(as of 1962) he

was "still in intelligence work".

AR When SMITH did not come to the next scheduled meeting E

In 1964 and afterwards NOSENKO denied that he had played
any personal role in the case. He explained that as a
junior officer in the American Embassy Section at the time,
working on correspondents, he would not have taken part in
so important an operation. He said that he had heard about:
: the operation from V. M. KOVSHUK, SMITH's case officer.

L (On a later occasion NOSENKO said that his only personal

‘ role was being assigned to a phone-watch to receive '
surveillance reports comnected with the: 1n1t1a1 KGB approach
to SMITH.)

ST

b GOLITSYN s Informatlon

In February 1962 GOLITSYN. reported that in 1957 he had
read a two-volume KGB study which gave examples of successful
operations against the Embassy in Moscow. One case concerned
an American, probably single, who was either the Security
Officer or the counterintelligence representative inthe
Embassy. He had a dog, -and lived in an apartment in the
city or a country house outside Moscow. His Russian maid
- or cleaning’'woman was his mistress. The KGB concluded that
‘the American would not succumb' to ordinary blackmail and
consequently the maid, a KGB agent, was instructed to confess
to him that she had been recruited by the KGB against her
will and would be arrested if she did not fulfill her KGB
tasks. The American agreed to help her, and GOLITSYN believed
that he did not report this to his Washington headquarters.
GOLITSYN also recalled that the American first supplied
only misinformation to the KGB, but when the KGB complained,
he provided a mixture of truth and misinformation. GOLITSYN
said the case study he read was based on a true incident
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which took place between 1953 and 1957, but he was not sure
that the operation actually resulted in a successful recruit-
ment, as was alleged in the study.

Comment: Edward Ellis SMITH (a redhead), Embassy
~ Security Officer (and CIA employee) from
July 1954 to June 1956, reported to the
Ambassador on 5 June 1956 that he had received
four letters from the KGB. The first,
received on 2 June 1956, enclosed incriminating
photographs of himself and his Russian maid and
requested him to come to a personal meeting
with KGB representatives outside the Embassvy.
When he did not do so, SMITH subsequently had
received three threatening letters. In J
reporting the matter to the Ambassador, SMITH -
admitted having been intimate with his Russian
maid. SMITH was recalled from Moscow on
8 June 1956, and he left CIA employment a year
later. When interviewed in March 1962 on the
_basis of the GOLITSYN information, SMITH
admitted that he had maintained his affair
with the Russian maid during most of the time
of his Moscow assignment, 20 July 1954 to
8 June 1956, and confirmed that to help her
he had in fact passed unclassified information
) C through her to the KGB for many months.
§§ ‘ NOSENKO clearly ascribed the SMITH operation.
i to the period when NOSENKO was in the American
‘ Embassy Section, in 1953-1955. SMITH's state-
ment that he reported the blackmail attempt to
g} the Ambassador in June 1956 is confirmed. If
NOSENKO was, as he says, transferred to the
‘} : Seventh Department in 1955, he could not have
i played any role in the KGB approach to SMITH.

g If he played such a role, he was in the Embassy
\ , Section in 1956, not in the Seventh Department
g( . as he claims. If he played a role in ‘the SMITH
______ ‘ case as well as_in the Seventh Department
‘ recruitment of[EURGi}(see p.115), it remains (4
P possible that he was neither an officer in the
g Embassy Section nor Seventh Department and was

. acting in some other KGB capacity.
g - | 39 | 6001310
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CHAPTER II

EXAMINATION OF NOSENKO'S BONA FIDES

What NOSENKO has said about himself, the information
about the KGB which he has provided, and the apparently
corroborative statements which Soviet officials have made
since his defection represent prima facie evidence that
NOSENKO is a former senior KGB officer. To permit a
conclusive judgment that he is a bona fide defector, the’
information NOSENKO provides about his life and related o
persons and events must be coherent, and his accounts of
important events must be consistent. Allowing for personal
vagaries such as lapses of memory and so forth, as well
as for factors of accident and coincidence, the information
he relates must conform within reasonable limits with that
which is known from independent and reliable sources to
the United States Government about Soviet realities and
about the events, topics and individuals NOSENKO describes.
Lastly, the information NOSENKO provides must plausibly

" relate primarily to the KGB positions he held, and his

account of how he functioned in these positions must be
substantiated by verisimilar detail. :

The following portions of this paper, organized in

chronological fashion insofar as possible, summarize this
examination of the significant aspects of NOSENKO's claims.

Notes for the Reader

In order to follow the examination as presented the
reader should note the following:

The examination tests the validity of the piesumptive
evidence favoring NOSENKO in terms of coherence, consistency,
and compatibility with fact and plausibility,

GIG1311
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Notes for the Reader (Continued)

NOSENKO's claims are judged in the light of his own
assertions and in comparison with collateral information.
It is not the function of the examination to speculate
about possibly. credible alternative explanations for the
paradoxes reflected in NOSENKO's statements, except when
such explanations are advanced by NOSENKO himself.

If there is no immediate explanatory note pointing out
the relevance or significance of some item in the text, the
reader may expect that the item's relevance or significance
usually will be developed in the immediately-following text.
Otherwise seemingly minor points are included because of
their aggregative significance: they will be a matter of ]
comment in the Summary and Conclusions section following
each major portion of the examination.

Direct questions and NOSENKO's replies about his I
contradictions, inconsistencies, ambiguities, retractions,
omissions and the like, are reflected 1in the text. Where, l
during his interrogations, it was not possible to pose
direct questions without furnishing NOSENKO information or
insight into the interrogators' purposes, the topic was
covered exhaustively}if indirectly, and NOSENKO was
provided every opportunity to comment en the matter in
question. When the text indicates that NOSENKO apparently
... was not asked about a particular matter, or that "hé didn't
“say", or "didn't comment" or "didn't indicate awareness"
and so forth, the reader properly may assume that the
matter was covered extensively.

_ In instances in which NOSENKO contradicts or retracts
earlier assertions, no more weight is necessarily given
to his final assertion -as ‘opposed ‘to earlier contrary cldims.

: To assist the reader in following what are sometimes
lengthy and complex accounts of events, NOSENKO's narrative
is broken from time to time by a clearly identified
editorial comment which seeks to draw the reader's attention
to the relevance or significance of NOSENKO's assertions,
-or to what conclusion is drawn.
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Loy

'5fNotes for the Reader (Contlnued)

o At the end of each episode in NOSENKO s blography
..ﬁthere appears a conclusion resulting from the examination
" of NOSENKO's claims with respect to. that period of his.

“1ife. The. judgment of whether NOSENKO is a bona fide

;defector 1s the .sum_ of these independently drawn conclus:l.ons°
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CHAPTER III

PRE~KGB BIOGRAPHY

'NOSENKO's biography from birth to entry into the KGB is
relevant to his bona fides insofar as it is material to
establishing his true identity, his general veracity, and .
- . his eventual eligibility for KGB service. Below are

.= . summarized pertinent events in his early life, his study

' at the Moscow Institute of International Relations, and
his RU sexrvice, as reconstructed from statements he
volunteered as well as from the accounts obtained in
repeated interrogations.

- N Birth to 1945 - NOSENKO's Account

— NOSENKO was born on 30 October 1927 in Nikolayev, in the
: Ukraine. At,the time of his birth, his father, Ivan
‘Isidorovich NOSENKO, was a shlpyard mechanic and an evenlng
student at the Nikolayev Shlpbulldlng Institute. Shortly
-after NOSENKO began kindergarten in Nikolayev, in September
1934, his father graduated from the Shipbuilding Institute
P ~ and the family moved to Lenlngrad where NOSENKO started
- ~ the First Class of school in September 1935. From 1935 to
R 1937 NOSENKO lived in Leningrad where his father was director
S of a shlpyard In 1938 the elder NOSENKO became Deputy
0 People's Commissar of the Shipbuilding Industry and the
R family moved to Moscow, where NOSENKO completed the Sixth
Class in June 1941 just as the war broke out.

ANOSENKO has given two versions of his whereabouts for
the next two yvears. In one, he said that on the outbreak
of hostilities he was enrolled in the Moscow Special Naval

- School which was evacuated to Kuybyshev where he finished
' the Seventh Class; thereafter he transferred to the Lenin-~
grad Naval Preparatory School (which had been evacuated to
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Baku), where he finished the Fighth Class in spring, 1943.
In a second version [more probable since entry to the Moscow
. Special Naval School required prior completion of the
Seventh Class] NOSENKO said that when the war broke out he
and his mother were evacuated to Chelyabinsk, where he
completed the Seventh Class in summer of 1942. They returned
to Moscow afterwards, and NOSENKO was then enrolled in the
Moscow Special Naval Schoeol (then in Kuybyshev) where he
completed the Eighth Class in 1943; in the fall of 1943
NOSENKO was enrolled in the Leningrad Naval Preparatory
School (then in Baku).

. After just six months in Baku, without completing the’
Ninth Class, NOSENKO ran away from school and returned to
Moscow. . .

Comment: - NOSENKO has asserted variously that he ran
away and fought on the front at Tuapse, and
that he had finished the Tenth Class in Baku

~and then spent the period 1943-1945 at the
Frunze Higher Naval School, the equivalent of
Annapolls. He has retracted both assertions.

. ?

NOSENKd_completéd the Ninth Class in June 1944 at the’
" Moscow Mining Institute, and when the Leningrad Naval

- Preparatory School returned to Lenlngrad from Baku, he

. -resumed his studies there. Early in 1945, however, NOSENKO
“received a gunshot wound in the hand, and after being

“   hospltallzed for a month, he left the Naval school
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, NOSENKO'éOmplé;ed"the Tenth Class at the Leningrad Ship-?
.,'bulldlng Tekhnlkum in June 1945, and he successfully passed
. - the necessary examinations to qualify him for entrance to- f
*fthe Moscow Instltube of Internatlonal Relatlons that summer.”

ro.
i .
o -
' .

Blruh to 1945.->Summary and Conclu510n

s NOSENKO is v1rtually the sole source of- 1nformatlon on’
“'his early llfe.. However, this portion of his clanmed

' ‘biography- is consistent with the NOSENKO family's where=
*‘abouts as pub11c1zed in press ‘accounts at the time of hlS

» . father's death in 1956, and with the existence of the
";,schools he clalms to have attended '

: ;-.

el Allow1ng for exaggerated clalms of. boyhood her01cs‘ N
{s(flghtlng ati:the front, attending the Frunze Academy, and.

- formal inductien in and discharge from the Navy), all of .
“which NOSENKO has retracted under interrogation, WNOSENKOC's .
" c¢laimed identity as the son of Minister Ivan I. NOSENKG = .~
“‘and ‘the substance of his clalms about his life until" 1945
’*are accepted as true._f ' :
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Attendance at the Moscow Instltute
gﬁ Internatlonal Relatlons (1945 - ca. 1950)

' In all of hls accounts, NOSENKO has stated that he - entered
.+ the Institute's Faculty of Internatlonal Law and Engllsh ln.%o*
9September 1945 He completed hlS first year dnc sprlng 1946

L 'In 1947, on. completlon of hlS second year at the Instltute,‘f
7[NOSENKO claims he recelved a comm1551on as a junior lleutenant:ﬁ
.- %in the reserves"; he does not recall in what arm he received. .
ra commLSSLOn,_other than belng sure that it was not. :in the-.,&i“
':-Navy. B L . T o

.- Comment: Sov1et students completlng their second year of
S hlgher 1nst1tutlons are commissioned, but in . ,
U an- arm (Army, - Navy, Air Force) ‘of Soviet defense.ﬁirlggg,.
- forces. At that time they receive their voyenn
. bilet (mllltary booklet) which reflects their . -
. ‘assigned MOS and category (sostav). CIA 1nterro—
" gators were unable to resolve why NOSENKO . ::. -
3 ;'pleaded 1gnorance on this matter, and concluded
~. it may relate in some manner to his claims to
.. subsequent comm;ss;oned service in the: Navy,'{-

In 1947, also, NOSEVKO marrled the daughter of a Sov1et Aqmy
Lieutenant General, Augustina K. TELEGINA "just after'. her - -
father had been arrested in connection’ with Stalin's campaign:
_against’ Marshal Zhukov's associates. . NOSENKO recalls nelther
‘the date of that marriage, in what season of the year it~
occurred, nor how long after her father's arrest. ‘[The:. IR
i_sxgnlflcance of this first marrlage liés in NOSENKO's contra- ..

~.dictory statements about ‘when and how he obtalned his’ dlvorce.:_m;f
See below I S : ‘ _ o : T

-
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NOSENKO has said at varlous times that the Institute
4course was of four yearq duration and that he en~ered the
Naval RU on graduation in 1949; that it was four years'
duration and that because he failed a state examtnatlon he
was graduated later, in 1950; that it was of five years'
duration and he graduated in 1950, on scheduke, and that it
was of five.years' duration but he feiled an examination
which delayed his graduation for three months.

Comment: See p.367for report that NOSENKO joined the KGB
- upon graduation from the Institute in 1947.
The duration of the Institute course and the
date of NOSENKO's completion are materiai to
the plausibility of his claimed Naval RU service,
which he said followed almost immediately upon
his departure from the Institute.

Naval RU Service (ca. 1951 - ca. 1953)

NOSENKO ‘claims" that upon completion of his studies at
,the Institute of Internatlonal Relations he entered the
Naval RU, serving in the Far East and then in a Baltic post,
T finally successfully “transferrlng" to the KGB through the
‘ '1nterventlon of his father s frlend KGB General KOBULOV.
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i Tﬂe 51gn1f1cance of NOoE KO RU service is the fact
fthat he clalms it launched his 1n*e1110ence career ang.
‘served as the means through which he secured app01ntment
_"“*to the KGB after once having been rejected. .. The two or more.
- years he claimed to have served 'in. the RU represent a’

" 'significant period’ of . his adult life for which he should

o~ .have no-difficulty accounting. " Finally, the date of his

- actual’ transfer from the Naval RU to the KGB is. crltlcal to.

determining the time from- wh*ch hlS clalms about KCB serv1ce3
?can be judged credlble. ’ ~

. NOSENKO volunteered exten51ve comment on. hlS Naval RU
‘service at his first meetings -with CIA in 1962.. After his
1864 defectlon, itiwas the topic on which he made one of
-his dinitial retractlons and his: flrst admission that he had
.. earlier made a false claim. -The sub3ect of his. ;Naval :RU
‘AfoserVLCe was- consequently prominent in 1nterrogatlons in- S
”{1964 ‘1965 -and 1966. ‘However, throughout these lnterrogatlons,.

échallenges ‘of his: assertlons about- his RU service- prompted
adjustments. in his claimed date -of graduation from the . .
Institute or clalmed date of entry into the KGB, just: as-
challenges or ‘those latter: topics- prompted amended stateni““
ments with respect: to his RU. sexvice.. The extent of the -
.sttll-unreconc11ed dlscrepanc1es and contradlctlons 1nv1'*1'
NOSENKO's various:accounts is best. percelved in comparlson
'uof hls statements made in® 1962 1964 1965 and 1966

N SENKO's Informatlon-1962

.‘NOSENKO flnlshed the Instltute of Internatlonal Relatlons
in 1950 ‘and 1mmed1ately .reported’ for duty with the RU -
[He 'did not- amplify- how he’ drew such: an- ass;gnment }o n}&
-September 1550-he’was. offered | a551gnments in Lenlngrad
-Moscow, ‘and .in" “the: Far East; and he chose the Far East "so

no one would think he. would take advantage of his father's.
p051tlon" He was. a551qned to. .a radio .signals. 1ntercept10ni"
unit:in Sovetskaya ‘Gavan' (on the Soviet ‘coast opposite - | .
Sakhalln), where he collected Order of Battle information . by
monltorlng the communlcatlons of Amerlcaa unlts operatlng in
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Korea. In spring 1952 NOSENKO suddenly fell ill. Returned
to Moscow and given a medical examination, he was diagnosed
to have "a small spot on a blood vessel under his collarbone"
and he was confined to the Hertzen Sanitorium outside Moscow
" for two months. In summer 1952, again eligible for duty,
NOSENKO was offered an assignment to the Military-Diplomatic
Academy, but he rejected the opportunity because the
curriculum was almost identical to that of the Institute
from which he was graduated. :

_ In summer 1952 NOSENKO was ordered to the Baltic city of
"primorsk, "the former German city of Pillau®. {Baltiysk, a
_larger city close by Primorsk, is the former German city of
Pillau.] There NOSENKO was involved in the formation of
"agent-observation posts", in which candidates from among
Soviet seamen were formed into three-man teams and trained .
as stay-behind agents in the event of war. In early 1953,
after less than six months in the Baltic assignment, NOSENKO
returned on leave to Moscow where he met at his father's
dacha KGB General KOBULOV, First Deputy to then-MGB [KGB]
Chairman Beria. KOBULOV, on finding that NOSENKO did not
- care for his RU assignment, invited him to consider joining
- the KGB. S - ' ‘

. 3

. NOSENKO's Irnformation-1964

'‘prior to NOSENKO's graduation he had been tentatively
" assigned by the Institute'S'military“commission to the RU,
"and on the instructions of the Institute's "secret unit”, he

- .was interviewed by a RU Colonel -KALOSHIN at the RU Personnel

Department. After passing the state examination on the
second try, NOSENKO entered the Navy in- September 1950, when
he received orders calling him to active duty as a junior
ljieutenant. He also.received orders assigning him to the
Intelligence Staff of the Seventh (Far East) Fleet. He
left Moscow approximately -1 October 1950, travelling for

ten days by train to his unit, which was stationed near
Sovetskaya Gavan'. He was there assigned to a Reports
Section with duties which included translating American
naval publications and making summaries of Order of Battle
information of American naval forces in the Far East. A

. radio signals intercept unit was connected with NOSENKO's
unit, but [contrary to what he asserted in 1962 and 1965] he

was not personally concerned with that unit's activities.

51 - 0001322
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_ In spring 1951 NOSENKO was promoted ‘to. the rank of o
s;@lleutenant. At the end of 1951 NOSENKO was assigned as an
- "gpprentice® in the Agent Intelligence Section near o
.Sovetskaya Gavan', an assignment which involved subchaser
dellvery and pleup of agents from Hokkaido and Sakhalln. -

 In early 1952 NOSENKO flled by mall for dlvorce from.
. TELEGINA in a Moscow court. In April 1952 he returned to.
Moscow on leave, where he visited the Naval RU Headquarters o
personnel -0fficer,; Col. KALOSHIN,: and requested a transfer
from the Far East. Durlng May and June 1952 he was on
‘leave accrued during his two years' se€rvice in the Far
East. Following his: ‘leave, in summer. 1952, NOSENKO was -
ordered. to proceed.. to Rostock but he refused and took -
{ unauthorlzed leave." .(He could not learn what ‘his. actual .
'“‘a351gnment was to be in Rostock, “and he heard that the Naval
Intelllgence Points 'in Germany were being closed down. ) --He
subsequently was. a551gned to the Baltic city of. Baltlysk,
- where he 'reported for duty with the Intelllgence Staff of
the Fourth .(Baltic) Fleet. He was assigned to ‘a Naval ;?*‘
v Intelllgence Point being -set-up in Sovetsk. (sxc, see p. 57),
B a. small town. “ln Prlmorskly Kray"'near Baltlysk.«A ST

<;Comment;'"Pr1morsk1y Kray is - in. the Far East, as NOSENKO s~
o 1‘-J~fj11nterrogators poihted out to him’at the timev -’
””jNOSENKO subsequently clalmed it was his earlier

- post,s Sovetskaya Gavan'y ‘which was-in Prlmorskly B

. See belows

e

c Kray,: a. fact known to him from the way his ..o
“letters were- addressed., Thls 1s also an error.iﬂ_qiqu‘

."Qtln SovétsdeOSENKthrepared‘trainingfnaterialsifor-agenté;f,°ff""“‘"

Comment§~ NOSENKO also sald that ‘after refu51ng to- go to f
‘ Rostock he himself had received training in. L
Moscow and then was sent. to Rostock and Sassnltz,,

0001323 TSN t9mie
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Comment: (Continued) .
in East Germany, before going to Baltiysk. 1In
retracting that claim, he explained that he
~knew his CIA interrogators would not believe
that he had successfully refused the assignment
in Germany.

~ In August or September 1952 NOSENKO returned to Moscow

for 7 to 10 days to complete the divorce proceedings which

he had initiated in the Far East. This was not regarded

" as leave, but official business. He afterwards returned

to Sovetsk, but he did not like his work there, and in late
1952 he requested leave to return to Moscow to seek a transfer.
When his unit commander refused him leave, NOSENKO appealed

to -Admiral GOLOVKO in Baltiysk, and because of the elder
NOSENKO's influence, was able to return to Moscow for a month's
leave in January 1953. At the end of January NOSENKO visited
the RU .Personnel Officer, KALOSHIN, and stated his distaste
for his work. KALOSHIN told him to "look around", and

NOSENKO spent February 1953 "at the disposal of the Personnel
Department", not doing anything. Since he wasn't working,

he didn't receive his pay, and he lived with his parents.

Comment:. Just before giving this account of his January
: 1953 leave, NOSENKO claimed that he spent
_ January and a. part of February at the Kubinka
Sanitorium. He has never reconciled these two'
statements. : ‘ . -

NOSENKO's Information-1965

Prior to his graduation -from the Institute, a military
commission tentatively assigned NOSENKO to the Navy, after
which he visited a special section at the Naval Ministry
to file special forms for a security check. Although nothing
was said at the time, NOSEMNKO believed then that he was slated

GUC1324
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“to join 'Naval Intelligence. After passing all of his ,
ﬁ;examinatibnsf.in:the,fall of 1950 NOSENKO received orders -
gcalling,him;tofaCtiVe»duty‘:ﬁOffered,a choice.of assignments,"

" "NOSENKO chose the Far East""to prove that he was now ready

.. to make a man of himself". '

7?Q;Primorskiy«Kray'(Sic)y;NOSENKOYWasgassignedfto a Reports.

“Section. - - S o o

S, 4
0333

Gavan', NOSENKO insisted  that it was located in
- Primorskiy Kray. § .
.. clearly :locating it in Khabarovskiy Kray, '~ .
j,NOSENKQ~aﬁgri1y‘assertedgthatlthe'map'had been
- falsified by his interrogators to confuse him.
" "NOSENKO's Contentibn?is.ébmewhatﬁanalogdusito
';being;stationed'in*Oregon'forVanjextendedwf- ’

good}ﬁob¢despite‘rigqrous;wquing‘and{living*cdnditionSf“

.. standing officer.  NOSENKO.and his officer colleagues | S
fapﬁleethhe:productjofgsome,BOOgradio_intercept"operatOrs

in»spiihQ;JlQSi}faffefiaboquSeVEhfﬁdhﬁhs'.serViéé;”v‘

-7iﬁQSENKQﬁwas;prdmoted to .lieutenant, thethqrmallyﬁreguired-‘ﬂf

In early ‘1952 NOSENKO published in
. legal papers to Moscow. = . |
. iiQNbSENKO“sftWéryear*toufgwguidindtfendﬁﬁhtil]QCtobeffor~“'”
- November 1952, nor was he entitled to any leave before that

- time. Anfunderstanding‘superior;‘however,:arrangéd for him>f 
‘to take.leave in April 1952 so that he: could return to

oo 0001325 R
L Top Secret

“-Arriving in Sovetskaya Gavan' in .-

.;Queétioned>in’1965:On the location of Sovetskaya f

hown contemporary'Sovietﬁmapsf"

~peri0d-and?thiﬁkiﬁg_oneSelf”té'bé injcalifornié{ ?

«_bvétékéjéfGéVan}-NOSENKO?likéa?théWork“ahdAdid°affof j-.’

and during his service there he was commended as an out- .
'5¥Qas,Wellfa§.infprmatidn;received:from:Sakhalin~and‘Vladinstdkaf’
-time in grade_of Qnere§r_havingybeen;redu;edvtQstx;months‘jéf L

St ENKO ,é‘localzhéWSpape;;his 5ljf._
ﬂ_intént:tdgdiVOrqE‘his,wife;fandjhefforwarded‘theXnecessaryf o

‘Moscow: in time for his. father's birthday on’l May. On 2 May )
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he reported to the Naval Ministry and was told to return

for reassignment at the end of his leave. NOSENKO was on
leave in May and June 1952, and he remained "at the disposal
of the Naval Ministry". [According to his 1962 and 1966
versions, he was hospitalized during this period.]

Tn the summer of 1952 NOSENKO was offered assignments to
the RU Military-Diplomatic Academy, to a special Naval '
espionage school, and to a post in Germany, but he turned
them all down. He rejected the opportunity to attend the
academy, because he had had almost all of the courses
earlier at the Institute of International Relations.

"Semetime after his return to Moscow from Sovetskaya
Gavan'," NOSENKO completed the formalities to secure his
divorce from TELEGINA. [According to his 1964 account,

- NOSENKO visited Moscow later, from his Baltic assignment,
"to complete divorce proceedings.]

In August 1952 NOSENKO received an assignment to Sovetsk,
in the Baltic, where he arrived in early September 1952.
His assignment there was as & political officer, in which
 capacity he was involved with sailors being trxained for
- wartime sabotage missions. --His main task was to prepare the .
training plan for the agents, to instruct them in such
subjects as "The Foreign Policy of .the USSR", and generally
to see to their needs. NOSENKO did not care for his
assignment in Sovetsk and in December 1952 he cbtained leave
to spend the holidays with his parents in Moscow.. In January
1953 NOSENKO -and his parents visited KGB General KOBULOV
at the latter's dacha and KOBULOV, learning of NOSENKO's
dissatisfaction with the RU, suggested he consider working
- for the KGB.. .. . A : . : -

After New Years in 1953 NOSENKO went "to rest for several

_days" at the Hertzen "House of Rest", located 65-70 kilo-

. meters from Moscow near Kubinka. There he met his second
wife, Lyudmila Yulianovna KOZHEVNIKOVA. [In 1964 and 1966
statements NOSENKO claimed he was not "resting" but was
hospitalized with tuberculosis for several weeks in January
and Februarvy.l ' : '

55 - 6301326
" 1S No. 197124
Top Secret Copy 10




 Top Secret

 (PRE-KGB BIOGRAPHY)

';1{-NOSENKO's Iﬁfo;matioﬁ¥1966@Apri;51“]f

- At an ‘intérview with the militaryaplacemen?’cbmmission‘-'g.

at the Institute before graduation, NOSENKO indicated that .. -
~he wanted to work in "some sort.of*a-militaryﬁbrggnization";
* Sopbn thereafter the chief of the’Institutefs special: section .
. gave him a telephoneé number to call. “NOSENKO recognized the.

- number as one belonging to the MGB [the predecessor of, and

. hereafter'referred,to;as; the KGB]. NOSENKO was invited to
v 'an»interview with1KGB:ofﬁicials‘who~qugried him about his
~background and his" knowledge of English. Later, however, '
- the chief of the Institute's special section informed - R
> NOSENKO that his qualifications were unsuitable for assign-
. ment: to the KGB. During the summer of 1950 "while state = -
v:~examinations,were”underway“"[in,éarlierfversions NOSENKQ
7 claimed the examinations were over in June], NOSENKO began
' to process for entry into the‘NaVal*RU,~through'Colonélg,
. KALOSHIN, the Chief of the'RUvPersonnel;Department,"He} :
.~ filled out questionnaires'in.dupliCate,’Wroteitwojautg-‘*rQffj
_,;RbiographiesAand,uianugust,orvSeptember;_Submitted'copigs,¢, 
vh7;of‘his‘diploma.'J[Note‘that this version of events omits. . .

"any .reféerence to delayed graduation caused by his having . .. |

- - to take a state examination a second. time.] For. the next . - = .
. ..nine 'months, until March 1951, -NOSENKO awaited being called .-~ -
~“to RU service. " [In earlier versions, . NOSENKO claims he.. . .- "

| entered the RU.in 1949 or 1950.] . -

A&7 0On-12 March 1951 NQSENKOgreceivedftwcuOrdersyfrom.theqi¢ﬂ
f?yNavaliMinistry,!one'calling:him‘to active Naval service and -
.-'the other assigning him.as a translator. to: the Intelligence - -
~ Unit 'of the Seventh Fleet in the Far East. On 13 March, -
on KALOSHIN's instruction,ﬁNOSENKOfreportedjto‘tnevMOSCow :
‘City,Military_CommissiOn-andjwasiissued:his_trayel~documents,f_

‘and NOSENKO departed Moscow - for his post on' 16 or 17 March.. . ..,

' " At the end of March NOSENKO arrived -at his post near e
Sovetskaya Gavan® and began work~in7the|Regorts'Segtion-pf

"theTSeventh'Fleet Intelligence Unit.

B | o © o . TS.No. 197124
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At the end of April 1952 NOSENKO left Sovetskaya Gavan'
on leave, arriving in Moscow on 28 April. [Note earlier
versions in which he was transferred because of illness,
and that he was permitted to return to Moscow because of
his father's birthday.] While on leave he became ill with
tuberculosis anfl spent almost two months in May and June.

1952 in a sanitorium near Moscow.

During the month of July 1952 NOSENKO was ordered to
the Naval Intelligence Point of the Fourth (Baltic) Fleet
in Sovetsk, in Kaliningradskaya Oblast (at the head of the
Bay of Gdansk). Sovetsk was a small village located on
the spit of land between Kaliningrad and Baltiysk. ([The
only Sovetsk in Kaliningradskaya Oblast is located many
miles inland from Kaliningrad, in the opposite direction
from Baltiysk. When NOSENKO was shown their locations on

- contemporary Soviet maps, he insisted that he was correct,

although Primorsk, where NOSENKO had said in 1962 that he
was assigned while in the Baltic, is located on a spit of
1and between Kaliningrad and Baltiysk.] NOSENKO remained
in "Sovetsk" but a short time, and he returned to Moscow
at the end of 1952 to seek another assignment. Before

his departure he was promoted to the rank of lieutenant -

of the Administrative Service. [In previous versions he

claimed to have become eligible for promotion and was
promoted while in the Far East, after less then a year's

- service.]

On 1 Januaryxl953 NOSENKO and his parents were guests at
the KOBULOV dacha. NOSENKO indicated his dissatisfaction

_with his RU assignment and KOBULOV promised to find him a

place in the KGB. -

From the middle of January to the middle of March 1953
NOSENKO was under treatment at the sanitorium near Moscow.
where he had been hospitalized in 1952, and there he became.
acquainted with his second wife, Lyudmila Yulianovna
KOZHEVNIKOVA. [NOSENKO's earlier accounts either omitted
reference to this period of hospitalization, or indicated

- that it was of considerably shorter duration.]

57 (001329
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NOSENKO s Informatlon 1966(October)
) In hlS most recent account, in October 1966 NOSENKO i
.~said. that before graduatlon from the Institute the military.
‘placement commission sent him to the KGB, but there he- was .
"~ told that he was not quallfled as a candldate because of !
. mediocre: academlc record and drlnklng habits. . NOSENKO ' sald
+he .did not mention this rejection earlier, because his- .
f_1nterrogators would not have believed. that he ever became:‘,t“
- a, KGB offlcer after once belng rejected.~._;5- - o

NOSENKO also Volunteered that he had "lled" when he
'clalmed to ‘have éentered the Naval RU in 1950, ' In fact, -
~i‘he sald, ‘he entered the RU in March 1951 and ‘was. on- actlve
ffduty in the Far East from 1951 untll l953.,[ﬁ e R

f‘lComment:,[Thls latest assertlon dlscredlts almost all
: ~. . lof his earller clains- regardlng ‘entry into-
~.theRU,  including the date of his graduatlon
. from the Institute; the .timing if not 'the - -
. fact of his. ‘promotion, the number, sequence, »g'f'
v+ and purposes of his visits®to Moscow, his . .
.. .hospitalization. with . tubercu1051s, and. hlS'“ L
jq#a551gnment to the Baltlc Fleet.,.u;~_f

EEE ; .

‘iNaval RU Serv1ce.u Summary and Conc1u51on‘~

;1“ Accordlng to NOSENKO s contradlctory statements, Wthh
,_are still unresolvéd after interrogations over .a: three-‘:f“%’ -
-~ year perlod,.he graduated from the Institute of Internatlonal
- Relations in ‘either 1949 or 1950. .- Before graduation,’ he. S
(a) was selected for Naval a551gnment, (b) 'sought a Naval .

‘ assignment, or. (c) was selected for and rejected by the

~ KGB 'and then he- sought an a551gnment to the RU; or, -

; ;31mmed1ately following graduation, or three months or nine
'i"months later (1n the follow1ng year), he was: called to‘“

o 01329 s
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active Naval service and assigned to the RU. With neither .
training nor indoctrination he was assigned initially to
the Far East for nine months or three years; there he
 participated in agents' operational training, or reports
work. In the<latter capacity he was or was not involved
in RU radio signals intercept operations. He either never
served in the Baltic or, if he did, it was for three
months or six months, during which he either participated
in agent training or was an administrative or political
officer. He was promoted to lieutenant in the Far East
or in the Baltic, after either seven mopths' or thirteen
months' RU service. - '

. Despite his claimed active commissioned service in the
Navy, NOSENKO knows nothing of Soviet Navy tradition,
doctrine, organization, or procedures. . He disé¢taims know-
ledge of RU organization other than at the posts where he
served, "because of his junior rank". However, even at
those posts he describes neither the staff, the functions

- nor the personnel intelligibly nor does he describe the
'~ posts' actual locations.

. The sole Headquarters RU officer NOSENKO identified was
"~ the personnel chief, Colonel KALOSHIN. . :He identified .no
ranking officers in either the Baltic or Far East intelli-
gence staffs. Some thirty GRU officers he did identify,
by his own admission, NOSENKO knew not from his Naval RU
service, but through social acquaintance, later, in Moscow,
-or through his visits to Geneva.

Conclusion.’ .

NOSENKO did not serve in the Naval RU in any of the
capacities at the places and times he claimed.

59 - weldz3e
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.. KGB .ENTRY

1l¢ulmihated_in”the Créationlof thercommittee}fof_*fu
~‘State Sequrity‘(KGB)jin MarchJ1954.-vVladimirF"gg~ :

- ;and ‘Evdokia PETROV, Yuri RASTVOROV,. and Petr: '\
“DERYABIN, among_pthérs; défected*infthefwake}ng

‘ 0£,thesejevents;uﬁFrom%information'they3prof}}5{;;;.
ﬁA:jﬁyided;.as~ngl_asgfromwthat.vauiredvfrOmlother»g"'
';g;sources;VCIA“has:a substantial “amount of infor--
.~ mation against“WhichkNOSENKO's accounts of ‘this. . .
’ vgiperiodumay befweighed;“'f",V";“_'f ";.;fg; L
L Eorjthe.convenienCe of the reader,  the term =

S MKGB" is uSéd'hereafter"tp refer as well to its

ﬂ;.predécessor;Qrganizatiohs'in 1953—15545 i

G , &In‘aﬁbiographic'stateﬁentgwritten"immediately
- after his defection, however, he asserted[his-KGB-serviCe?_;fTﬂ'-
-began-in;1952,“a'date“hefihsisted was correct even after .

. reminded‘heﬁhad,earlier¢said~l953.',Repe&téd)interrogations:
’ﬂf?nprOduced a variety of dates of. claimed KGB entry, ranging . -
. from "the beginning of 1952 to April 1953, a1l of which
: were'acdbmpénied”by modified accounts of the circumstances_x
~of his entry (as well as of his earlier period of serviceé.
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in the Naval RU and of his date of graduation from the
Institute of International Relations). To the extent to

- which he has been consistent at all, he has cited March 1953
as the time of his entry to the KGB.

k]

'Date 9£ Entrz

NOSENKO at his first meeting with CIA in Geneva in 1962,
volunteered how and when he joined the KGB. NOSENKO had
just returned from his Naval RU assignment in the Baltic,
he said, when he met KGB General KOBULOV and KOBULOV urged
him to join the KGB. NOSENKO stated that after completing
his processing, he reported for duty in the Embassy Section
of the Second Chief Directorate's American Department in
March 1953, "just after Stalin died". (Stalin died on
5 March 1953.) : '

Comment: According to KGB defectors, the precise date

: S of entry to the KGB would not likely to be
forgotten by a KGB officer. The date is the
'basis for computing-length of service and is
a common entry on KGB administrative forms
periodically filled out by KGB officers in the

course of their service.

’ Accordiﬁg'to NOSENKO in January 1964;'he transferred to
the KGB from the Naval RU "in something like 1952", "just
- after Yu. I. GUK transferred from the Second Chief Directo-
rate", ' '

Comment: GOLITSYN had reported that GUK was transferred
- out. of the Second Chief Directorate in January
1952,

6001330 °2
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In February 1964 NOSENKO wrote a blographlc statement in

‘which he noted that he entered the KGB. in 1952, and in’ whlch'

‘he back~dated by one year his 1962 account .of. hlS activities

' “in the period 1945-1955, Although he was then remlnded of:

his 1962 statement and the contradlctlon was dlscussed with

”“fl_hlm,’after study he indicated his approval by signing an .

official biographic statement (for the Intelligence Communlty)

, h"whlch indicated that he entered on duty w1th the KGB. in u

L :about May 1952

At the flrst hostlle 1nterrogatlon 1n Aprll 1964 NOSENKO

‘was confronted with his contradlctory claims. . In response,
. NOSENKO ‘stated that he returned to Moscow from-the Baltic. in-
. August 1952 [by most of his other. accounts, NOSENKO returned
" .in January 1953] and entered the KGB on 5-7 September 1952.

dy';By March 1953, NOSENKO stated he had already worked . in the

fhls earlier cldims that: he’ ]Olned the KGB variously .in
-January 1952, September. 1952,' or March’ 1953, NOSENKO - .« - =
- 'asserted that the truth was that his service dated from March
01953, after’ Stalin's. ‘death. He ‘went on to. explaln that he '

Embassy - Sectlon for some months agalnst American correspon- .
dents, and it was "just after Stalin's death, after the '

Lf_reorganlzatlon" ‘that he assumed” respon51b111ty for. operations .

;.. ‘against American Army Attache personnel. - [NOSENKO ultlmately

. . settled on June or July 1954 as the tlme of thlS rea551gnment
' “See P 84 .1 AT BT . : ST

Challenged in- Aprll 1964 to resolve the" contradlctlons of

finished his Institute studies 1n 1949 (sic), "defended hlS.

.ﬁﬂdlploma and then failed one of ‘the four required State:
“lexamlnatlons.‘ All four’ examlnatlons, he said, he had to°

take ‘over again, and as a result he didn't receive his dlploma

:aﬂ}untll 1950 although. he "officially" graduated in 1949. _ {L,;~y
. NOSENKO said’ that to “avoid admlttlng “this unpleasant’ thlng"~%”{»4
“~he claimed he joined: the KGB in 1952 and after claiming. that

-~ to be a.fact, "did not want to. correct it, to twist it around..
~.again". NOSENKO went on to say that the actual date of entry .

';; was whlle Stalin was still alive, on "12 or 15 March 1953" kS
or about 15 March l953.<, T , : R
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Comment: NOSENKO's explanation takes no account =
" " fact that he had already said (in 1962)
he joined the KGB in March 1953.

KGB defectors describe the period irmms
following Stalin's death in the KGB as <=
extensive reorganization and uncertaintcy’

. which new candidates were not being accsrzTal,
Other evidence of the improbability of ZCSZXXO's
entering the KGB in March 1953 is discusss2

below.

I
i

,i

$
fi

b

. NOSENKO repeated during 1965 interrogations the <&

. 13-15 March 1953. In 1966, however, in a written statament,
he said he entered the KGB on 2 April 1953, but a weex lzter,
in another signed statement, he said it was. the "micils of

~Maxrch 1953". . o

" In his final interrogation in October 1966 NOSENFQO s=zid
‘he entered the: KGB in March 1953 .and he acknowledgec tIiac
he had lied, and had known. at the time he was lying, wian
he had said he joined in 1952. Asked by his interrcgazcrs

.why he had lied, NOSENKO said, "There was no sense.” Zg
went on to explain’ that because he was only an averace
student and a heavy drinker, he had been found unsuitalls
by the KGB-entry commission when he first applied in 1333;

. he had tried to conceal this by adjusting his accoumt v

. one year, since his interrogators would not have believed
that he was eventually accepted by the KGB after an ez=rlier
rejection. v ‘ - .. *

‘The Role 9£ Genéral_Bogdan:ZaMﬂgovich'KOBULGV

In all of his accounts NOSENKO has attributed tc Ge=n

eral
KOBULOV's initiative and intervention his entry to The XGB.
'Inlthefaccountuwhich>he-volunteeredvin.Geneva +o CIx ==
1962, NOSENKO said KOBULOV was a friend of the elde= XISEXXO

whom he met when the KGB General "dropped by" the i
dacha outside of Moscow, and KOBULOV at the time (
7053"7) was First Deputy to Beriya, the Minister of

64
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.. then=-MVD, NOSENKO sald that when KOBULOV learned of NOSENKO s
;'dlssatlsfactlon with the Naval RU, KOBULOV encouraged him"’
< to enter. counterlntelllgence and invited him to visit the
W,;“General s offlce.i NOSENKO said he did not, but nevertheless
- 'received a weéek later a telephone call from the KGB Personneluu'
Office asking him to appear at the secretariat of General  —

KOBULOV and informing him ‘that General KOBULOV had already

' Wﬁj_arranged for a bulldlng pass.

NOSENKO gave a’ dlfferent, somewhat more detalled account

5; in April 1964, In this ‘'version, he first met KOBULOV, a. -

friend of the NOSENKO famlly,’ln February 1953, NOSENKO sald‘m

”?<KOBULOV had visited his. father in the latter's office, and
that evening ‘the: elder NOSENKO brought him to the NOSENKO

i dacha to spend the weekend. -. [NOSENKO had just before. been™

"*gGermany after being ' summoned by Beriya or someone",-and:
. .on "maybe the 10th of March" NOSENKO received a call from ,“- .
7ffKOBULOV's assistant. ~NOSENKO claimed he’ reported to KOBULOV's:
“.office; and although he waited two hours to see the General,_;
_‘the latter was busy elsewhere.- Instead of seeing KOBULOV, -
-T'however, NOSENKO said he was flnally taken to the office-

informed by his 1nterrogators that KOBULOV was at that tlme

. posted in Germany, not in Moscow.]. Accordlng to NOSENKO, .

- ‘KOBULOV .was in Moscow on a short visit from Germany.,f"My .
father invited.him to. spend Saturday night and: Sunday...On
Sunday’ we were playing: billiards and KOBULOV asked me . what-

- - I was doing, and I told him I was at the disposal of: the - -

©. - (Naval RU) .Personnel Department and that I didn't want. to -

“. .return to the Baltic." . 'NOSENKO 'said that  KOBULOV. offered

“ " to-call the -KGB Pérsonnel Office and have them. "look - -

_'~NOSENKO over",,and NOSENKO assented, after which He tw1ce,
:#v151ted the: Personnel Offlce where he filed completed forms
NOSENKO asserted that KOBULOV. did not forget, because "just

as soon as STALIN. dled 'KOBULOV immediately returned from -

. of Second: Chief Direéctorate Deputy Chief SHUBNYAKOV, B who ﬁ*ﬁ

f"assmgned hlm forthw1th to the Embassy Sectlon of the Amerlcan
‘Department. ~ ST R : : LT

In Aprll 1964 NOSENKO 1ntroduced a new varlant. He sald

--that he met KOBULOV while- accompanylng his parents on a’

visit in. January to KOBULOV's dacha [NOSENKO had" prev1ously

f;fgraphlcally described KOBULOV's weekend visit at the elder
- NOSENKO's], KOBULOV intervened in his behalf, and he was A
‘called to the KGB Personnel Office to be interviewed and. to

es . 6004335
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receive necessary forms. NOSENKO stated that he heard
notning further until after Stalin's funeral, when he was
summoned to KOBULOV's office and afterwards assigned to
the Second Chief Directorate.

Durlng the July 1965 interrogations NOSENKO retracted
his earlier claim that KOBULOV and his father had been close
personal friends. He stated that his father's relationship
with KOBULOV was not personal, and that KOBULOV had never
v151ted the NOSENKOs. :

In a biographic- statement written in April 1966, NOSENKO
-said that he had met KOBULOV but twice, once on 1 January
1953 at the latter's dacha, and the second and last time in
the elder NOSENKO's office as NOSENKO's father and KOBULOV
were departlng to attend Stalin's funeral. On that latter
- occasion, NOSENKO claimed, KOBULOV promised to concern him-
- self with NOSENKO's entry into the KGB and it was several
- days later that NOSENKO was summoned to KOBULOV's office '
' and told ne was app01nted to the KGB.

.- Comment: General Bogdan Zakharovich KOBULOV was a career
- T security official, but from the immediate post~
war period until after Stalin's death he was
not assigned to KGB Headquarters. As of 1952,
he was posted to Germany with the Chief
o . Directorate of Soviet Properties Abroad, then
e directly subordinate not to the MVD but to the
: Council of Ministers and latterly to the
‘Ministry of Forelgn Trade. Until he returned
from Germany in March 1953 to assume the
p051t10n of Béeriya's deputy, he had no office
in KGB Headquarters. KOBULOV was arrested ,
with Beriya in June 1953, and also later executed.
In light of the foregoing, it is-improbable
that KOBULOV was instrumental in NOSENKO's
appointment'to the KGB at the times NOSENKO
claimed. ' If KOBULOV ever interceded in
NOSENKO's behalf, it is probable that NOSENKO
would later have been purged after KOBULOV's
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« .and Beriya's arrest and execution. NOSENKO's -

“"eventual retraction of his assertion that his: .= :
FRRI o father and. KOBULOV were intimate acquaintances
©.o.os - makes it the more unlikely that KOBULOV played = -’

*ZAf[Cémméﬁt:T;(COntinued)fhf:

. anY-r01e'atfanygtime in'NOSENKOYs.appointment~ e
. to the KGB. =~ .. . - T

 Bligibility

jqu;uThroughéutathe‘varicus7ye:SiOnstOSENKo:has"prOVided}j' b
. about his .entry to the KGB, heé has emphasized how influen=':
“tial was his fatherﬂsrprominentfpositionﬂin’thenSOViet“%q*“”

GOVeENMent. ... .. .. . xR

. ‘Comment: ' In the period 1953-1954,.during which NOSENKO -
.. claimed he entered the KGB, it .was. KGB policy . .. 7.
to avoid recruitigg~the“phildrenzoﬁ]sgnio;;uj;#

Soviet officials.™ -

‘

. NOSENKO ééséfﬁé’thétfhé}waé.réjeétea~for»KGB“appoiﬁﬁﬁénﬁi »

Lo

“eligible in 1953 for KGB.appointment than he - °
- was at: the time of his rejection. R

6001337
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NOSENKO states that in March 1953 he was already twenty-
five and a half years old, a member of only the Komsomol,
and that he had not been recommended for Party membership.
He further claimed that on entry to the KGB he became
secretary of the Second Chief Dlrectorate Komsomol organi-
zation. : :

Comment: Eligibility for Party membership, if not
- membership itself, is a requisite for KGB

appointment. By Komsomol statutes,of that time,
twenty-five was at that time the maximum age.
Thus, at the time of NOSENKO's claimed KGB
appointment, he was within six months of being
dropped by the Komsomol as well as still

‘unqualified for Party membership. He could

,not ‘have been. secretary of the Second Chief =
Directorate Komsomol organlzatlon, as dlscussed

- on P 338.

NOSENKO has referrpd frequently to hav1ng contracted
tuberculOSLS for whlch he ‘was perlodlcally hospitalized.

' ‘Comment: According to KGB defectors familiar with the
L . 'standards in- force at the time, no candidate
‘was accepted who had ever had tuberculosis.

KGBmProcéSSing‘fbr:Entry

NOSENKO has stated (in chronological order) that at his
initial interview with a KGB personnel, it was not necessary
for him to complete any forms or questionnaires since the
KGB-had his Naval RU file; that he was told that the KGB
would request the Naval RU file and meanwhile he was given
three copies of a four to six-page biographic form to complete
at home; and (at his last interrogation in 1966) that he
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never 5poke to. any KGB personnel offlcers nor VlSlted the

personnel offlce (and thus completed no. forms provmded by
them) T : :

o

L,

‘Comment : fThe most 1mportant document fllled out by ;
- - . . prospective KGB officers was a detailed: 16~page
) - . personal. history questionnaire, Anketa :
" spetsialngo naznachenlya sotrudnika KGB, whlch
' was completed in one copy only. - Classified’
even when blank, the form was not permitted to
. be taken home.. KGB. defectsrs have described
's]completlon of the form "as an experience not
. “likely to be forgotten". WNOSENKO omits in all
i .accounts- reference to -other documents’ which are -
~:.known to -have . ‘been. requlred in connection w1th "
Ta KGB offlcer s proce551ng for duty.,

_,,NOSENKO lnSlStEd that he took no: phy51ca1 examlnatlon 1n
connectlon w1th proce551ng for KGB entry,

;CommentiotA medlcal examlnatlon was a routlne and mandatory

o v ... . part of a KGB candidate's process1ng._ Former

. "KGB defectors ¢ould think .of no. 1nstance in. .

" .which" the examlnatlon could be waived,. partl—'t

ﬂ&}cularly for a. candldate w1th a recorded hlSt ry
”of tubercu1051s. S :

e NOSENKO clalms 1n all of hlS accounts that he entered the
.- KGB building and, with a pass obtained ‘at the Pass Offlce, .
- .was permitted to proceed without escort. - NOSENKO spec1flcally

Vfasserted that the ‘name of the 1nterv1ewer dld not appear on
»‘the pass..y~ﬂ o

“

[0001339-'
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- Comment:

Top Secret

Persons not holding a valid KGB identity

. document were not permitted entry to or move-

ment in the building without escort. The

interviewer's name did appear on the building

pass. The interviewer's name was essential
to the issuance of the pass: the interviewer

" had complete responsibility for the visitor's

custody while on KGB premises.

Initial Service in KGB (1953)

NOSENKO stated that in the perlod of Beriya, in March-

dlrectorate,

.. intelligence
- reversed- for

Successor .

Comment: -

" June 1953, the two existing directorates were the First
. Chief Directorate, which was the foreign intelligence

and the Second Chief Directorate, the counter-
directorate. The designations were later
a few-months, he said, by Kruglov, Berlya s

Beriya reversed the designations of the First
and Second Chlef Directorates in March 1953,

and they were not changed back until March 1954.

NOSENKO does not know how his own directorate
was designated either at the. time he allegedly _
entered on duty or during his entire flrst

year of KGB service.

NOSENKO described the KGB 1dent1ty document of the-: perlod,

but in spite

of repeated questlonlng could not recall any-

thlng unusual about 1t.

6301340
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flongev1ty pay, plus 500 rubles. "rank pay" @as a lleutenant.>

‘dld not recelve the pay for rank

“Top Secret

- (KGB ENTRY) -

.

; COmment:””Tw1ce, follow1ng Stallﬁ s death in March 1953
ST land” again  following Beriya's arrest in June .
-1953, all KGB identity. documents were. temporarlly
‘recalled for revalidation.  On both occasions
,fnew stamps. were placed on the: document, lacking
.. which the bearer could no longer enter the KGB-

. installation.. KGB defectors state that the -~
ﬁfevents were the toplc of numerous anecdotes at
Af'the tlme. AV - :

NOSENKO clalms he recelved no tralnlng in . the KGB, but

zwas assigned .operations. responsibilities. 1mmed1ately upon
reporting for duty. ‘He had explained that- training was
«unnecessary because of hls Naval RU: experlence.

Héoﬁﬁent NOSENKO s lack of tralnlng 1s unllke that of

.?;hy NOSENKO S .own account, pr0v1ded llttle 1f

rubles as a case offlcer, plus secrecy, language and

He recalled that there was ‘one year,V1954, when KGB offlcers

.'*KGB offlcers rank pay Was- abollshed in e
iSeptember 1952 and not" restored until Aprll

--"1954, 'a period which ‘covers NOSENKO's flrst
dear of clalmed serv1ce in: the KGB.

B S 0001341
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NOSENKO claimed that he was promoted to the rank of senior
lieutenant in ZApril 1953, shortly after joining the KGB.

- "Comment: All promotions in the KGB were frozen from the

‘ ‘ time Beriya became Minister in March 1953
until late 1953. NOSENKO's actual sequence of
promotions has never been established. He has
also claimed this promotion occurred in 1952
rand in 1954. See p. 351. T

NOSENKO acknowledged that his qualifications for continued
KGB service were probably reviewed in connection with the
- purges following both Stalin's death and Beriya's arrest,
during which reviews numerous negative factors in his back-
-ground would have come to light. He stated, however, that
he could only assume that the important and influential
position of his own father outweighed the negative factors.

- Comment: NOSENKO has never mentioned any influence his
' ST - father had on his KGB service aside from that
o, _ exercised through KOBULOV, who was himself
e o arrested and executed.

Other Aspects Relevant to 1953 KGB Service

NOSENKO insisted that the KGB was organized from components
of the MVD not earlier than lgte 1954 or early 1955,

72 .
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' Comment: The KGB was organized in March 1954, in a ‘final
- . reform of Beriya's organization of Soviet. . -
security agencies.V,Preceded by a series of B
. _ i n of the KGB would Presumably:
be memorable to a KGB officer serving in Moscow .
' Héadquarters at the time., ~ = S

: . 'NOSENKO stated that the MVD Intelligence Directorate .
PRI ,(subsequently to.become_thefKGB First“Chiequirectorate)[»'
- was located in 1953 in four‘buildin§s,,including the )
7 Agricultural Exhibition;and,the.FKIv(Committee‘oijnforfﬂ
~<mation) Building". S P o S

C

5*ffComméntrj;ThéiAgricultufal,Exhibitioh-and_theﬁfKI‘[Sg?'35_-“
S ?[Building””werejone;and the same. From hisg =

= (a-combined foreign'intelligence;agepcy);;u

¢ ceased to éxist,ih,lQSl;'a-matter_perhaps5k-
. unfamiliar . to .a KGB officer serving at a -
-A,'subStantially”later¢time,;but:one which -
- other KGB[officérsxSerVingiin Moscow -in -
‘-¢[.1953-recalledgeasily ar SRR

“Ht;,ﬁNOSENKovdidfhét”kndWVWhefé7thérchieffD'"
C-Militia was located iq 1953—;954;;."75ﬂw;

.~ Comment:" Actording.to KGB defectors, a staff officer in
T ,ﬂgthe:CounterintelligenCe-Directorate'af'the time g
~~would have had frequent occasion to deal with. .~
- the Chief Directorate of the Militia.. Cn

. 6001343
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KGB Entry: Summary and Conclusion

NOSENKO's assertiohs regarding the KGB in the 1953-1954
period throw no more light on the actual date of his KGB
entry than did his claims of when he transferred from the
Naval RU:; the contradictions and inconsistencies are
interrelated.

It is possible that a former KGB officer, relating the
truth as he recalls it about events occurring ten years
earlier, could be inconsistent; that he could forget his
date of entry, not remember what administrative procedures
 were, fail to recall the circumstances of the organization
.. he joined were, be inaccurate about what his pay was, and

be vague on what his KGB identification document looked

like. Recognizing that administrative regulations and
©'.°. . procedures are on .occasion honored in the breach, it is
e also possible that NOSENKO was accepted by the KGB despite
‘the fact that he was the son of a senior official, that he
had tuberculosis, that he was unqualified for Party member-
ship, that he had been previously rejected and all at a
time when the KGB was not accepting new recruits.

~ The probability of these events being coincident, however,
'is remote. On examination, NOSENKO's latest admission, that
‘he "actually" entered the KGB in March 1953, is no better
substantiated  than: earlier accounts citing other dates.

Conclusion

' NOSENKO did not enter the KGB in the manner nor at the
“time he claimed. :

74
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CHAPTER V

T AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION OF AMERICAN DEPARTMENT
e ] . : (ca. 1953~ June 1955)

&

g NOSENKO clalms to have’ ‘served in the Amerlcan Embassy R
_JSectlon of the. Amerlcan Department (Second Chief Dlrectorate)
; from his entry in the KGB until June 1955. ‘His targets
j¢dur1ng this period were at first American. correspondents
residing in'Moscow -and later Army ‘Attache’ personnel of- the
‘American’ Embassy.-in Moscow. His assignment- 1nvolv1ng (ERTRIIRE
“American’ correspondents lasted anywhere from six to eighteen .
months (dependlng on the various dates he .claimed he entered
the KGB). ' His -involvement with the Army Attaches: lasted '
from sometime in 1954 untll his: transfer to the Seventh
fDepartment 1n June 1955 g

e NOSENKO has sought to av01d dlscu551on of hls own or‘nj
*other KGB act1v1t1es durlng thlS entire. perlod whlch he o
-characterlzed on’ ‘occasion ‘as "not relevant" or:"of no
conseguence”, . He has repeatedly stated that he "found
‘himself". only after this initial KGB 'service in’ the Amerlcan
Embassy Section.: Untll then, he: asserted, -he ‘was ‘a wastrel
and "did not pay attention to the work". (Heé:HKHas: varlously
‘dated his- self~- —~discovery as occurring in. 1955 when he .
" transferred to the Seventh Department~ in June 1956 in

‘ connection with his participation in and award for. the[EEﬁEt}Oé
»case; and after August 1956 when the death of hlS fath

.forced hlm to pull hlmself together ) .

Operatlons Agalnst Amerlcan Correspondents 5(‘ SR

L NOSENKO exempted hlmself from reportlng detalls of KGB

. work against any spe01flc American. correspondent in Moscow -

- in 1953-1954 by saying that, as a new, very junior employee

. ¢ - he had no access to operational files and did not partici-,
”ﬂ'vpate”personelly 1n“the handling of any of the correspondents.
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Although able to identify correspondents in Moscow who were

then recruited KGB agents, NOSENKO learned this information
either in conversations with his superior (V.A.] KOZLOV ox

at some point and in some undefined way after he no longex

was working against these targets. NOSENKO made clear that

he was not the case officer responsible for the more important
correspondents: "g¥OZLOV himself was working with them, the
chief of the section himself--with EﬁAPIR@}ﬁwith[EﬁAPIRO s Db
"I also know that KOZLOV was working with [WEITNEY] D4

and with {(Andrew J.) STEIGER. D¢ For each of these persons
there was an operational fife which I did not see.," According

-+o0 NOSENKO, he was in no way involved withiE?EIGEﬁ?and@Q
nEdmund,STEVENg} American correspondents who he alleged were

Tecruited agefits of the KGB.

Comment : {EﬁAPIRE&was identified as a KGB agent by
T ' 'GOLITSY% in 1961, before the lead was received
from NOSENKO.(, BHAPIRO!s KGB agent cryptonym,
‘'known to NOSENKO and COLITSYN, appears in the
. CHPREPANOV papers: (see p.309). The KGB
defector Nikolay KHORHLOV in April 1954 b
-identified tﬁé_?oliéa—born.wifé~ofﬁ§BITNE§)as_‘
- a KGB agent, an allegation which she denied.

- NOSENKO said his early months in the job were spent
reading personality»(notAoperational) files on a number of
the correspondents in Moscow , (none of which indicated the
individual's,develppmental or agent status) and familiarizing

‘himselwaith-KGB,methods,"uLater NOSENKO was assigned‘the

"agent network"” ox drivers,.clerical‘personnel,~and-domestics.
surrounding four of the correspondents, [SHAPIRO, GILMORE, 6%0@06
SALISBURY] and TRHITNEY3 He met with his agents periodically

to deternine whether they had developed any important infor-
mation. His superior KOZLOV often went along to the meetings
with NOSENKO, first to show lhim how to handle the agents and
afterward whenever something interesting would begin to

develop. In fact, according to NOSENKO, KOZLOV would

accompany him to meetings with these soviet citizens-agents

when there was even a hint that something of interest might
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‘déVelopf ‘NQSENKO hés‘desciibed some of‘theséfagentsuin’LA
 general terms, but for all but 'a few he-recallediheither:a“
jAtheirfnameSjnor,personalia concérning‘them. e :

. Db

S e T ~-% y 06  0éT7fv*f.“f»
. KGB Files on|SHAPIRO, GILMORE: SALIS URY land T7HITNEY|S .

_ 0n the*day-dE7his%écgépténCé into the KGB, NOSENKO - %, '
stated that he‘Was-taken,dirECtly to the offices of the:
”Z;American.Embassy Section, . There he metvtheAsection,chief;

V.A. KOZLOV, who told NOSENKO that he would take over the’ .

‘p-g;fworkfaf;the-depa:ting:case'ofﬁicer,‘Cappain Anatoliy .
: -'?TORMOZOV;Ain operations against American COrrespbndents,in.'
'“.--,Moscow;g;*p R U L S

&S

- When NOSENKO reported for work the ‘following day, he -~
. found ajdesk;inJRoomWGlS,ahd,;“There weregthree;other_guysﬁ
.. sitting there,.-At~firstiI:Was;running traces,;andlétztheff
" same time T was reading the'fileS'on'jOurnalistsig;5ﬁI*ﬁhink
‘there were seven files 'in all, and T didn't see any other." -
. NOSENKO listed,these‘files,asﬂgggge bn;Hgg;ijﬁKE;BOifﬁaa§1% 04
| T CILUORE] (a5 vell as ones S(ETiOREls wite (SrRpBRYAREONETL Y
 Gnrnee oy CHERMYSHEVA), TRarrison SALISBURYand [ThomaSy,

©. . NOSENKQsidentified(SHAPIRO)as an "old ‘agent of ‘eurs". . *

" He Said“th‘tj@g;@NEi}ﬂwdrked,for;us“while he was in Moscow
%*and@ggve*us_sqme-materialj bu§;hg;refused.tO'wOrkqur,uSE“._
-when: he left the_country"SQIQILMOREF\NQSENKO said, was an

;éctiVeiredruitmentgtarget,in~1§53féﬁd,l954; but“NOSENKO;S“[*

ﬁﬁdidqnot,knowuwhetherjhgﬂﬂas;regrqited._<_ikewisg,ahe-did;~-A

| not know the status of*@ALIsnggg}hs of 1953, = s

o fl}NOSENxbfStreSSed_thatuthe[
. during the early period of hi
" i mental files (delo formulyar)
.fifiles"of;the*agents.; The
:-sensitive, and-from them “"you w
~ .7 out: whether :he (the: subject of - the file : 1 R
:ﬂnot":r.NOSENKO'explained'thét,’opde a person became an ‘agent,
+ another file ié"set-up,fand these agent fileSJWere”held-byf-;
'~the‘chiefjof‘thé}séctién,‘KQZLOV. NOSENKO stated that he .
read ‘the files on the seven persons "slowly and made some -,
L 6xtra¢ts‘forumyself_in]my perspnal-1ogfesuchfthingswas‘j e

files hefWaS givéﬁ £6}fead£ e
S KGB service were develop- .. .
rather than the operational =

B 6001347
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notations of their dates of arrival, things I could not
remember". He was also given the files on the agents -

surrounding these correspondents, their drivers, maids,
and cooks. o ’

Agents Reporting on Correspondents

NOSENKO said he~w§§ responsible for handling the agents
. who were reporting o @'HAPIR(T‘, EIHI%IE‘E], @ALISBUR‘gﬁband the
,M)@FLMORE@ and met themArqu%afiy‘to learn whether "anything
' Was new, whom did’@HAPIRQi%bet, what might be interesting
in his behavior, &Hat might be suspicious in his behavior, -
whom he is contacting, etc". He then reported to KOZLOV and
would sometimes prepare a written report of his. conversations
~ with the agents.. asked to describe these meetings, NOSENKO
‘replied: e o e ‘ S

~ E

‘ "Tet us take the same case of[EﬁAPgRﬁﬂ I would
meet drivers about three times a month or even two
~times.pAt the meeting I would ask the driver what
was n%¥¥'n(§HAggR§}s behavior since our last meeting,
" whethe¥® [SHAPIRO| had suspicious contacts with forei-
”gners,;about.his,meetings with Russians, were they
conducted openly or, perhaps, waS{EHAPIR@}walking(jQ-
- behind the -person. he met. . And then the man [agent] |
. would begin his report. Of course, if he spots o -
anything suspicious he calls immediately, and I ' .
would see him the next morning. Otherwise, 1 would - l
+ell. him ‘at the meeting that T would see him again
in. about -ten days or in two weeks, but if there was
something interesting he should call immediately. : L
"1t was the same with the maid and the cook. Upon - 1
returning to the office I-would have to report to
. KOZLOV about my meetings, either orally or in
" writing. If, for example, [V.M.] KOVSHUK [also of
the American Embassy section] had a meeting with his
agents, he too had to report immediately to KOZLOV.
1If the meetings were taking place late in the day
and lasted until midnight or later and there were
no written materials submitted at the meeting, I
could go home and then report the next morning."”
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“K~LASISCHKE NOSENKO ‘Said that KOSIENKO. “never ‘'

oy

HLTQ@'$ECFé?u

'_*TtAMERICAN EnBAssr.sEchoN —‘ca.'1953eJuneﬂ1955)

KOZLOV accompanled NOSENKO to meetlngs w1th the varlous

;jagents surrounding the correspondents.' "At first he was .
. ‘teaching me. .Then he. would go in cases when somethlng
Yﬁlnterestlng would begin to .develop, even when it hadn't :
." . yet begun to develop but’ when there may have been a hlnt r],_
’"Mjln a case of some other case” offlcer.?A : ; L

NOSENKO s agent network con51sted malnly of domestlc and

- clerical personnel. in-contact with the’ correspondents and
“V:thElr famllles.; Asked to descrlbe them, he sald.‘ o

‘ ”1“My flrst agent Qé a woman agent, a’ cook who-
" was. working at[éILMOREY\>p1ace. She also. worked
- at the Assoc1ated Press later.. Her codename was’
-"AGLODINA'. a funny one." - (While. rev1ew1ng a llSt
< "of Soviets. employed by Amerlcans in Moscow, NOSENKO
" in the 'fall of 1965 identified 6ne Yelena S.,v;A

'kfiKOSIENKO as his. former agent "AGLODINAY. “At" that

' time he told: CIA that he had taken over KOSIENKO
- .from TORMOZOV: upon enterlng the Amerlcan Embassy
{Sectlon in ‘19535 ~that :she" subsequentl worked:
‘for and reported of @?LMORE]S ‘successor;j.. 1chardBOé

?pprov1ded ‘any ‘interesting 1nformatlon ) *“My second_
- agent was- a chauffeur whose cryptonym, I think, was,
YSERGEY'. I think’ was driving for\@HITNEﬂﬁf}é

" :Then I also had[:HAPIR@ s}chauffeur, a funny. llttle
vafellow. “In other words " charwomen, chauffeurs,*‘
_gwas my agentura [agent network] “~3f'“

fAlthough NOSENKO was . able to. glve a. breakdown ‘of this net—~,*7
_work’ in terxms of -the number and type of agents targetted - B
-~ against. partlcular individuals, he had forgotten their true‘tj“
g‘names and could not provide personallty information on any:
. - ©of them. . He explalned‘v "I don't remember now. They all. .
'J'passed by like'a' river-because they . were. turned over often."vﬁ‘V
..~ NOSENKO did recall that it was he who‘selected ‘and : handled -
' the agent who was placéd 1n{§BAPIRgl,5
.. “this agent had earlier worked in t
‘xil'an Engllsh language newspaper publlshed in Moscow.,;~;

office as ‘a: secretary,
offices of Moscow News,

| o 6661049
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NOSENKO estimated that he was responsible for handling
ten to twelve agents in operations against the correspon—
dents. This, he said, was & normal load, although more

experienced case officers might have as many as fifteen.
'1JOSENKO described his agentura as follows: -

: _ _Target = Agents
S 'Eﬁ?dy GILMOR?X@Q‘ o Two agents: the cook and the
: driver; one operational contact,

o . a part—time'cleaqing girl; and ,
. o a girlfriend of [GILMORE] s sister- 0
S el in-law and[éiLMORE's Russiaé]wife.

3

@homas gErTNEY) 0 o¢e agent, his drivers WSERGEY" .
o Yﬁenry SHAPIR5\ﬁt?'1 e Three’agents}igﬁAPIRéfs secretary
e e LT : and his'chauffeur, plus an old

. woman who was a relative-of
 pk{5HAPL G's wife and 1ived with -
“ai, Ethe EHAPIROS| in Moscow. (The

"secr tary and chauffeur later _ -

worked forfgiﬁneth BRODNEY} and®d

reported: on him to NOSENKO;:

lf,if “jA';;_ffi.-w§6f§§ODNE§}tempqrarily tookﬁgﬁAPIRﬁﬁs 4
_ Qé)'-“. IR % acexianQscow;, ST R

Eﬁexrison SALISBﬁﬁ?} . Two agehts;E%yLISBURi?s‘driver,.
S : SRCEN and a part—time-cledhing girl.

B NOSENKO'classifiedwtwoﬂother.of his agents as "neutral®,
" in that. they did not-have‘specifiC”targets on-whom_toureport.
The'firSt.of'thesedwasithe director of MOSGRAN, & Russian-
- language training‘program fbr'foreignersuin'Moscow._ His .
' cryptonym was "RAKETA" but. NOSENKO could not recall his true
name. The second “VOLODINA“,‘Was»a'female teacher in this - '
same program who jpnstructed some of the correspondents, and :
Embassy employees in their homesi he could not recall the
tyue name of “yOLODINA" . when NOSEMNKO was relieved of his
responsibility for the COrrespondents in 1954, he turned over . l
all of his agents toO other caseé officers in the American
Embassy section with the exception of "RAKETA" and nyOLODINA" ‘

whom he continued to handle in his work with Army Attaches.
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- -OperationszgainStiﬁ;S.7Arm§‘AttachehPersonnelLE:Jf

NOSENKO clalmed spec1flc respon51b111ty for work agalnst

fAmerlcan Army Attaches during twenty months of 1954-55,
rjperlod in which' NOSENKO claimed no supervisory respon51b111ty
. to divert his attention from personal operational duties. ..

;(NOSENKO, explalnlng why he did not know more details about-

' the Embassy. Section's targets while ‘he was its’ deputy chlef
- in 1960-1961, said that as a supervisor. he was too busy L
. overseeing subordlnates. - Hence, NOSFNKO ‘continued, he céuld -

not- be expected: to remember as many such details as would

" be possible had he been a.case officer. worklng dally on only

.four or five targets. -Elsewhére; he contrasted operations

Jg‘fagalnst tourlsts, Who often came and went 1n a matter of a 7_
.. few days,,w1th the work agalnst the "service attaches and

diplomats permanently.stationed -in Moscow, who could be

Xz;ystudled systematlcally and slowly )

: NOSENLO has sald 1n dlfferent contexts that as. the o
”Amerlcan Depantment case officer’ respon51ble for operatlons
‘against Army Attaches he received and was respons1ble for-

‘assimilating the product of a wide variety of sources ‘on the
individuals who were: his targets..- Hé has mentioned infor-

" ‘mation received .from ‘the. KGB First Chief (Foreign- Inte111~.ﬁ”
i gence) Dlrectorate,.the ‘Archives of the MGB/MVD/KGB‘?and

" the mlcrophones which were emplaced about a year before
w;gNOSENKO entered the Amerlcan Department. L

" Comment:
S § o1 ‘the- Army Attache offlces ‘were- hlS most
]valuable ‘source ‘of 1nformatlon on his: targets
" .of ‘1954-1955;"-that- he ‘kKnew- nothlng .of these.
Jmlcrophones until he re<entered. the Embassy
"Seé&tion. in '1960; and that he learned of thelr
.“existence; durlng 1953 1955 but not where any E
| were located : : .
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Information was also received according to NOSENKO from the
network of Soviet chauffeurs, cooks, language instructors,
and other agents in the Embassy; permanent and roving
surveillance patrols outside the Embassy; fixed observation
posts next to, acrosé from and near the Embassy; advance
notification of intent to travel by the attaches and their
itineraries; and reports from outside Moscow, including
surveillance, agent networks, the Militia, and the military.
The point of collecting and assimilating this information,
NOSENKO said, was to be able to know what the military
attaches were doing in Moscow and thereby to control their
intelligence collection activities. Far less important was
the goal of recruiting military attaches; MOSENKO knew of
only a. few instances when this was attempted, and all of

'?hege.efforts allegedly failed.

The KGB's principal interest in control rather than

. recruitment has been NOSENKO's explanation for knowing .little

about the backgrounds and personal 1ives of his targets--such
information, he stated, simply was not pertinent to the

primary,missibn»of_control. He has also used this explana-
tion to support his assertion that there were no recruitments

© of American military personnel during'this.periOd.

' _Comment: NOSENKO's aésértibﬁ_ﬁhat the KGB's mission was

to control_rather than-to'recruit”American'

~ militdry'attacheslisACOntradicted by the

. emphasis KGB tradition and doctrine place on
conducting operations against the United -
States, thée."main enemy", in the KGB parlance,
in this case American officials with access to
'.classified;information, who. were residing in

© the Soviet Union.: 0. v .

'In the USSR, especially in the early 1950's

prior to the U-2 reconnaissance, the Service .
Attache travel program was the primary means -
by which the U.S. Armed Forces acquired intelli-
gence information on the Soviet Union's
military~industrial complex. The prevention

- or inhibition of this collection activity fell
consequently to KGB components concerned with

the security of military-industrial installations,

82
TS No. 197124

001 3¢ |
01352 Top Secret Copy




- Top Secret R
B (MIERibAN’EMBASSY'-'sE'c'T'Ion‘ ~'ca. 1953-June 1955)

. Comment: (Contlnued) , :
Cherr s with transportatlon fac111t1es, and’ w1th the
_..geographic regions "to which the Service-
- _Attaches travelled. Approval of’ Serv1ce
© - Attache travel itineraries was not. ‘'within the
‘competence: of a case officer w1th1n the Embassy
-~ Section; the determination would have to- ‘have
“'been made by officials concerned with" the
_USSR's mllltary and industrial securlty and .
.- aware of reciprocal pr1v1leges being extended
.7~ to Soviet Service Attaches in the -United -
. ‘States, matters" involving the GRU as ‘well" as
.. the KGB.' ‘An Embassy Section case officer .
. ~would have as a matter of course monitored - .
... .reports of Service Attaches’ travel,. searchlng
~for persona;”vulnerabllltles among his targets,,“7
- .and assisted’ local KGB elements in settlng up
.. provocations outside of Moscow. NOSENKO, *
.. however, haswlncluded neither ‘of these latter- v
- -functions- as;hav1ng been among hls responsx-v*ﬁrﬂ-
“fﬁbllltles.-,r? oo . :

of”Case Flles on Army Attache Personnelﬁ‘

*FSometlme in the flrst half of 1954“ NOSENKO sald, he

was. relleved ‘of his- respon51b111t1es for the correspondent
cases, and from then until his’ transfer from the American ,
Department. _he handled KGB Second Chief Directorate. operatlons
against ‘the - offlcer personnel of the Army Attache s offlce._-
NOSENKO s account of "the. turnover of the correspondent ‘files '

to his. successor and of_ the. acceptance of the attache flles
is presented below..c~_~ﬂ.w b .

m”prll l964°f““I took over the Army Attache cases" from
‘:leolay KHRENOV.... When T was leaving in 1955; ; I turned. - l
utheiattache flles over to Valerly BUDYLDIN "']‘gﬁg,;, TR

. 0001353
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-10 2pril 1964: "I made a mistake [when] I said I
accepted the cases from KHRENOV.... I accepted the cases
. from Pavel Fedorov1cn PAIIKRATOV. This was in the beginning
- of 1954. .

-15 April 1964: NOSENKO said that he thought he turned
over the correspondent files to F.V. XKISLITSYN (who returned
to the USSR from Australia in May 1954). IIOSENKO asked
when the PETROVs defected in Australia; he explalned that
he was not sure about KISLITSYN and could have given them

+to another officer. “If KISLITSYN came [back from Australial-

.in 1953, then it was to KISLITSYN. Otherwise, it was some-
one else. _ _

—18 June 1964' MRKISLITSYN-came into the. Embassy Sectioh -

“in 1954 and I 'gave him tile files on American correspondents. -

BUDYLDIN also joined the section this year and took the
files on the Army Attache and. his assistants from PANKRATOV.

"BUDYLDIN left later that year and turned those files over

.- to- me....: Yuriy LEONTIYEV. joined the section in l955,.andA
N gave nlm the flles on the Army Attache and hls a551stants.A

Vh NOSENLO has also been 1ndef1n1te asrtoAthe-date~he assumed

‘respon51blllt1es for the Attaches. As noted above, he said
~on 10 Aprll 1964 that he received the files in the beginning
. of 1954. -lle had earlier said that he worked on the corres-

'T¢pondents "only -about six months" If the date of March 1953,

~which-he most often gave for hlS entry into the KGB, is

- .correct, this would place the turnover in the fall of '1953.
‘On. other occasions-he has said specifically that he turned
~*overfthe“correspondent cases and began work against the

- Attaches in January 1954, on- still others that this occurred

in May 1954. 1In February 1965, MOSENKO said that he could

- not remember when he changed a551gnments.nh

;Agents.Reportlng on Army Attaches“

“Asked in Aprll 1964 to descrlbe the agent network
(agentura) at his disposal in operations against Army
Attaches during this perlod which began in 1954, NOSEMNKO
replied: “"There were two maids, a cook, drivers...about ten
persons, plus the agent 'SERVIZNIY' and the one with the
cryptonym ' ‘DMITRIYEV'.... These additional two agents, .
about 12 or 13 agents altogether." With one exception, this

84
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._networr remalned constant untll NO“ENKO transferred from
“the American Embassy Section in mid-1955.. - He met each agent
- ‘about ‘once a week, except for the chauffeurs who were met -
' three ‘times a month in a safehouse or on'the street. The
. "Assistant: Army Attaches used a pool of” five drivers at- -
~.‘random, -all of whom were his agents, NOSENKO said. Apart -
ffrom the permanent driver for the senior Attache, none’
Was. targetted agalnst spec1f1c members of the attache '

"_T;Offlce. e

. Comment s ,As noted earller, NOSEHKO named "VOLODINA“ and ,
T . “RAKETA" as agents he used against correspondents
“and agalnst Army ‘Attache targets, but he never ..
. again referred to them and, in describing his. ”
own activities, he’ never ‘indicated how or 1n'ﬁ--f‘
: ;what cases tney were used. : : : "

A Accordlng to NOSENKO, thlS network was "just a. supportlng
;fagentura, which very seldom was worthwhile,” the’ ‘main source
of intformation: on tne Army Attaches belng the. mlcrophones in-
?thelr offlces.' o : > e s

Newly added to the network whlle NOQENKO held thlS

- '051t10n was . a maid.inserted to report on Army Attache
Dg[éarI”L"“MICKELSON -and his successor/\gallmore K._ MEARNT}
er name,; NOSENKO thought, was  NOVIKOVA. -She. was an- .

.of English in order ‘to overhear conversatlons or. read
' ﬁ‘letters w1thout taklng tnem out51de AT

S Be51des NOVIKOVA, NOSENKO named one other maid who was
“%gghls -agent, . Mariya NEVEROVA, cryptonym "SHVEDOVA,“ and. she

‘was targetted against the Assistant Army Attachej [Tra>.. Dé.

‘\\§£CHARD 1> He described NEVEROVA as a "little, old, thin-. .
- woman," - from whom he never obtained anything. of 1nterest.,-f
They met 1n a safehouse on. Kuznetskly Most. e R ‘

SR e e e ,ébaissf
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Of the KGB agents among the chauffeurs, MNOSENKO named
Nikolay SHNYRYEV, who was used by various attaches. "He
reported where they went, what they said, whether they took
notes or photographs, whether they had unusual packages
with them, and so on.”

yhen viewing photographs (see below) in September 1964,
NOSENKO identified Vladislav VOROBYEV as his former agent
‘"SERVIZNIY". He had been working in the Embassy since its
establishment, starting first as a messenger boy and, in
NOSENKO's time, performing clerical tasks. VOROBYEV had no
direct connection with the Army Attaches, and NOSENKO said
he himself did not know wihy he had been given VOROBYEV to
handle in 1954. The main function of this agent was
‘delivering to NOSENKO copies .of the unclassified telephone
listings of the Embassy, issued monthly.

"DMITRIYEV'sS" true name may have been Dmitriy KUKOLEV;

. NOSENKO saw this name on a 1962 phone list and thought, but -
‘was not sure, that this was his agent. An electrician who
- worked on the Embassy's electrical wiring systems and
_elevator, "DMITRIYEV" reported to NOSENKO on anterna wires
and other wires he had observed on the top floors. Like
. - VOROBYEV, "DMITRIYEY" had no direct connection with the
"Army Attaches. - Coe e s T T '

Comment: Elsewhere HNOSENKO described an electrician who
5 provided ‘some technical information on the
Embassy, but he related him to his second tour
~ in the American Embassy Section in 1960-1962
‘and did not then claim that the electrician was
his agent. - e L o

In September 1964 NOSEMKO was shown a series of-260
biographic cards on Soviet citizens employed by the American
Embassy in Moscow. ©Each card contained a photograph of the
person involved and short biographic notes, including his
name and job in the Embassy. The first time he went through
these cards, NOSENKO was permitted to see only the photo-
graphs; NOSENKO did not identify the photograpis of SHNYRYEV
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'and KUKOLEV but said that the face of VORO%YFV was famlllar,
. adding that he thought his name was- VOROBYEV.  Yhen shown
. the Embassy blographlc cards on SHINYRYEV and KUKOLFV he
'éjfldentlfled each of them as his. agents during the 1954 ~1955 -
... period in the American Department and equated them to. the
"Acryptonyms given prev1ously. -In the case of " SHNYRYEV, when
shown the biogtraphic lnformatlon, which’ listed’ SHNYRVEV as -
"chauffeur for.the military. attache, " NOSENKO exclalmed.A
.. "Oh my God, this is my own agent." He later said it was a E
'kwngood photograph of SHNYRYEV B .

o rNOSENKO s Targets

) Asked in . February 1965 ‘to llSt the Army Attache personnel‘
,,1’mfor whom  he was directly. respon51ble during 1954 and 1955,
”?%ﬁNOSENKO ‘orally listeéd the > following names: [FMICKELSON,V__
<MEARNS, RICHARDS FELCHLIN BENSON, MULE ) STROUD and TR
wﬂ\CARDELrg\" . -

R Qg 0& Bb OL) DE oe Dt Ot

:COmment; In the order as glven by NOSENKO) the list e
' 1-‘;Lffﬁ’comprlses two" generatlons of Army Attaches in
o7 Moscow,. . It is neither’ in alphabetical order:
3,};5¢jn'nor chronologlcal accordlng to date or serv1ce

© ke incMoscowd It is,t however,- in 'descending "+ ;7.

_order.of rank- from{Colonel Mf@kELSOﬁlthrough()b S

0£ Captalns MULETano\S ROU?Ntb ﬁhlef Warrant SR
Fficer CARDELLér\ ’”ﬁ* T

" R 1N
BB S S

{@;CKELSON’;z.ﬂ

) ' HOSENKO correctly 1dent1f1ed[§arl LrEhICRELSOﬁ]as a.“”'
| ‘gcolonel _and_the_Army Atgagﬁa in Moscow during 1954 &nd 1955,

+ . PANKRATOV. was ‘the case’ officer: orlglnally handling MICKELSOé]()é
©. “and-the case was turned over: to NMOSENKO in 1954. twhen aske
'afabout agents’ who mlght have been worklng agalnst/MICKELSOﬁ} Db

- NOSENKO said that there was one cook, a KGB operatlonal

contact whose name he did ndt recall, and[&ICWELGOﬁ}s ‘maid, 06

whose riame NOSENKO belleved was NOVILOVA . In _addition to- '
~these two, the only other source reporting onEﬁICLELSOﬁ]was Oé

o hls chauffeur, whose name NOSENKO also did not- remember-jA“
7 N e I X 1 A
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NOSENKO said that the KGR learned nothing interesting about
: thﬁICKELSON from concealed microphones, telephone taps, or

] surveillance, and that no operational approach or recruit-

ment was attempted. There was, in_fact, no interesting or

derogatory information on{@ICKELSOﬁ}from any source.

o

. 0b A
Comment: E&ICKELSOQ}Was involved in at least two
incidents inside the Soviet Union which
HOSENKO has not reported. 1In May 1954 he was
arrested in TLilisi on the (false) charge of:
having photographed a bridge. In August 1954
CLE@ICKELSQ&)was arrested again for illegal photo-
. graphy south of Kharkov; on this occasion he
was held for two hours before being released.
It is judged that such events, particularly
those staged by the KGB, would be known to the
KGB case officer responsible for the attache
officer concerned. i '

} -_‘(3(3 . g o

Ak NOSENKO accurately identifiedcgillmore K. MEARNS!as

0 MICKELSON|'s replacement and said that he was the responsi-
"~ "Ble case officer. There were two agents and one operational
- - contact working against MEARﬁg}M;Of these, NOSENKO could
“*".recall the name only of NOVIKOVA, the same maid who reported
-bearlier on[MICKELSON| {oBesides being told to attempt to over-
" hear (MEARNSY conversations, MNOVIKOVA was instructed to
- search his clothing and to copy any notes she might £ind,

but she never overheard or found anything of interest to .

the KGB. . NOSENKO recalled that [MEARNS' personal effects Db
were searched by the KGB while they wére being shipped to
- Moscow from the United States, and that all his service
». . records had been discovered and photographed. (NOSENKO
‘. "+ has told-this same story- about [MICKELSON.) MNOSENKO described 06
“v'ﬁtf(ggARNgjas being more "active" in Moscowfthan[ﬁ;CKELsoﬁlhad Oh

' een and said that information from concealed microphdnes

showed him to have a strong character. Nothing of interest
concerning him was received from these microphones or from
telephone taps.
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ob

P "RICIIARDSj

. ] NOSENLO correctly 1dent1f1ed Ira B ‘RICHARDé]as a
~af6g‘;;eutenant colonelPwho served as an[Assistant “Army Attache QY
1n Moscow.. ‘The one-agent reporting on(BICHARDS whom NOSENKO@@
... ‘could name’ was: the ‘maid Mariya NEVEROVA, KGB cryptonym L
.*7_”SHVEDOVA"1 but she had never provided any worthwhile
“ rinformation about{BICPARDS Ay In addltlon,‘some Soviet drlvers

.reported onq_;CPARDt} “but nothlng useful was. obtalned from '_

f_ithem. BEE wng‘ » | |

Comment°1T§;CHARDS served in Moscow from July 1954 to ,>ff
T .July 1956.  fThere was.a microphone in the office.
»'Whlch he shared flrst w1thf@}CKELsoﬁyand later -
. with MEARNS B R | (e .
,:gi [:ICPARDS\conflrmed that Mariya NEVEROVA: was _f'
- -his maid “and ‘desé¢ribed her ‘as a "mousy" woman

- who 'had a.heart attack durlng the. period -she.
'gwas employed by ‘him, an 1n01dent whlch was
" not . .recalled by NOSENKO. - - =i A
... For: about: four months .of his’ Moscow tour,
LRICHARDS) took Rus51an-1anguage lessons from®
“Tudmila GROMAKOVA in-his apartment.’ Durlng o
.6these lessons,dE;CHARDS\often dlscussed labor

on ‘one occasion, had her" record her speech on-
,hls ‘tape. recorder.:. GROMAKOVA was pregnant and
‘unmarried at - the ‘time. - In another: .context, .
‘NOSENKO named"GROMAKOVAVas a KGB agent:durlng :
~1960-1962 but:did not relate her to@ICHARD:L@é
.or:to the 1953<1955 perlod
egg”EQCHARDE}ldentlfled one "Volodya" (the
~ diminutive of Vladimir). as liis pr1n01pal \4-' 51<
~-driver:. - About. 62 years old in 1954, Volodya' s‘*’
.-father was, a- rich. jeweler in Moscow at - the tlme

. 6f the Revolution. Volodya himself was well-

- educated and, on one occasion while plcnlcklng
:3f5fout51de Moscow, ‘he spoke. 1ntelllgently Wlth

}s:;ﬁvé:j;}légulvl»lv‘?e ;;1: CUCiSSQ -
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Comment: (Continued)
DQ)EEICHARDg]abQut the Revolution, propaganda, and
: news media. NOSENKO did not know of Volodya
who, as RICHARDSY, driver, was NOSENKO's agent
by HOSEHKO's own account.

06 |
@:ELCHLIIQ .. A
= : | D6
s/ NOSENKO correctly identified Howard L. FELCHLIN]as a
’ Y%;eutenant colonel] who served as{éssistant Army Attache in'CK/
loscow. By far the most aggressive of his targets and hence
the object of special interest, NOSENKO said FELCHLIﬁlservedOY
. in the Soviet Union during 1954 and part of 1955, until '
being declared persona non grata. NOSENKO did not recall
*._ the. names. of any agents specifically targetted against
: d%vFELCHLIﬁl although he thought[zELCHLIﬁ]must have had a?maid6ﬁ¥

who would have been a KGB agen '

] . Additionally, NOSENKO
- ) said, theiggsistant Army Attaches shared a pool of cars and
. . _drivers, an ‘these were his agernts. Unable to recall the
" % precise date of FELCHLIN's expulsion, NOSENKO related it to
--.some -event regar ing SoViets stationed in the United States
~ for which the goviet Government decided to reply in kind.
_ ‘NOSENKO was imprecise as to the .pretext used to expel.
O& FELCHLIN], but said the action was based on information which
- - had been accumulated from a number of sources and incidents.
d%For.example,SEELCHLIﬁ]had been caught taking some photo-

' graphs and a report. had been .written; along with other
. (K similar indications of FELCHLIN's activities and reports of -~
(Yagents in contact with FELCHLIN] the report was filed away
: _ for possible future use. NOSENKO was questioned further on
RN FELCHLIﬁjdqring the February 1965“interrogations.~ He said ,
% then thatTFELCHLI@jalone had been declared persona non grata,
- - and- that no other at+taches had been involved. NOSENKO
-explained his having. but few details concerning this action
by the fact that it took place after NOSENKO had transferred
from the American Department to the Seventh Department in -
June 1955. MNOSENKO knew nothing of FELCHLI@XS background.

0¥
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: Comment:}{%ELCHLI@?VlSlted the . USSR as a merchant seaman
-and a: dlplomatlc courier before arriving in
o .°July 1953 as ‘an] A551stant”Army*AtE§EH§} O%He
.. served in' the lafter capacity. for one year,j
R until July ‘1954, when he.was expelled. ' He had
:-ipreVLOusly served in Austria and West Germany
. and’ had been in officisl. contact with known -
- “GRU officers at both posts, as well as in. the
" United States." ~During his entire tour ln
‘Moscow* he was the object of . 1ntense KGB
veillance. - L
S Zehortly after his arrival in September 1953
;,f-§~FELCHLIﬁ} with fellow[Assistant ‘Army Attache O&
"'D% Martin Jr-MANHOFEXand Eélr _Force._ Attache O?
7 took a train trip to Slberla, the - flrst trlp o
pernitted. such Amerlcans in many years: Six .
.months " later, on 25 March 1954, the Sov1et

_newspaper. Tru «carried an artlcle falsely
alleging that(FELCHLINJand his companions" had

- lost. some "spy” documefits" on the traln.’nOn_g;w’f;»ﬂw
. -another . occasion, - Wwhile travelling with - S O

’f_hls train compartment to find a scantily clad
'Sdviet -female in his berth, NOSENKO recalled

-;nelther .of these: 1n01dents."’
In June. 1954, while. in the’ company of é,{w
fr[ileutenant Colonel F.J. YEAGER; an ASSlStantDéi@gU o
o *ﬁArmy Attache,rFELCHLI {was arrested in Kiev S ‘
R ;~by ‘a Soviet:Army: offlcer for photographing a’ L
e ‘military target. ' (NOSENKO has..never mentloned
fé YEAGE§r5>name, when told the name and asked
" for an ldentlflcatlon, NOSEMKO said that he
“:° had hegrgllghend that he thought[?EAGEE]was @é
o %{}5& Air Attach§]) A largé crowd gathered and,
. @fter some jostllng,[EFLCHLfﬁ]andE%EAGEE}wereOEOé
-ltaken to a Militia station where .they were -
‘fiordered to sign a confession. - “They" were held.
. eleven ‘hours:,. and their arrest caused the '
iAmerlcan - Ambassador to- dellver a ‘'strong protest
_ note@ ~FELCFL{E&was told on 3 July 1954 to L
‘3depart the Soviet Union within 48 hours. =
”ﬂajor Walter A, McKINNny the[%merlcan Alg}oé

— — e e
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Comment: (Continued) C%
Attache and one of|FELCHLIN|s travelling
companions at the time the "spy notes" were
allegedly lost, was declared persona non grata
at the same time. Ambassador Bohlen success-
.fully insisted, against initial Soviet refusal,
that his personal plane be allowed into the
USSR to £ly[FELCHLIN|and(McKINNEY lout. In 06 06
February 19 NOSENRD was asked td describe .
the unusual circumstances under‘which[fELCHLIﬁ]Ué
left. NOSENKO said he could not, inasmuch, as
he was no longer in the American Department
at the time. Told that the expulsion took
place in 1954, NOSEMNKO said this was not the
correct date. 06
Queried concerning SHNYRYEV, |RICHARDS| and
Oé[EELCHLzﬁ]immediately recognized his photograph
and name as one of the chauffeurs assigned to
the office of the Army Attache at the Moscow :
Embassy; RICHARDS}was taken on his first trip 06
outside Moscow by SHNYRYEV. He remarked that
the Attaches referred to SHNYRYEV as either
"Nikolay Perviy" (Nicholas the First) or
"Nikolay Vtoroy" (Nicholas the Second) to
distinguish him from another chauffeur with
the same name. [FELCHLIN)said that SHNYRYEV UD
drove primarily for the Army Attache himself,
but sometimes drove for the Assistant Army '
Attaches, and he remembered that SHNYRYEV was:
not well, suffered from war wounds, and had
continuing chest or lung trouble. Asked whether
SHNYRYEV had any medical problem, NOSENKO said
. he was not_aware pf any. : o '
Ob [FELCHLIN|said his maid Dora FEDOROVA was
in Ner 50's. When she spoke with|FELCHLIN 0k
about a job, she asked for about 120 rubles a
month, which seemed excessive, so[?ELCHLIﬁ]Dé
offered 80. . FEDOROVA refused and left. Two
days later she returned and accepted. She
spoke little English. Other maids came to the ,
back door of [FELCHLIN's apartment to "chat" with0&
her, and suspécting Fhat they were reporting to
FEDOROVA, EELCHLDT\T teased her about it.
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' Comment° (Contlnueo) '
S iFEDOROVA s previous employer at the. Fmbassy
. rgave. her full name to columnlst Drew Pearson
-~ with ‘a statement that she was one of the chief .
... 'spies and the local "boss" of the Embassy net-
e works. Pearsori prlnted the -allegation. In the
““ffsummer of 1953 or 1954, according toE?FLCPLI@]Oé
the maid approachedEfFLCLLIﬁ}WLth the artlcle,oé
.waved it in his face, and accused him of belng
.;_f Pearson's: source. NOSENKO did not recognize
-~ -FEDOROVA's name and did not recall hearlng or.
J‘readlng of thlS 1nc1dent.

EENSOL] Oé

‘ (jgNOSENKO correctly 1oent1f1ed hlS target” John §. BENSd@

'as a majoijande351stant“Army Affééﬁé]ln Moscowt;_geRdld notc)

'v: recall the names of any agents.working aqalnst{EENSOﬁlbutO

- D said that! BENSON|was. with[MULE|and[STROUD |(see below)( In206, 05

)D Cﬂ[:pallngrad in 19 S5\when all three wére calght by the KGB
with “e: electronlc "spying" devices. They were declared - . .

persona non grata. The KGB had no other derogatory 1nfor-:

mation on[ZENSO@lfrom any other source.

0(3 ETROUD] DE’ :

; NOSENKO correctly ldentlfled’WlL;lam R. STROU@Las A e
{:aptalﬁ3and an{§5515tant Army—Attache.(f The only agents .
worklng against him were the Army Atfache drivers. ' From- ;
-concealed ‘microphones, the KGB "learned beforeigiROUj]syﬂé
'“.arrlval in Moscow that he was an expert in- the use of

”'electronlc siflng apparatus: - He was w1th{§ﬁNSO[land[ﬁUL§105 Oé

R
e

D\ln Stallngrad and was declared persona -non grata .along with -

them “(seée below) Other than this, NOSENKO said, the KGB
knew nothing unusual or 1nterest1ng about[éTROUqlfrom any '

MIL source. ffFf:g;f U e e T 'C)bx
0001363
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Ok, 06 v
Comment s [éTROU@} with[éENSOﬁWand[&ULE, was the victim

5f the Soviets' seizure of technical equip-
ment infgtal°qgra&]and was declared persona [0
non gratd on (7 May 195§} On 31 January 1955 ()9
he travelled to Kharkov from Moscow with First
Secretary [Frank SISCOL]to interview an American0b

: defector living there. According to NOSENKO,

, ()é[%ISCOE]was suspected by the KGB of being a CIA
officer. The visit of|ex~-FBI agent SISCOE}andCKOé
a military officer to an American defector is /
judged to be an event in which the KGB would
have. taken interest andé one which the Attache's
KGB case officer would find memorable.

g
[IEIULE] 0b ,

NOSENKO correctly identified|Walter MULE|as an
[Assistant Army Attaché| and as such said that he was the case
officer responsible f&6r him. NOSENKO described an operational

Déapproach to| MULE}, in which he himself participated: In 1953
or 1954 there had been several defection approaches to A
Soviets in the United States with the promise of money and
:  a new life. After the KGB_ Second Chiéf Directorate decided
Og to try the same measures,[ﬁULElwas selected.O6He was only a

[égptaiﬁ\despite his lengthy service in the Army and infor-
mation from concealed microphones indicated that he was often

" disparaged by the other Attaches. - When[ﬁULﬁWreceived letters@é
from home, he threw them in the trash, and ﬁﬁe maids turned

. these over to the KGB. From this mail it was understood

4 Oé;that MULE! did not have a house.in the United States but

lived—with his family in a trailer. The father of two

Cbchildren,{gULE]had sent his wife from Moscow to Germany for
an abortion, as a third child would have imposed too great
an economic burden. On the basis of all this the KGB
appointed N.M. BORODIN, a recruiter of the American Depart-
ment, to attempt to defectE@ULﬁ}&ETogether with BORODIN,
KOVSIiUX, and L.A. LEBEDEV (from the Second Chief Directorate's
special technical section), NOSEIKO travelled to Leningrad
for the operation. LEBEDEV installed a clock containing a
concealed camera as well as microphones in{ﬁpLﬁrs hotel room,

0¢
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and BORODIN entered the room: to awaltEEULE S\return. When,
@é[EQLE ‘started to enter ‘the room, hé caught 51qht of BORODINV '
Tand . tried’ to ‘back out, but NOSENKO and KOVSHUK closed ‘the *
door . from the hall and prevented his escape.. BORODIN
Oérev1ewed for”MULE}the facts. the KGB. had accumulated about

e

:ﬂ'Attaches,.and his shortage of money and then offered hlm a
- job as a-"consultant". BORODIN had either $5,000 or ’

. .~ "$10,000.in an envelope .to. encourageE@ULE to accept. Accord1naCﬁ3

‘{jto NOSENLO,E@ULE}refused outrlght telllng BORODIN to get

“.out.u-, e . :

R

‘.Comment &4§ULﬁ}reported thls 1nc1dent.- He said that he
oo e o t'wass locked in his hotel room and subjected to -
,Aj,a recruitment attempt by an MVD agent calllngf
“ himself Jack SIEGAL, who offered him $10,000.
;:for "work"™ on a long-ranage basis. SIEGAL
; .emphasized that(ﬂULE would not be. requlred to 06
procure documents from the Embassy, and
@éaccordlng to MU E“\SIEGAL was aware of factS<‘
oconcernlng s\personal life that could
o nave been talned only from’ listening devices
Qéln[ﬂﬁij - apartment or office. SIEGAL left
after about 20 minutes,; having warnedd@pLQ]notOt,
to report the 1nc1dent.<(§pLF\1dent1f1ed
SIEGAL/BORODIN by photograph but was. unable to
identify NOSENKO. g -
< KGB lack of, 1nterest in- recrultments, whlch
NOSENKO elsewhere cited to explain his ignorance .
of the personal backgrounds. of his Army Attache
targets, is belled by the[%UL%]case. @6

MULﬁlandY:?ROUD Expulslon from the Sov1et Unlon

\[B/ENSON .
\ R ngfter NOSENKO had - been transferred to the Seventh .
 Department in 1955,(D BENSON, MULﬁ%and_\TROU?]were the targetsog .
" of -a KGB operation which resultéd in all three men being Dé‘ '
" declared persona non grata. MNOSENKO gave the following account
of. this. incident: ~For some time the .Second Chief Directorate
thad been trylng to acqulre a small, convenlent plece of '

Cest LGLLSGS
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" electronic equipment which American Intelligence officers

o6 [s

were known to be using during their travels inside the

Soviet Union. As early as the beginning of 1954, the
American Department had been given authorization from the
Central Committee .of the Communist Party to steal this-
equipment from the Americans, provided that the success of
such an operation was assured. Before his transfer to the
Seventh Department in 1955, NOSENKO himself had helped to
develop plans for the operation and had even arranged an
abortive attempt to seize the equipment from an Attache at -

X rallroad station outside Moscow. While DEnso:} MULF and DQ 06
STROUD .were on one of their trips (after NOSENKO's transfer)
it was learned that they had the equipment with them, and

the KGB decided to take it from them 1n[§tallngra§}H)The

hotel rooms of ENSOﬁﬁﬁéTROUD nd {MULE wére watchéd constantly
from a visual observation posﬂﬁ 1tD@as noted that they
never ate in the hotel restaurant but always in their rooms.
It was also noted that the apparatus was placed under a
pillow before they began to eat. While they were seated at
the table having dinner, therefore, the KGE officers suddenly
entered the room and seized the equipment. In order to

. partially cover the illegality of_ &@15 act, it was decided

to make a show of expelling{BENSON, TﬁpLﬁlandfgyROUﬁlfrom the U6
Soviet Union, and this was done by hav1ng%the Foreign Ministry
declaring each persona non grata.

Ch D6
Comment:-’The'eg\lpment was seized from[:hNSOF][gﬁLﬁWand
DBIE?ROUD on 5 May 1955, and the three were déclared
~ persona non grata on 7 May, a month before
NOSENKO claimed to have transferred to the
Seventh Department. %hen the 7 May date was
given to NOSENKO during the February 1965
interrogations, he replied that the operation
was handled at a higher level, that he did not
directly participate in it, but that he had
been involved in the earlier planning to seize
the equipment. It was pointed out to him that
he had always said he was in the Seventh
Department at the time of this operation, and
that he had consistently said that he transferred
. from the American to the Seventh Department in
June 1955, HOSENKO offered no comment.

B | o6 B
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i

]:AébTELLZ\:] Dé
y NOSENKO sald that in 1954 and 1955 there was a

etoffiggeS”CARDEfﬂa(%,The KGB had_no 1nterest1ng or unusual
information concernlng'@%RDELLK}from any source, and NOSENKO

‘could say nothing more out hlm.O

,‘n‘ PR

Comment°” As ‘a member of the Army ‘Attache's staff,,_Af :

C%>CARDELﬁ@Lalso would have been NOSENKO's target.

[ {Chief Varrant Officer CARDFLLé}served in Moscow .
from September 1953 until June 1955. In 1964

-y mlcrophone was: dlscoverea in the Embassy offlce

0&4CARDELLA ‘had ‘occupied. The mlcrophone was:

¥ eléﬁye . to. have been emplaced ln 1952 See,

AN LAET @ Dé Dé
dgNOSENRO 1ncorrectly 1dent1f1ed\E§orge VAN LARTHEM as.
}}fan[§551stagtw§&;NAttach§1at the Embassy against whom an '
.~ -operation was attempted in. 1953 or 1954. He said that

- .during this period a Russian actress, Alla LARIONOVA, was.
Lqplaced on a train: going from Berlin to Moscow with the
mission. of striking up an acqualntance w1th]VAN LAETHF@]Oé
.which could be: followed up in Moscow. ' She succeeded in -
‘meeting hlm and gave him her address and telephone number.
Although she was certain that she would hear from-him, he
. never did- call ‘her in Moscow. ".NOSENKO said that he had

" heard about this from P.F.- PANKRATOV, the case officer |
- handling LARIONOVA. He added that ChURANOV was the case
officer responsible for{VAN LAETHEM: along with other 06 '
members of the{Air ? Attache) s™ “office at- that time. NOSENKOC&V
knew of no other KGB 1nterest in ox act1v1ty concerning - e

(A TLAETHEMb.

"fﬁé
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il

Comment : EEAN LA%%HEﬂ}was not an |Assistant Air Attach@ﬁﬁl
..... but an\Assistant Army Attach D?éerving in
o zloscow from .larci 1951 to Ma¥chn 1953. When
Qé VAN LAETEl)completed ais two-year tour in
Jdoscow in fArch 1953 (when WOSENKO said ae
entered tae KGB), he was succeeded byEﬂalter(?é
JAULE, for whom NOSENKO has claimed responsi-
bility. The fact tnat ne was[éssistant Arny DX
e Attacn§]and[EULE7sépredecessor saould be kaown
to the Tesponsible KGB case officer, in tais
| _ case, NOSENKO. Asl@?yptographic security 0§
N | officer] and officer™in chnarge of the Embassy
m ﬁykigpde room, VAN LAETHET|had supervisory respon-
Ssibility for the milifary code clerks and
mecuanics, including Dayle SHITH, and he was
on fairly close personal terms with Sergeant
Roy RIODES until|VAN LAETHEM!s departure from(b -
doscow in darchn 1953. [VAN LAETHEL)s duties A
also included responsibility for Sensitive
electronic activities in thne Embassy.
' VAN LAETHEil was again in Moscow from 19 arcn
to 19 May 1955, wihen NOSENKO claims to have
been the KGB case officer for Army Attaches.
Althougn this visit was only a temporary as-—
signment, it was represented to the Soviets
as a permanent assignment of an Assistant Army
Attacae (and taus, presumably NOSENKO's tar-
get) bLecause of the sensitive nature of his
duties. EHe was project officer for the entire
signals collection program at the Embassy,
and ne went to oscow to review the program
including the planned use of tie new electronic
_equipnent qpich was seized from[EENSON, MULﬁ] O@ﬂ)é
and[gTROUD in‘gﬁalingra@win{ﬁay 1955| (whileff y
DQEAN LAETHE] was still in ioscow). WAN LarpTHEN) 06
Stated tanat no meeting sucih as the one WOSENK
described witih LARIONOVA ever occurred.
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - ca. 1953-June 1955)

Additional Reporting

Knowledge of another KGB operation involving Americans
was said by NOSENKO to stem from his 1953-~1955 service in
the American Embassy Section, against CIA officer and
Embassy Security Officer Edward Ellis SMITH (see p. 37).
NOSENKO claimed to have personally participated in the
operations against E.E. SMITH in 1954-1955. The incidents
which NOSENKO described, however, occurred in June 1956,
by which time NOSENKO, by his own account, had been ouf of
the American Embassy Section for a year and when he was
involved in the Seventh Department recruitment of[?ichardCK
BURG?} His involvement in the[ﬁURGi]case has been confirmed.J

NOSENKO has also described the KGB recruitment of military
cipher machine mechanic "ANDREY" (Dayle SMITH, see p. 33),
whose true name he claimed not to have known. He dated the
recruitment as occurring "in 1949-1950" and "before he
joined the KGB", although he said that he knew of the _
existence of the agent during his first tour in the Embassy
Section in 1953-1955. However, NOSENKO also related that
"ANDREY" was recruited while Roy RHODES was in Moscow, that
RHODES "had spotted 'ANDREY'". “ANDREY" and RHODES ©Ver-
lapped in Moscow from April 1952 to July 1953. "ANDREY"
fixes his own recruitment as occurring in December 1953,
and until his departure in April 1954 he was responsible
for the entire Embassy code room. In that capacity "ANDREY"
was a direct subordinate of the Army Attache cryptographic
security officer, NOSENKO's target [Army Captain Walter MULEL 08

. If NOSENKO served in the‘Embassy Section during 1953-1955 A

as he claimed, it .is difficult to perceive how he could have
remained unaware of "ANDREY's" identity.

American Embassy Section - ca. 1953~-June 1955:
Summary and Conclusion )

According to NOSENKO, immediately upon entering on duty
with the KGB he was assigned without training to what he
describes as the most sensitive and important section of
the Second Chief Directorate. There, after first handling
agents covering American correspondents resident in Moscow,

TS5 r‘i:“é'qﬁ@i
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - ca. 1953-June 1955)

he was made the case officer solely responsible for opera-
tions against the commissioned officers of the Embassy's

 Army Attache office, until his transfer to the Seventh ' }

Department. Alleging. complete knowledge of all service

attache operations, NOSENKO flatly asserts that there were :
no KGB recruitments of American military personnel during ~
the period of his assignment to the Embassy Section.

Pertinent to the consideration of NOSENKO's statements
is his reluctance to discuss the 1953-1955 period, and his
inconsistent accounts of the dating and circumstances of
his entry into the Embassy Section, of his assumption of
responsibility as sole case officer for Army Attache tar-
gets, and of his transfer to the Seventh Department. . Al-
though NOSENKO could plausibly claim failing memory to ex-
plain some areas of ignorance, he does not do so. Instead,
he is positive and insistent that his statements about his
targets are a factual and complete account of what was then
known to the KGB. His assertion that the KGB was not in-

belied by his own statements as well as by,theﬁ@ULﬁ]case,Oé
as he himself related it. He is uninformed about both At-
tache personnel and agent-informants who, by his own ac-
count, were his targets and his agents.. -

Conclusion

NOSENKO did notiservé in the American Embassy. Section
throughout the March 1953-June 1955 period as he claimed.
Specifically, he neither entered the Section in March 1953

- nor transferred from the Section in June 1955. In whatever

period he may have served, he was not the sole case officer
responsible for commissioned officers in the office of the
Army Attache. Unaware of many aspects of KGB activities
involving Army personnel and by his own account not involved
with either Air or Naval Attache personnel or diplomats,
NOSENKO has no valid claim to certainty that the KGB re-
cruited no American Embassy personnel during this period.
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SrVP“WV-ﬁ?PA; PN ( rune 1055~January 1960)

Corment: -HOSIURO's c’almeu Sacond Chief Directorate
E '%berCp curlvq 1555~1960, in vhich he was .
‘involveéd. with Seventh Department ooeratlons
agalnet'bmrrlcai and Lritish tourists, c01n-'
~cides with the growth of a substantial
:Americaniand‘ |lIntelligence program \
‘aimed at exploiting tourists VLSlt;ng,the
Sovieh. Urlﬁﬂ.ﬁ‘nuqlﬁhlﬂg in 1956, thelgrowth
of ‘tourism which followed the- post Stalin-
Jthaw in. the USSR -had arown to the point: =
]‘wnere it could be usefully exploited by CIAW.
“Initially,  returning American tourists were
~debricfed ‘on their .e: iperiences in: the Gov1et
Union and hartvcula?ly with regard to their -
acqualnuances there with Soviet citizens who = |
mlgut e susceptil’le to eventual recruitment. = _
Graaually, leads were gevelooed to Américans -
< planning to visit’ the- USSR, and from among
. these, agents were selected, trained in- »
clapdestlne ooera+1onal uecnnlques, ‘briefed. e
on . _n-olllcence fnqulreﬂents, and 1nstructed '
how to lucntlfy and’ develop, Doteﬁtlal acents
- from arong their Soviet contacts.  The . 7%
~American agents performed a varlety of clan—A4a
desblne taau:"lncludlng passive assessment .
of qov1ct candidates for recruitment, propa-‘.
gapda ‘activities, and infiltrating cqulpment 4 “
loaalng deaddroos, or mailing letters lrearin |
secret: mrlblng, tall de Llned for CIA agents %::::::?—-_
"in the Soviet Union.
Cithe wlogram reach\n‘wts helght in 1959
by the end of which over one hundred and’
flfty agepta underx tourlst cover from CIA
alone Aac aarforreﬂ PlS%lonb in the U%QR by
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Comment: (Continued)

" then a substantial number of similar missions
had aiso been launched by American military
intelligence organizations and by the[i::::::j
and allied services.

It is a matter of fact, not of conjecture,
that as early as 1957 a large number of these
agents were coming to the attention of the XGB
within the Soviet Union. Few were arrested.
Instead, all were surveilled, and some pro-
voked or entrapped, as the Second Chief .
Directorate and its provincial KGB counter-~
intelligence elements sought to identify the ,
Soviet citizens with whom the American agents
.were in contact, as well as the agents'
specific clandestine tasks. By the summer
of 1959 the KGB had obtained from its British
agent, George BLAKF, complete details of. the
objectives and methods of CIA and g
Intelligence tourist programs, together Wluh

ﬂ R a number of case examples.
H

_ It is within this context that one must
examine MNOSENIKO's claims to KGB service in
‘and consequent knowledge of Second Chief
Directorate counterintelligence operations
against American and British tourists in 1955-
1960.

MOSENKO claimed he served with the Seventh Department
from June 1955 until January 1960. According to him, the
Seventh Department exercised counterintelligence functions
involving foreigners then visiting the Soviet Union,
including businessmen, seamen, foreign delegations and some:

, ists, as well as the hotels and restaurants utilized by
% thesé visitors. He said that by 1958, however, the number

ef-fdreign tourists visiting the Soviet Union had grown
appreciably, and in June 1958 the Seventh Department
Tourist Section was split, and two new sections were created.
NOSENKO explained that one of the new sections became
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réSpdnéiL;é.fo;ﬁ¢Qﬁntérintelligence operations conducted
. against American-and Dritish Commonwealth nationals, the
.,cherfseCtion_was charged with all other nationalities@;

_ It is convenient to divide the examination of NOSENRO's
Lclaimsftorserviceyin thevSeventhgpepartment’intoftWO'ﬁ‘ )
1,périods.,'The.first~of.theSQTCOVers'the Years from June
1;1955 untilvJUne l9S8,¢during which NOSENKO said he was a
*~ case officer handling ‘and recruiting agents of all nationa-
i”;litieSSand}planﬁing<and managing other.operational,activi#,
Soties, -The second pariddjcovers-NOSENKofs service from June
1958, when he claimed t6 have become Deputy Chief of the: ‘
ugnew1y-creat,thmericanéBritiSh Commonwealth Section, to the

. beginning of 1960. e

fﬁ}l’deSEHKO‘deécribe&fhis"pérSohal and direct participation:
-'giinfSevgnth;Departmen  operations_during this four and one-

”fﬂhalfﬂyears~as7i301uding:’;;

»33‘Hn,sjﬁgéfuitiﬁg:ahd handlinngpViet Citian agents and
_targétfingﬁthem.against American tourists, IHOSENKO's -

},fJgﬁg;Mguhtiﬁéyopéfatibﬁé_égéinét,fifteeh_fOréigners;-"”"
ﬂ&~principallY'Ameri¢§n8fwingthe‘Soviet Union. . SR

. 1/*{}&Recruitingla;pair~bquoviet'homosexuals'aS'agentsﬁ_

to be utilized against forei

.. -managed : the pair from their recruitment
'-until,their,retirement“in'1962 or 1963, |

oL

in 1957 ‘and 1958 . -

" Express Companf1fepre$entative‘1n7Mosc6w; . (NOSENK
‘ agokto7EE€EJ§§IEEE yeven after the latter was .

"t-',iMoscOw:to.New“Yorkuandgafter“NOSEﬁ‘ ;
Q‘theiSeventh”Department;ff; L

. - - From pPersonal involvement or otherwise NOSENKO claimed
'lthatrhe”learned;of all the important operations conducted’
againstKAmerican tourists during this period of his Seventh.
.fJDeparfment,serviCe. T ' o AR R

[
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NOSENKO's Soviet Agents

The Seventh Department Tourist Secticn, just established

when NOSEMNKO was transferred to it in mid-1955, had no agent

network for operations against American and British tourists.
Consequently, HOSENKO said, he and the other case officers
had to "start from the beginning".

As a first step NOSENKO was introduced by a fellow .
officer to a number of "trusted persons" in Inturist. These
were not agents, he explained, but "just persons a KGB man
could approach with questions about somebody or something®.
NOSLNKO collected information on these and others with the
aim of formalizing their recruitments. By the end of 1955,
he estimated, he had a network of about eight agents, all
of them Inturist interpreters. During the following four
years, the number of agents whom NOSENKO handled varied.
Agents would be transferred from one case officer to another,
some would leave Inturist, and "things were sort of changing
all the time, back and forth". In 1956, NOSEMKO said, he
had about ten agents, in 1957 there were about twelve, in
1958 about eight, and at the end of 1959 (when he was
preparing to return to the American Department) he had
approximately twelve. The substance of NOSFMKO's descrip-
tion of his agents is as follows: '

Larissa SOBOROVA

An Inturist English-language interpreter, SOBOROVA was
one of the first agents recruited in 1955 by NOSENKO within
Inturist. She reported to him en all foreigners with whom
she worked as an interpreter. She worked with NOSENKO when

he served as a guide for British subjects BIRSE]andL;ANé]in(jé OQ

the summer of 1957. During 1957-1959 she Was involved and
possibly sexually intimate with American|travel writer ngg
Horace SUTTONL. SOBOROVA was NOSE!NKO's agéent until 1959, 7/
when she marf¥ied and "retired". S
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Comment:- SOBOROVA was -an Inturist guide for a number
7 . 'of BAmerican tourists, including CIA agents,
' . between 1957 and 1959. {;UTTOﬁTlaS identifiéd(bé
- her. In 1959 she was the head of all English-
language 1nterpreters at  Inturist headquarters
ujln the Natlonal Hotel -Moscov. :

Co Vladlﬂlr MUPOMTSEV

o MUROMWSEV, KCB cryptonym "LE“LDFV", .was recrulted by

. HOSENKO from Inturist in 1955. He was NOSENKO's agent !
~until called into the army in about 1959, when he was .sent =
to a Soviet Air Force™ Academy in Central, Asia to serve as
.- an interpreter with Syrian students there. Durlng that
* .period his file was held by the KGB organization _.in Central
7 Asia. then he’ *eturnea to Moscow he was re—employed by the
B RGB Second Dlrectorate._f]j SR

" Comment: 'NOSENKO nas sald elsewnere that MUROMTSFV had’ ’
[ Wlfbeen a Second Chief Directorate agent "since -
- 1958, flmplylng ‘that someone else . recrulted
... him and that he thus coulc not have been:
“NOSENMKO'Ss ° agent in 1955. MUROMTSEV was. o
. identified.in 1957 ‘as .an Inturlst gulde by
- two CIA sources.'H‘ .

";nlkolay ROGOV '{“,?'f v'ff75"%-?f_i"!uff:“7~;f,}.:j [ e

. ROGOV, KGB cryptonym “OZERO", ‘was . recrulted in- 1955.,_He‘
" had been formerly a "confidential contact" of the KGB. He -
" worked -in the central Inturist office which assxgned inter-

_preters to- Brltlsh and Amerlcan c1tlzens v151t1ng the USSR

.{:;1.,
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Comment: CIA records refer only to one Alexander ROGOV
who in 1960 was a senior official at the main
Inturist office in the Hotel National in Moscow.

Nataliva SHULGINA

o SHULGINA was an Inturist interpreter recruited by HOSENKO
T in 1955. NOSENKO knew that double agent Boris BELITSKIY
[see p.282] "reported to the KGB that CIA had warned BELITSKIY
against SHULGINA". _ o :

Comment: KGB-controlled CIA source BELITSKIY reported
to CIA that SHULGINA was a KGB agent: CIA did
not warn him. SHULGINA was for two years the
secretary-interpreter of NBC correspondent
Irving R. LEVINE after his arrival in Moscow
in July 1955. She served as a guide for an
American musical troupe's visit in the USSR
in 1956 and in 1956 and 1957 she served as a
guide for American tourists in Moscow. According
to BELITSKIY, she.was involved in the sexual /
‘entrapment and KGB recruitment of [British MP Ot
Tom DRIBERGl NOSENKO's apparent ignorance of
SHULGINA's "involvement with LEVINE and other .
Americans, as well as with(ERIBER , and of heer
foreign travel, belies his claim that she was
his agent during the 1955-1958 period. Shown
her photograph in 1964, NOSENKO failed to .
recognize it. When he was then given her name,
he identified her not as his former agent but
just as a Second Chief Directorate agent once
involved with BELITSKIY.
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.r-'j.Tarnara KUNGAROVA = o

S KUNGAROVA ‘was ‘an’ Inturlst 1nterpreter recru1ted by
'NOSENKO .in 1955.- In 1957 or 1959 she was involved in a-
=y KGB. sexual entrapment operation of an American pvofessor
Qb John ThOMPSON“ but there was no attempt to recruit him.
tween 1957 Sr 1958 anu 1960 she was targetted agalnst
- American’ tourist 'and suspect CIA agent]
. (see p.420) . KUWNGAROVA, married | ﬁand emlgrated“to 0?05

i England, - and. the KGB. was still interested’ in ]at.05
the tlme NOSENLO left the Seventh Department .

\/

fElsewhere NOSENKO has sald KUNGAROVA was an
cagent who:came to the’ Seventh- Department from
“the British Commonwealth Department -in 1957 -
or. .early 1958.  ~If true, he could not have -
‘recruited her or have been her case offlcer in®
i the 1955=1957 perlod.; In- descrlblng the
‘case,  NOSENKO indicated he. himself ‘was.
~TRot. 1nvolved and, although he commented on fx
QKUNGAROVA s role, he never mentioned that: she
‘was or had been his: agént.’ . KUNGAROVA was ~ ' = °
‘interviewed by the FBI.on the basis of NOSENKO' s
-glnformatlon andughewgonflrmed that she had been:
o7 intimate- w1th&THOMPSOﬁlwhlle serving as an ,
_Fiturist guide, "as wel as with other Amerlcans.
‘She ‘denied, however, that she had .ever colla-
;borated w1th the LGB. KUNGAROVA dled in 1965.‘w

Aleksandr A DMITRIVFV

. DMITRIYEV, KGB cryptonym “TOMO" when NOSENKO recruited
~him:in- 1958, was a candidate member of the USSR Academy. of-
. Sciences and a spec1allst on Japan and Thailand. KEe spoke
ff”Japanese ‘and English and worked at the Japanese’ EXthltlon
. in Moscow. . He "was used agalnst British and American =
“-/ nationals”. DMITRIYEV was also used agalnst communlcatlons ..

":'.11107721 | G“(«i"'a
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personnel at the Japanese Exhibit, but while he telephoned
NOSENKO, he was meeting with another KGB case officer.
DMITRIYEV accompanied a sports delegatlon to Norway and a
Soviet circus to Japan.

§

Comment: DMITRIYEV's travel to Norway and Japan in
1958 is confirmed. From NOSENKO's own
statement he was aware of DMITRIYEV's .
activities, but he was not his case officer.

(Fnu) IVANOV

Once a recruited agent in the Baltic area, when IVANOV
moved to Moscow the provincial KGB suggested he might be
of some use in the capital. IVANOV was a lawyer employed
by the Institute of Foreign Trade when NOSENKO became his
case officer. IVANOV was later turned over to the British
Commonwealth Department which "planted him in the British
Trade Mission or something like that".

]

Comment: CIA reéords contain no reference identifiable
: with IVANOV. ’ .

Marina RYTOVA

RYTOVA, KGB cryptonym "KRYMOVA", was turned over to

| NOSENKO by another Seventh Department case officer, I.A.
* KONSTANTINOV, in 1956 or 1957.  She was educated at the

Military InstitUte of Foreign Languages, where she studied
military subjects as well as foreign languages. When
NOSENKO became her case officer she was worklng as an

_interpreter at the Russian Permanent Exhibit in Moscow. She

continued this job until about 1960, when she became an
instructor in the Greek language at the Institute of
International Relations. She reported to MOSENKO information

e 108
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t@g'f*whlch she obtalned on. forelgn delegates or forelgn tourists
- “.who Vvisited the EXhlblt in Moscow,'and on foreign delegates
. 'attending meetlngs at the Mlnlstry -of Agriculture, where
.. she sexrved as-an 1nterpreter in English and Greek. RYTOVA
- "served several times as an- 1nterpreter for Khrushchev ‘and
' once participated .in a conversation hé had with the Iowa
. .farmer [Roswelll]. GARST. In 1959 or 1960 she was sent as
- an 1nterpreter with a small delegation visiting GARST's
“ia;farm in the United: States, and was used by the. KGB Legal -
'”'Re51dency in-Washington to” report obsérvations made enroute..
~-and while there.. RYTOVA was married to a captain or major
¢ who works in a mllltary office in Moscow. She had one :
A“daughter, approx1mately 14 years old. o e A

rcohmenf:‘}RYTOVA served as. an 1nterpreter for Roswell
- ‘”.V'ffffGARST in the- USSR 1n 1955, 1959 and 1963 and
‘she visited .the U. S in 1958 ‘and 1962. Her

.;(f”blographlc data is con51stent w1th the lnfor— ‘
;Nmatlon related by NOSENRO -

? Yevgenlya ("Jane) DANKO

DANKO, KGB cryptonym‘"OKSANA"; worked in the{émerlcanZZﬁ
;‘w:Express CompaﬁﬂBOfflce in Moscow for|Arserié_FRIPPEL|UL :
~(NOSENKO's agent, see p.137) and later fOor(JFRIPPEL[s> Q%
successor,\Mlghagl_g§§l§§yg;§10@NOSENRO took DANKO over .

-from Seventh Department .case officer I.A. KONSTANTINOV in

dgfff 1955 1957.- She was" used to report on[:ELISAVCIélx

- Comment' DANLO was an Inturlst gulde in 1956 1958 and o
T 1959 and she was worklng for the’ A@erlcaHZﬂ s
'nx,\ExPress Company| office in 19606é FRIPPEL|left -
"~ MOscow in 19617 by which time NOSENKO ha

'H7: :"f :‘ Tffeij transferrea from the Seventh Department..

cbcio~0”’

s Y J e e o
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Soviet Homosexual Agents

The KGB operations which NOSENKO described commonly

involved sexual entrapment, . Many of the operations in

which he claimed a personal role involved the use of homo-
Sexual agents, KGB agents whose homosexuality was exploited
against susceptible male targets. While NOSENKO was never
their official case officer, in specific recruitment-
entrapment operations he worked with "LUCH", "NIKOLAYEV",
"SIBBYAK", "KOSHIKIN" and "STROYEV" (Victor BELANOVSKIY, é
used in the compromise ofggichard BURGI, VASSALL, and the<3
Canadian Ambassador WATKINS). He provided virtually no
bPersonality information on them and usually could not recall
their true names. Two such homosexuals,-however, VOLKOV
and YEFREMOV, NOSENKO claimed were his own agents.

NOSENKO claimed to have re-recruiteg VOLKOV, a former
agent (cryptonym "SHMELEV") and recruited YEFREMOV :
(cryptonym “GRIGORIY") and- to have been their sole case

1958 until they were discharged in 1963 because they had
become too well known. He said he met them frequently,

and directed them in at least a dozen entrapment operations
or other homosexual encounters., NOSENKO claimed he took
them with him when he transferred to the American Department
in 1960 and back again in early 1962 to the Seventh
Department. . S

 YEFREMOV and VOLKOV

Because he had been Seen meeting a foreigner in a
public toilet in Moscow, NOSENKO said, the KGB concluded’
that A.1. VOLKOV ‘might be a homosexual and hence of some
operational value. To verify this possibility in 1957, a
homosexual agent of the Moscow Criminal Investigations

- Department  provoked VOLKOV into a compromising situation.

Then VOLKOV, who had Previously been a KGR agent but was

at this time inactive, was Summoned by the KGB and, after
NOSENKO interrogated him, he admitted his hbmosexuality and
agreed to NOSENKO's broposal to work for the KGB among

110
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homosexuals. VOLKOV helped NOSENKO the following year to
recruit a homosexual acquaintance, Aleksey (patronymic not
recalled) YEFREMOV. The two agents subsequently worked

as a team against foreigners under NOSENKO's direction; in
addition to specific targets, they had the general assign-
ment of associating with foreign visitors in Moscow for the
purpose of spotting possible homosexuals. NOSENKO described
on 12 June 1962 his use of these agents:

"Although I am a chief of section there I
have all sorts of agents. I have a good agent
apparatus. I have beautiful girls, whom I can
use as I like. I have homosexuals, in particu-
lar, one special pair. I am afraid they are
known to both you and the British... I permitted
this pair to work [without specific assignments]
on their own. I give them money and tell them
to go look around, but only Americans. Look for
American pederasts. They call me at night:
'"Yuriy Ivanovich. There is a mister so-and-so
here.' I say: 'Well, let him [do what he
wants]. We'll talk about it tomorrow.' So the
next day they go” to a special hotel room. We
make photographs. Then we think about what he
represents. Is he worth it? Then, as Chief, I
recommend that he be recruited or not--depending-‘
on his position, what he can give, what he can
tell. If he can give something, I say: 'Well,
let's have a go [igrat].' After this, I speak
to these boys: 'Well, go with him again. Do
whatever is wanted.' All this is observed by
the KGB. The [hotel] administrator enters.
'What are you doing?' The administrator calls
the Militia. An akt is drawn up. 'Well, you
are a foreigner. ~Thig is not our business. - We
don't know what to do with you.' Then the Chief
arrives and a conversation ensues: ‘Listen,
what shall we do? Pederasty is punishable by
three to five years and now, on the basis of
recent legislation, by up to eight. Understand,
if your friends find out that you are a pederast—-
and how can they help but find out'..."
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“Then NOSIENKO moved from the Seventh Department to
the Second Chief Directorate's American Department in
January 1960, he took VOLKOV and YEFREMOV with him. They
were never used against targets in the American Embassy
but, NOSENKO said, the Seventh Department "used to call
me on homosexual prospects", VOLKOV and YEFREMOV continued
as active KGB agents until some time in 1960 _or 1961.
After they were employed once more [againstﬁzéE. JOHNSON in(Dé
January 1962] it was decided that they were oo well
known". NOSENKO claimed that the agents were retired and

~that he himself sent their files to KGB Archives in 1962

or 1963.

NOSENKO's Soviet Agents: Summary

NOSENKO claims to have been these agents' case officer
for two to five years, during which he met each regularly, .
assigned them operational tasks, and received their reports.
With the exception of YEFREMOV and VOLKOV, however, NOSENKO
can cite few instances of thelr operational use, and he has
but superficial knowledge of their personal backgrounds.

It is unlikely that this is merely the result of failing
recollection. He knows no more about the three whom he
claimed he took with him to the Embassy Section, where he
continued to be their case officer for two more years, than

‘he does about the others. In the two instances where his

agents were involved in KGB operational activity, NOSENKO ,
is unaware of SHULGINA's work with LEVINE andYERIBEEQ, an
was not involved when KUNGAROVA was targetted against and
married CIA agent Philip NIELSEN. NOSENKO's familiarity

ith the nine agents he named appears to be that which
would be acquired second hand, not through personal contact
as he claimed. - -

With respect to YEFREMOV and VOLKOV, the evidence does
not sustain NOSENKO's claim that he was their case officer .
in every operation from their recruitment in 1957 until
their retirement in 1962-1963. He is unfamiliar with either

" agent's background., He cannot say where either of them

lived or, indeed, how he got in touch with them when he
required their services. With the exception of the[%.E.Dg
JOHNSOQ]Compromise in 1962 (see p.268), all of VOLKOV's and
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Lo EFRTMOV s Lnown act1v1tles w1th respect to Amerlcans toor
':_place ln “the ‘course ofless than twelve months in 1939— -
©. 1960, » It is-probable that TIOSENRO's: claim that he was '’
'fwthelr sole case officer during even this relatively brief
© .period is also false._ In the perlod Aprll —-jovember. 195J,~f
. ““apparently. unLnown to JOSENKO, ‘'VOLKOV. and YEFREMOV were. . .
~invclved with one Dutch and five American visitors (1nc1ud1ng
"three CIA- agents) in the Soviet Union. Further, in other
- contexts JIOSEIKO has described t )eir ipyolvement wlth -
Amerlcanszgé”LA:}xsee 'p.419) and[XARLOV| .in 1959, 0& 35, .
-of which NOSIIINO only learnec when he retired VOLKOV s and
'YEFREMOV's file in 1962-1963. K ARLOVlwas 2 Swedish, not
‘an Amerlcan, c1tlzen ] ST 05 P .

;bperétienalfAEtiVities,(1§55;1§58)}_.QN-
- Tourist Section Casc Officer .-

S Accordlng to ﬂOSINYO,gnc was among t1e flrst case offlcers_f
'?gto ‘arrive in the Seventh Department Tourist Section when it

+ 'was  being’ formee.‘; ile 'took part with other officers in the
‘acquisition of an agent network from-.within Inturlst, In’ Lhe‘”
,establlshmcnt of fac1llt1es and. methods, and generally

o gettlng thlngs going" . After several months, he. part1c1—'
‘pated in ‘what he says was’ his first operation agalnst an
‘American’ tourist. . This was NOSTNFO's Lehind-the- ~s¢cenes -

‘(and . hence unconflrmed ancd unsuccessful attempt to compro—i
‘mise American studenttﬁartln MALIé}N)VOQFJ {0's next case ... . -
o (the first operatlon in wiich his partlclnatlon is- conflrmed)"
. I‘took place a year later, in June 1956, when he assisted, in.

- the homosexual entrapment and recrultment offggofessor @é

y Cﬁﬁchard Ddeg.g;Sometlme in 1957, he said, he was personally
‘ft%jlnvolveowih the attempted recrultment of the{§erman bu51ness-H
= GFhRCKEE%land in the’ sexual and blacharhet enEfE“ment of - )
S _SUNDARy a»@prweg*aﬂ“ journalist. oth’EET'RCKPNjO nd GUNDAj Oé

“admitted to having been tne object of KGB. recruitment”
attempts, the former reluctantly in a Drlvate 1nterv1ew, and
© the latter publlcly in the press. It nas. been pOSSlble to
p?questlon neither in-detail. ] NOSENXZO's' presence in the .. - .-
. third "operation" 1nf1957 is confirmed: he accompanied the
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o ¢

British publisher Sir Allen LAﬁg}and the latter's inter-
publishing houses. ,
According to NOSEN%?, it was for the purpose of observing

0
Oé[?IRSE} a sqspected,British intelligence agenE}(Eg

6b

Attempted Entrapment of MALI§E(1955L
| - =D6 ,
Dé ' NOSENKO's Information

[&artin MALIél a graduate student, spent about four months
in the USSR in 1955 and was suspected by the XGB of having
connections with American Intelligence. _Toward the end of
his stay, while under surveillance, |MALIA \was observed in é
contact with a Soviet citizen believéd to be a homosexual.
The Soviet was detained by the KGB, and NOSENKO eventually
obtained a confession that he had had homosexual relations
with MALI§P‘ NOSENKO arranged for the Soviet to introduce
"MALIANto @ KGB homosexual agent, and the latter enticed

QET@ALIA to a specially equipped hotel room in Moscow. NOSENKO .

0b

was on the scene (but not directly in touch with MALIﬂ)ﬂwben ‘
the introductions were made in a Moscow restaurant, aind from
an observation point in a neighboring hotel room he watched
the KGB agent'and[EALIA in homosexual practices. E@ALIE!DQ
insisted on the 1ights being turned off, however, and it was
impossible to oBtain compromising photographs (the KGB did
not yet have infrared photographic equipment) and therefore

_ no recruitment approach was made to[@ALIE.D During this and

a later trip to Moscow in 1961,[gALIA was "very cautious", ()
and the KGB never succeeded in € ploltingngLIAf% homo- Ob
sexuality for a recruitment approach.

» Db o |
Comment: E@ALIQ, a U.S. Navy intelligence officer during
World War II, visited the Soviet Union in 1955
and twice in 1962. While buying books for the
Library of Congress and several universities
O in 1955, |MALIA\ travelled over 10,000 miles
throughout thé USSR, an event sufficiently
unusual at the time to be publicized in the
Soviet press. On 1955 and 1962 trips he had
contacts with dissident Soviet citizens and

he smuggled to the West literature for publishing
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Comnent. (Contlnued) T S "Dé“'/” ' -
“abroad.  In’ December 1963[5@,Ié]was the ob]ect
of ‘an. attack in’ the Soviet press- which charged
“that during 1962 he had "spent his time 'in
Mpsocw looking for: dissension in the ranks of
Dé younillntellectuals at drunken (ebauches

E@ALIP was then .in oerlodlc contact with- CIA,
in t spring -of 1963 he-cdenied having had
any, ‘involvement witil blackmarketeers,’ ‘homo--
Eexuals, or females. inside tne,oov1et Union.
D [ﬁALI?}nas not been interviewed in connec—
tlon Wi TOGE KO's allegations. - '

0b

o Pecrultment of BURGE)(1956)

N At an flrst meetlng w1tu CIA in Geneva in 1962 NOSEN

ave a brief account of the recrultment oflechard uUQG@, a Ué
alewﬁrofeobof} The recruitment was effectéd on the basis
of a honosexual provocatlon operatlon whlch began in Moscow»

aﬁd culmlnatec w1tn an approach 1n Klev 1n June 1956.;

.nThlS recruttment, wnlcn occurred cloee in tlme to the
*dcath of - HOQEuLO s fatiier, was by HOSLNKO's later accounts .
a turning. p01nt in his personal and’ profeSSLOnal llfe.jj,;. .
- From- it, MNOSENKO. sald e acqulreo a sense of self-confidence’
4 ;and respon51olllty and- began to-“"grow" from a wastrel into-
”Qean effective and successful KGB- offlcer. As a result of =
' ?Ethle operatlon, the first successful rccrultment in-the then

sliort nistory of. the’ Tourlst Section, MNOSEMNKO asserted he
;,flrst came into personal contact with' General GRIBANOV.,

~According to- ‘all accounts ‘he gave prlor to October 1966,
'ﬁwhen ne retracted the clalm, NO%T 1%XO received the flrst of .-

(ﬁbof the‘ngGi}case—~a letter of conmendatlon. Wlthln a month -
;_}of this operation, HOGENAO sald, he was promoteo from the :
'b‘rank of lleutenant to captaln.v" L . S

.
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NOSENKO's Information

NOSENKO stated that at the time of BURGI!'s arrival in
the USSR, his file contained a copy of his visa application
(anketa), "maybe" an excerpt from a cable sent by the ‘
Soviet Embassy in the United States saying that a visa had
been granted, a routine note from Inturist giving BURGi}s ()6
anticipated date of arrival and his itinerary inside the
Soviet Union, and the results of file checks of the KGB
main Archives and of the First Chief Directorate Archives.

" NOSENKO himself ran the file checks, which proved to be

negative; there was no information on record concerning
BURGT, and since no other names were mentioned in the

The KGB interest in Gi&aérived exclusively from the fact

D%nwtefial avalilable %ﬁigURéﬂ, no other checks were made.
. Db, BU

¥ that he was |a professor of Slavic studie¥]and therefore

0h

had contact with students who might eventually work for the
U.S. State Department, American Intelligence, and for other
target organizations. NOSENKO did not recall who first
suggested an attempt to recruit him.

i8]

When[gURGilarrived in the Soviet Union, he came in :
contact with a number of KGB agents, and their reports were
placed in an informal file maintained by NOSENKO. NOSENKO
could not recall how many such agents there may have been,
their names, or what they might have reported concerning

(BURGIL (6(BURGI] had an Inturist interpreter but NOSENKO did
not Know whether he was a KGB agent.) From some source,
ame forgotten by NOSENKO, the KGB obtained incdications that

‘ n
“DQ§pRGI was a homosexual, and it was decided to try to obtain

Bk

grounds for recruitment by homosexual compromise. NOSENKO
therefore approached Yu. A. LOPUKHOV, an officer of the
British Department who handled the homosexual agent Viktor
BELANOVSKIY, and- asked permission to use BELANOVSKIY in
setting up the compromise. =~ After pérmission had been .
received to mount an operation on this basis, LOPUKHOV and
NOSENKO met with BELANOVSKIY and instructed him to make
[EURGi}s’acquaintance in a hotel dining room. The compromise
proceeded according to plan: BELANOVSKIY met [BURGL, thel
fact of common homosexuality was recognized, and[ﬁURGi}waS(ﬁé
invited to BELANOVSKIY's hotel room where homosexual acts
took place and photographs were made. NOSENKO was in the
adjoining room and directed the compromise, although he did
not meetE?URGz}at this time.

o
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As the result of NOSENKO s spec1a1 request, the compromlslng

v? fphotographs were ‘ready by the- follow1ng day.- A report of the
'~ compromise- and a request: for perm1551on to-attempt. recruitment

>"were then submitted to NOSENKO's superiors. The request .came
back with the approving signatures of O.M. GRIBANOV and A.S.

3¥FEKLISOV, the Chief of the American Department. of' the 'First

f;;Chlef Dlrectorate, which had expressed interest in- u51ng[§URG:]Oé
" in the United States%é BURGI|'Svitinerary called for him to fly

‘d,from Moscow to Kiev a short’® hile after: this episode and,

. having called: the Kiev KGB with instructions, NOSENKO .and XKOZLOV
- flew there. to prepare the operation. {?URGI\arrlved the next 6
morning. and was met-at the airport. by (£nu)” KHODAKOVSKIY, an '*

L_ugofflcer .of the Second Dlrectorate 1n Klev who operated under
I‘Inturlst cover.;.:;a. o . . S

, In accordance(thh the operatlonal plan, the local KGB .
'offlcer told[éURGI enroute to the city that all the hotels in

‘'Kiev-'were full at the moment because of various conferences, o
{A;,but that ‘Inturist had arranged for him to stay for about a day
“.in a prlvate apartment in the center of. town; he ‘would ‘be

moved to. a hotel as soon as possible. . When the car arrlved at

- the. apartment building in Kiev, 'NOSENKO, KOZLOV, V. S.-_»m'

o PETRENRO, a ' local-KGB offlcer, and (fnu) RASTYKAITE, -a: woman
"'housekeeper, were waiting for them..  NOSENKO could not 0 :
- remember: how or whether he- 1ntroduced himself to”BURG e The
~recruitment’conversation, he ‘said, was handled by “KO LOV— L
NOSENko"f but NOSENLO had forgotten by 1965 who sald what*,

S don t remember what I talked about and I don t
.remember -what KOZLOV talked about. Many things:..= -
" were’ discussed.’ “It started with how he liked. hlS P
stay in the Soviet Union:.. . Then we slowly .pro- :
ceeded . to’ 'say how unfortunate it was that informa--
L tion. had beén ‘received about his ‘conduct:in Moscow. E
. We:told him that his homosexual activities were i

I known; - that this was punishable under Soviet law . .

- according to article so-and-so of ‘the ¢riminal" code,,a,'”
.- etc.,~that- he was not a diplomat, had no dlplomatlc
_ ﬂnlmmunlty, that ‘he could be taken to court according -

"* to the Soviet law... ¥Well, he was scared;- confused
... -upset,- and. felt uncomfortable. Then we slowly -

17'proceeded to say that everythlng could be smoothed

T Cuti&&?
. 7 SR
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out, and the basis was prepared for the man to say:
'All right, I agree to help'... We showed him the
pictures. He was embarrassed of course--he was
naked: Then we prepared the basis: 'You have a
noble task. You teach; you have students; the
students may become future specialists on Russia or
may work as diplomats, etc., but many of these
students can be used by intelligence. They may be
sent somewhere with special tasks. Maybe you will
tell us who among the students is preparing for
government service, how they are distributed, etc.'...
During the first conversation everything was made
completely clear... He was not at all willing to
help or work for Soviet Intelligence. He was told
that he must understand that in this case ‘helping
Soviet Intelligence' was a very broad term. I
remember that I told him: 'Understand, nobody is
going to ask you that you help our friends over
there, or me, if I should be there, or that you do
anything bad or conduct any kind of subversive
activities, that you organize explosions or murder.'

( fter the Soviet Union, he was supposed to go to

l [:{[Ttalb to visit the (Russicum] of the [Vatican] and & 1

ere KOZLOV grabbed the subject and began to ask

_guestions about this school. He told us a bit about

0%the{§ussicu@}and we asked him to write about it and
he wrote down some names of the professors who -

' teach Russian subjects..." '

According to NOSEI,O,-the~discussion lasted about five 'C-
hours; at its end BURdilsigned a short statement that ne 06
agreed "to assist the organs of Soviet Intelligence". o
: (NOSENKO first said that it was he who took this statement
Qéfrom[EURG@ but later he could not remember whether it was
he or KOZLOV.) |BURGI|was then taken to a hotel.
_ ' : )
" This was the figg% time NOSENKO met[ﬁURGﬂ. Following
the recruitment, he moved into the same hotel, a floor above
OEEEURQQ, and for the remainder of[?URGIYs stay in Kiev became (){,
his constant companion and guide. An attempt was made "to
smooth out all the dirty business that had been brought up
during the recruitment talk". NOSENKO took[?ﬁRG?Lto an old Oé
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- cathedral in hlev, w1th KOZLOV and PFTRFNKO they v151ted a.
kolkhoz and therwriter SHEVCHENKO's grave in nearby Kaniv.

. The subject of homosexuality was not raised. again. From.
;E Klev,EEURGlxleft the Soviet Union without returning to

. Moscow. “Before: the approach, NOSENKO had visited the

- American Department of the First Chief Directorate and had
“arranged with . its chief, FEKRKLISOV, for a reccntact. plan in
New York City should[EURGi}be recruited.’ [@URG@]was 0 C7é

~instructed how. to use a recognition signal for a flrst
N meetlng 1n the New York Publlc lerary.. :

- About flve days after returnlng to_Moscow, NOSEVKO

turned ‘over all his materlals on the[;URGIEPperatlon to 06

Rithe ‘First Chief Directorate. Somewhat lafer Sergey GUSLOV,

.. .Chief of the American-Canadian-British Tourist -Section, .
“ KOZLOV;and NOSENKO. visited American Department Chief FFKLISOV_"

L:ln the First Chief Directorate .and expressed an interest in

. further developments in the case. FEKLISOV told them that

(ﬂ>[§URGI had been observed to arrive for the first meeting but

" . the RGB refrained from establishing contact.. The first ‘

o actual meeting in New York City took, place the second or thlrd

'{y>t1meI§URgg>appeared, -and a.KGB officer of the New York- Legal

e Re51oency continued to meet with him until the revolution in

.Hungary in late [October] 1956, wnen[;URGiPrefused to colla- 0L

‘borate’ further., NOSENKO later -heard from someone in the - -

-American Department ‘First Chief Directorate that ‘the case .

. 'was .closed. . For their roles in this first recruitment of .

. the . 'Seventh" Department, NOSENKO said he and .KOZLOV- received

- letters of commendation and bonuses of one month's’ pay by '
-order of SEROV, Chairman of the KGB; PETRENKO was giveén -a

‘letter of. commendatlon ‘and 'half .a month's salary; - and even

'RASTYLAITE, the housekeeper, got a commendatlon. ' :

KIS In 1964 NOSENRO reported for the flrst tlme that hls

‘superior, A.S. KOZLOV, Deputy Chief of the Seventh. Depart-

Tent, had also taken part in- -this. operatlon, but. that he, .~

;;NOSENKO, was the respon51ble case-officer. ' In August 1965,-'

. when asked who had recrulted{EURGI *1T0SEMKO replled°06

© "KCZLOV- and. NOSENIO." Asked who Fecruited. him first, -

NOSENKO said: "KOZLOV, naturally. : I'e was the Deputy Chlef
0of the. Department * The collection of the materials [in .

. preparation for the approach] was- 1n the hands of Case B

Offlcer NOSENLO " : :

o Cuﬁijog
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Comment: In a 22 November 1957 interview with the FBI,.
(L [BURGI] had recounted how he was compromised
and fecruited by the KGBwhile in the USSR in
June 1956. His version substantially confirmed
‘ that.provided eight years later by NOSENKO.
()G[EURGI asserted (contrary to NOSENKO's account)
that the KGB officers knew a good deal more
' about him than what might have been acquired
06 during [BURGI]'s visit to the USSR, including
: details of {BURGI's close relatives, his work
og fo with the[Russicum]in[Romg), his earlier travel
_ to Brazil, his military service in Korea, and
his acquaintance with Alexander KERENSKY.
[on 25 May 1964 [BURGI|positively identified
SENKO (from a phGtograph) as being the
junior of the two KGB officers who recruited
him. The other KGB officer (KOZLOV) was ‘the
controlling figure and was in command”.
06The[§URGi}caSe is the earliest confirmed
instance of NOSENKO's participation in a KGB
operation. See p.39 for comment on the
/), relevance of theE?URGI case to the period of
NOSENKO's claime
Department. . (967
NOSENKO's claim that]BURGITs compromise
and recruitment was based only on information ,
‘routinely acquired from [BURGI's visa applica-{)i
_ tion and from apparently chafice meetings with
KGB agents on his arrival in Moscow, is ,
contradicted by [(BURGI\s description of the(ﬁé
KGB's familiarity with his personal life.
NOSENKO carinot sustain _his claim of having
personally traced| BURGI) through First Chief 06
[Foreign Intelligénce] Directorate files (the
probable repository of information onEEURGi]
which the KGB recruiting officers used).
NOSENKO, as described elsewhere, is unfamiliar
with the mechanics of KGB tracing procedures. .
OL According to|[BURGI)'s statement and NOSENKO's
own eventual admi¥sion, NOSENKO lied when he

servlce,in,the Seventh

GJ ‘
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Comment: . (Contlnued) - DT Oé R

' . first clalmed to have recrulted{EURGi]unaided
- NOSENKO has’ subsequently retracted all clalms
- regarding the effect of this. case on his.
;jcareer._ Contrary to his earlier assertlons,
..~ h& now says it won him nelther awards nor
jf~promot10n.;ﬁ R e

}?Attempted Recrultment of\GEhRCKENS (1957)

NOSENKO = Informatlon

'DG 7NOSENLO made ‘an. ur unsuccessful recrultment approach 1n 1957

to; Hamburg shlpplng executivé Hans GEHRCKENS-'on the ba51s

'Ogof EHRE&EN@L>commer01al ventures in the USSR.: " The respon51~f;
~.-ble case officer originally was A.I. VERENIKIN of the Sixth
Section .of the Seventh Department;. this sectlon was then -
respon51ble for operations .against foreign 'seamen.:. .Since:
VERENIRIN spoke*noﬂgerman and‘;AHRCKENE]was known to” speakOé
Engllsh, NOSENKO was sélected fo make fhe approach_ because . ;
he . "knew Engllsh a little". 'When asked why a[german d? ;af[j”r“'”
speaking KGB case offlcer ‘was not used, NOSENK answered-* '“"1,
"The hlgher-ups ‘'said 'go work on this case'; and that was"

all." . After being rebuffed by« FHRCKEN%} NOSENKO saw hlnlag
several more: times durlng the 1957 visif to Moscow, but when.
NOSENKO attempted 40 renew c¢ontact upon[?EHRCKENS\‘return(%
to~the Sov1et-Unlon 1n 1958, the latter refused o see hlm.-4

L Oé R RS S S

[éEHRCLEN@Lwas 1nterV1ewed by CIA on 19 July

1965, and; while generally uncooperatlve,'“~'*

described a "mild approach" in Moscow during .

©:1956 -or 1957 which may be . .the one described by =

. NOSENKO. - (He ‘was not questloned on the ..’

. identities of ‘the Soviets involved.): G EFRCREN%]OQ_
" continues to have exten51ve business contacts =

- with Soviet”commercial representatlves lnerstl(

Germanijand was recently reported to have

e,

- ‘.“0001391“*
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Comment: (Continued) (D?’[ }
negotiated a sizable[?hipping contract with the
Soviet Union shortly after a“Visit to the USSR.
His principal contact at the Soviet Trade
Mission in{?blogné]has been a GRU officer.

‘ 10
0 04,

;w;é%. Contact with[?AN%}and[gﬁRSél(1957)

NOSENKO's Information

The British subject[éir AllegéLANE]travelled in the
summer of 1957 to the Soviet Union to visit various publishing
houses and brought with him as an interpreter|[Arthur BIRSE) (),
The latter was of Russian extraction, having I&ft Petrograd
(Leningrad) before the Revolution, and he served in g
|during the Second World War. The case Was '
. handled by dnother section of the Seventh Department, but
,(X)because of[EIRSEYS past, "some of our leaders decided that
it would be good if one of our workers could approach him,
would get in on the case under the cover of the Ministry of
Culture, who would take care of this person, who would help
him meet with all sorts of people representing our publishing
companies.  The choice fell to me. I was chosen for this '
job." Taking along the KGB agent Larissa SOBOROVA as an
interpreter and using the alias "NIKOLAYEV", NOSENKO
’ Ciﬁéaccompanied BIRSE}and[iANE in Moscow and Leningrad during
' -their stay there.” The only object was to watch BIRS%]O
because he was suspected of having an intelligence mission,
and no approach was made or contemplated. NOSENKO explained .
that the use of the NIKOLAYEV alias with[BIRSE]and[LANE Jmade(J{ ((
it necessary for him to use the same namé when travelling
to Great. Britain in 1957 and in 1958. '

i
i
1
i

Comment: |LANE'was interviewed subsequent to NOSENKO's -
eféction, and he was able to identify NOSENKO's
photograph as that of a "Russian official he
P -~ met in Moscow who was introduced to him as
e : "NIKOLAYEV", L&ANE}said that he could remember

A
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;Comment;“ (Contlnued) o : ' ‘
o ;‘g’ .noething in partlcular about NIKOLAYEV except
' :that ‘he- appeared a "friendly, helpful man who
~ had- opened up con81derably towards the end of
my visit to.Moscow in July 1957". = e
'NOSENKO seems unaware of the probable ba51s
for ‘KGB .interest 1n{ﬁIRSE .0{ Born ofjspottlsh>C)

, 7vserved with the[B¥itish Military. NlSSldg in
Moscow during "orld War II and was 1nterpreter'
Oé for |Churchiill vduring the latter's- meeting - -
O@ with: Stallﬁ} He. wa§#tgeg§ff101al 1nterpretenC)%
: for the Royal Comm1551oﬁ]1nvest1gat1n§‘Eﬁé“ff
revelatlons "of KGB.officers Vladimir PETROV-- ,
"1ana his wife, who defected in 1954 in Australla.
U 'NOSENKO apparently does ‘not know that[?IRSETQé
~?greturned on similar trips to Moscow in 1958
tand 1959 (while NOSENKO was 'still in-the: -
. “Tourist Section) and. that "ih the latter year L
’;__ two KGB offlcers attempted to’ recrult hlmﬁlgfa

el

gll SUNDAﬂ\ugs?)

NOSENKO's Informatlon - _

In 1957 or l958~a[§orweg1an journallst,mjfnu) SUNDA@;{Q.

v151ted the Soviet Union a and an attempt was made to recrult

s him. A Second Chief: Dlrectorate officer, N.A. ARKHIPOV,:

: Dé made[%ﬂNDAﬁ]s acquaintance: and handled the entire . operatlon
- ' against hin,. but NOSENKO h himself pgayed a role.; NOSENKO
presented himself to: @UNDAT{:],OLus:Lng the name’ "SMIRNOV" or _
"SERGEYEV" and posihg as a’ painter, and toldASUNDA;Lthat he(963
‘could find women for him. A’ party was arranged wi a KGB ‘

Dbagent as: Sﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁrx\date and a Second Chief Directorate secre-
- tary. as NOSENKO's. Late_in the evening NOSENKO. and: his date :

- excused ‘themselves, - and[;UNDA “had sexual relatlons w1th thec%'

- female: agent. - Photogra is of the scene were takén by the-

KGB. . When NOSENKO and‘&QﬂQﬁR saw. one another the next day,ué

Oé[:yNDAR‘announced that he had some articles, cameras and the "

E llke, that he wanted to bell on the blackmarket.:,NOSENKO '

,""(}Geigové -

123 i
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06

offered to arrange the sale and took[gUNDAéjto a dingy
section of Moscow. As they arrived before a small house,

06 NOSENKO asked |SUNDAR)to give him the things to be sold. At
t+his moment a KGB officer posing as a militiaman approached

‘ and arrested the two for blackmarketeering. At the Militia

O£>station,[§UNDA§3was recruited by K.N. DUBAS, then Chief of
the Seventh Department, under threat of imprisonment. There
'was -no further contact with SUNDAR)after he left the USSR, GG
however, because on his return to Oslo) he published an |
article in which he described his éxpériences, "but not all
of them". :

0h,0%, 10
Comment: Eﬁgil SUNDAR, a journalist for Aftenposten in
Oslo), travelled to the USSR in December 1957
- as member of a press delegation in connection
with thidiéening of a new|[SASlair route to29
S
- he

Moscow ) UNDAE]wrote an article on his return
in which described his arrest for blackmarket
activities and his subsequent recruitment; he"
_also reported this to Norwegian authorities.
- (b According to[SUNDAE}‘he was introduced to
Moscow blackmarketeers by an artist, whose
name he did not know, and was apprehended . ‘
 jmmediately afterwards. [SUNDAR'!has not. been 06
interviewed on the basis of NOSENKO's infor-
mation. :

Travel to London (1957-1958)

NOSENKO reported that his first official travel outside
the Soviet Union was in 1957 when he was selected to
accompany a group of athletes who had been invited to visit
London. As he explained, it was a KGB order that a security
officer accompany any such delegation. [MNOSENKO elsewhere
cited this KGB practice, but later denied any such order was
issued]. The Eleventh Department of the Second Chief Direct-
orate (responsible for designating Second Chief Directorate

- 030138 124
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) *offlcers for thlS purpose) telephoned R.N. DUBA%, Chlef of
‘.'ythe ‘Seventh Department, to: .request “an officer who spokev
“- English. 'DUBAS. asked NOSENKO whether he wanted to make the
U trip. o NOSFNKO replled°* "Why not7 I have never been .
"abroad yet." NOSENKO consequently travelled to- Lonan,.;
using the allaa Yuriy Ivanovich NILOLAYEV and posing-as-
""the deputy chief" of the delegatlon. ‘He ‘Was spec1f1cally
:“1n5tructed to observe one member of the delegatlon, ‘a woman L
~named - MYARIMYAYE,.whose father had been killed in a Soviet =
- prison and whose political reliability. was ‘uncertain. x
72’Add1t10nally, he had: the-general task of watchlng all
- members of the delegatlon for p0551bly suspicious contacts
~with foreigners. The delegatlon consisted of - approximately
o 60 persons. and to help him in ‘carrying out.these duties,. -
. NOSENKO was assxgned three or four agents and several
-1operatlonal contacts' among the. delegation members. ‘He was
-,the only KGB. securlty offlcer whlch accompanled the group.

] lhe second trlp to London took place a. year later,_ln

the fall of.- 1958, again as ‘a’ securlty escort, -This time

=, he accompanled a-delegation of eleven or twelve boxers,vand :
5vg.aga1n he used the alias. NIKOLAYEV_and the cover position of' .. ...
.~ deputy chief of the delegatlon.» NOSENKO said he was the LR
. only securlty officer with the delegation, and he had two -
agents and two- operatlonal contacts among the boxers.  His
- assignment was: general' no one in particular was kept under :

- observation, and the KGB had no derogatory. 1nformatlon‘
'fconcernlng any member of the delegatlon.n

;i NOSENKO used the NIKOLAYEV allas for travel to London~,7
'lbecause it was the alias used earlier with the British - °

.At"sub;ects[%IRSE}andJEANﬁk> NOSENKO explalned thlS 51tuat10n

_;u_as follows. 0k OQ - S

"With )EIRgE and @ANE I used the name NIKOLAYEV,
'[pYurly Ivanov1c -a répresentatlve of the Ministry ..
o of Culture.- And then when the question was. ralsed
" of sending me in 1957 with the delegatlon to’ -
‘England, I’ was forced to go there as NIKOLAYEV.
‘'Because [of this] I went as the assistant head of
- the delegation, agaln representlng ‘the Mlnlstry of
* Culture. I didn't go under my own name because it

’f'was de01ded that ‘when' these people Q1IRSE\andjLANﬁ%

OE R 06
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went back to England, they would tell who they were
with [report their contacts in the USSR]. They
would probably questionEEiRSé]especially; as one 06
who used to work in intelligehce... [BIRSE|would 04
say: 'There was this man from the Ministry of
Cilture, NIKOLAYEV. He was with us all the time,
even went to Lefhingrad with us.' So they would
say: 'How does he look [what does he look like]?'
He would say: 'He looked so-and-so.' 1I'd go there,
and they would look at me and say: - 'How come this
man--his name is NOSENKO, and yet he is very
similar to the one described by[@IRSEL' That wasOé
why it was decided I have to go again under the
name NIKOLAYEV. Just a matter of conspiracy.

Since I already became known as NIKOLAYEV to the
Britishers, this would be noticeable.,"

Comment: That NOSENKO (as NIKOLAYEV) took the trips is
corroborated by|British records) according to\\
which, a Yuriy IVanovich NIKOL YEV, born 30
October 1927, arrived at London from Brussels
on 20 August 1957. His visa application
described him as a member of a group invited
by the Light Athletics Association to partici-
pate in contests in London. He left on 27 ‘
August 1957. With the same name and date of
birth, NIKOLAYEV arrived again at London on
12 October 1958 with seventeen others, all

~described as boxers. His visa application
described him as an "office worker®, but on
his landing card, NIKOLAYEV was listed as a
boxer. He left London on 19 October 1958.
On neither visit did NIKOLAYEV attract the
attention of any] ‘122%

While these trips are corroborated, thHey

- are not material to NOSENKO's claims to have
served in the KGB positions he alleges he

held at the time.

6001.39¢ | 126 |
TS No. 197124
Top Secret Copy — 5/




'E'»io;p ,Set:reﬁ

(SEVENTII DCPARTMENT ~- June 1955-January 1960)

: - Operatlonal Act1v1t1es (1958 1960) : '
Deputv Chlef of ‘the Amerlcan—Brltlsh Commonwealth Sectlon

. -i’
K}

‘ Accordlng to NOSENRO, the %eventh Department was reorgan—

ized in June 1958, “and NOSEHIO s section, which .theretofore

“..~ . had been- concerned with operations against foreign tourists
'*}V;from all countries,. was split. lnto two new sections, one .

“fﬂconcerned with tourists from the United States and the - :
. British Commonwealth and the other with tourists from Europe,

Latin America, .and all other countries. - .NOSEHNKO claimed .

: that at that time he was promoted.to the position of Deputy

. Chief of the American-British. Commonwealth Section, "the -
W’most 1mportant sectlon “of the Seventh Department" D

AR f»In September 1958, he clalmed to have personally: recrulted
f‘Oé-Egvsella HARRIg} It was also-in 1958, he said, that he super-
vised. the sexual. entrapment of[ylrgll KRAF@ Oélthough Seventh -
Departnent Chlef DUBAS made. the actual approach. Beginning ’
‘in the sprlng of 1959 he said he directed his agents YEFREMOV ,
éLb and VOLKOV in a series of successful entrapments<¢DREW, LULI€>A
ek f’UILBY,_TAYLoﬁ],;, and’@ERTEN] U6 NOSENKO stated' that he also
“‘D ‘used. these hémosexual- ‘agents- in 1959 in compromlslng two

{American-quides at the Sokolniki I Exhibit; BARRETT and WILLER=>

\\FORQI~'F1nally,vNOSENLO said, he recruited the Moscow I,
-representative .of the[§mer1can~Express _Company, FRIPPE@]'DQ
'NOSENKO claimed that his'% Operational Success during 1959 /
‘earned him a commendation :from the KGB Chairman.: [He" has .
- since retracted all. claims to any awards earned during hlS .
- KGB,'service.] It was because of his position as Deputy o
T_Ch1ef of the. Amerlcan-Brltlsh Commonwealth Section, NOSENHD

‘Tg“jsald, that he flrst became 1nvolved with Lee Harvey OSWALDO:TT‘”

NOSENKO asserted that the recrultment of agents among ;

. h_'forelgn tourlsts was secondary to his department s principal

LY migsiony the. detection "of. Western intelligence officers and
- agents among the increasing flow of tourists v1srt1ng the
.-f-Qov1et Union. In line with that counterintelligence mission,

.- on General GRIBANOV s order in the fall of 1959 - NOSENKO

| C
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reviewed -what the KGB knew through 1958 about the use of
tourists and tourist cover by Western intelligence services.
It was from this task that NOSENKO claimed he learned of
all the important arrests and recruitments among American
tourists as recorded by the KGB at the time.

Recruitment of EARRIEﬂ (1958)
NOSENKO's Information ,
A

NOSENKO in 1958 recruited[éisella HARRIéL an employee of
the)American Express Company in Salt Lake CitiL The recruit-
ment was based on her romantic and sexual involvement with
& Soviet citizen, who told[@ARRIéjthat he was in trouble (f
with Soviet authorities and persuaded her to accompany him |
to the police. [EARRIElagreed to meet and cooperate with Oé'
the KGB in{Salt Lake City). The case was turned over to the|()
First Chief\Directorate, and NOSENKO was unaware of any -
further contact with her. - :

0k, Ug ,

Comment: [ﬁARRIS, a former German citizeEL visited the
USSR on a tourist visa in 1958, According to
statements made to the FBI in 1958, the purpose -
of her visit was to contact her former lover, .

. & Soviet soldier who had fathered her child in
,[) Germani]in 1953." She hoped to persuade him to
ivorce his Soviet wife and marry her. She
described her recruitment by two men, one of
whom resembled NOSENKO. When shown a photo-
graph in 1964, she tentatively identified o
NOSENKO as one of the men who recruited her -
and said that, of the two involved, he "wasg
definitely the man in charge" while the other
é)"was merely present and listened®. According

.O to[EARRIEL she has had no further contact with

Soviet intelligence. o

' _ : 2 1PA
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"‘ftlfei: Compromlse of[%”ﬂMi:lCé

S Oé of . e NOSENKO s. Informatlon

e e T e O

’ W1 e visited the Soviet Union as a tourist’ in 1957 or 1958,
. and NOSENKO ‘was -assi ned as. the respon51ble case offlcer.
O The IGB ‘learned{KRAFT {had been intimate with a Soviet woman
duringan earlier ‘trip~to“the USSR, -and ‘NOSENKO arranged  for -
~her to come to’ Moscow from Lenlngrad, ‘where she was then - -
llVlng, in ‘order to compromlse KRAF@ é@?uwﬂ‘and the: Sov1etcm>

£§I}§11 LRAFT/ A clergyman ~fxoi the Chlcago areai with his

'ﬂA woman. were: 1nt1mate in the “latfer's "room in the Grand Hotel.

Photographs were taken, and’ then mllltlamen broke into the

Oé room, flndlngBRAF@ and the woman - unclothed NOSENKO was 1n :
=, & nearby ‘room,. supervising the operatlon. The ‘recruitment:

" approach. was then made by DUBAS, the Chief of the Seventh
. Department.” (NOSENKO had been the case officer and had’ .

" handled the operation, but he took no .part in the confronta—
" tion or recruitment approach "because ‘DUBAS wanted it for
hlmself“.) Althougn .the ‘recruitment was not flrm,[gRAFi]Ué
.and -DUBAS' "had an agreement" that nothlng would be done ™
’about the compromlse 1£{§RA§§jd1d not .criticize ‘the Sov1et(96
/Union in lectures about his trip which he was to give iin - .
’the United: States.; DUBAS agaln contacted KRAF@]when he cameOé
/to ‘Moscow- in 1963,7'and afterwards his file was turned over o
“to the-First Chief Directorate.-. NOSENKO recalled that the?_s' .
~First: ChlEf Directorate  "said that(KRAFTjwas not .in a good Q "
freglon of the: United States.g -And ‘also i smelled  like he . -
.had spoken of the approach made to hlm.ﬂ' Therefore, NOSENLO
:aconcluded, he- probably had not been contacted 1n the Unlted

viggmgggg.. Accordlng to the FBI, ‘some time before 1960 -

- 0 CERAri]wrote a pamphlet in which he described
.. .. the KGB approach, omlttlng reference to his -
- sexual compromlse. -In a statement glven to :
" the: FBI on 4- November 1964 [?RAF?} who' is an

06
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" Ccomment: Contlnued),\ R (Dg,fo _ :
S Assoc1ate Pastor of - the PeopleswChurch in.

J gy AR

. Unien - in 1956, 1958, and 1963.  He confirmed:. .
-NOSENKO's 1nformatlon in detall except that he;jg
‘denied having been intimate with the Soviet -
woman 1nvolved He related that the "Chlef"wf~7
'who interviewed him had “several photographs

- compromising p051tlons and which appeared to-

- have been taken in her hotel room". /'KRAFT saldOé
that"he had told the "Chief" that’ they could do -
“him no p0551ble harm ‘as "no one would believe

-agreeing. to collaborate w1th the LGB at any
’tlme.‘;_ - . .

‘ ffRecrultment of[;REj]§1959)
i Oé NOSLNLO s Informatlon;\u

v [éeorge DRE@% an' Amerlcan who v151ted the Sov1et Unlon ln :
:,tbe spring of 1959, was the responsibility of case officer-
S V.V..IVANOV. By- chance, however {EREﬁ]became involved w1thC%
'*VfNOSENLO s homosexual agents VOLkOV and YEFREMOV -and tney
. reported this to NOSENKO, then the Deputy Chief of the : ﬂ~
,‘fffsectlon._ ‘NOSENKO. and .IVANOV- discussed the case with DUBAS’

7.and possibly GUSKOV, the Section Chlef,-ana NOSENKO flew .
o alone to Leningrad to make the approach.  (IVANOV was not

7l judged quallfled )« NOSENKO arranged . for{QREﬁ]to beO@
_:;comoromlsed in a Lenlngrad hotel room with a homosexual

- -agent of the local KGB handled by a Leningrad officer. .. =~

. .-y PERELETOV,. _Using the alias. "Mr. SERGEYEV", NOSENKO alone
‘i.Dbnrecrulted{§RE@}1n an ‘office of the. hotel.. The KGB First |

"uyChlef Directorate was interested. 1n\DRtT's recruitment 04 L
. because heé might be able to spot other homosexuals, p0551bly
.:*some in. the U. S Government T V ,

edoiq00 o B
IR _Top Secret:  copy

‘”_iChlcago “stated that he had visited the Sov1et,;i;”

;7:_fo;i  i‘ﬂ--:y which portrayed 'him and the female in 1nt1mateff{;;5-

‘that they were valid photographs" {:RAFf]denled Ué‘»
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Comment°,I:BE@1reported the approach in 1959 describing
. a four-hour interrogation by “SERGFYEV' :
-7 Leningrad and generally -confirming NOGENKO s S
"."account:of the operation, - Re-interviewed by <,
*-.the FBI on 12 May- 1964,E§§ﬁﬂ1dentlf1ed NOSENRO's(jé
‘photograph as that of his 1nterrogator andg '
.« 0 - said that, although NOSENKO was 'a young man,
> .o from the way everyone reacted: to him it was
~ ... clear that he was the man in charge. Another
'fg“man was: present,[@RE@]sald._- . '

ok

'3??fRecru1tment offiUhIS (1959)

‘.\,, TR

NOSENKO s Informatlon IR ' .

In June or poss1bly July 1959 NOSENKO personally recrulted !
a 'British subject,f(fnu) LUKIS (or LUCAS)|; in a room of the 06
. Hotel" Astoria in Leningra afteri;UKI§]had been compromlsed 0¢

- by NOSENKO's homosexual agents VOLKOV and YEFREMOV., The case

.was then turned over to Ye. A. TARABRIN, at that time Chief

of the Brltlsh Department of the First Chief Directorate. - L
NOSENKO furnlshed no more information on this case and-did’ ST
not ‘know its current status, but he believed the. KGB’ has el AT
Tnot ‘been’ 1n contact w1th4§?KI§]subsequently. ' Bt L

.TComment.;quKIS has not yet been 1dent1f1ed by the

[—“x,a' -

T

”avRecrultment of W LBY (1959)

| _ o NOSENKO s Information oL

B o By hlmself NOSENKO recrultedigilifaﬁ“stanley WILBf}ln a

§ - »hotel in Moscow in July 1959 er{ﬁlLE?\had been. compro—C%>

o -~ mised by_either 'VOLKOV or YEFREMOV, NOSENKO's homosexual

é" - agents.ﬁ[ﬁILB¥ is a British citizen and his case was also . C%;

3;;. "_(11kei:pKI@E;see above) turned over to TARABRIN.
. Lo T TS No.. 197124 _
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~L (
Comment : E@ILQ%]reported the approach toEéritish authori-
. ties|in 1959, saying that he was "brought up
befdore SERGEYEV" (an operational alias some-
times used by NOSENKO). He has not been
‘re-interviewed since NOSENKO!s information was
. received.

b |
Recruitment of )TI‘AYLOIE (1959)
&

NOSENKO's Information .

NOSENKO personally and alone recruited the Moscow
representative of[gritish European Airways|, whose name
- NOSENKO did not recall, at the Hotel Metrdpol in Moscow
during the summer of 1959, possibly in August. The approach
was based on homosexual compromise involving NOSENKO's
agents VOLKOV and YEFREMOV,

- NOSENKO explained that the Seventh Department in 1959
had a section dealing with_commercial representatives, which
was responsible for the[bEé}man. That section had asked
" NOSENKO's section for’help.?f

‘ "They said they didn't have any agents or any-
thing and didn't know what to do. So somebody said,
'Well look, why don't you ask the chief of the
section?  He's a specialist on homosexuals and can
arrange everything for you.' So I wound up handling
the case, and TARABRIN (of the First Chief Direct-
orate) said I should feport to him." ~

[In this passagé'NOSENKO was reférring to himself, althbugh
he has always claimed he was Deputy chief of the section.]

------------

5/6%
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Lo e oé c
’ Comment°'{;av1d‘TAYLO§1 confessed homosexual, is
e escribed bjﬂ las . a ne otlc:2ﬁ
“type who had been discharged from the |R.A.. FZ]E?
‘on grounds of mental instability. .In 1962
(before the. ‘NOSENKO lead was received) TAYLOR
_ a&mltted hlS recruitment to[@r;;;gh authorl—xz
Jties §)> indicating that it took place in August.
- 1959 on the basis of his homosexuglity. ' He
:"reported in 1962 that the recruitment had
' been effected by a "Colonel SERGEYEV" -and - .
when re-interviewed 'in 1964, he unhe81tant1y
. identified NOSENKO as.'Colonel SERGEYEV' , "
x,;‘_addlng that. the mere sight. of NOSENKO's photo—-
...~ 7~ graph "sent shivers down his back". TAYLOR: '
'Qf“ﬁ;also 1dent1f1ed a photograph of VOLKOV. Ll

.ﬂrfRecrultment of[:ERTENs (1959)

" NOSENKO's Informatlon

, ”E@rard,&éRTENélv151ted the Sov1et Unlon in July or"
_August 1959. . sNOSENKO's homosexual agents VOLKOV and . ,u,A
"YEFREMOV, ‘seeking out:American homosexuals, ac01dentally
(ﬂ;met{@ERTENg]ln Moscow and reported their suspicions. to

- NOSENKO. .- NOSENKO wrote a. report of this. contact and:
requested authorlty to take compromising photographs iR
”preparatlon -for a recruitment approach, .and DUBAS, his
..chief, “then ass;gned the case to him. {ﬂERTENS]had beenC%>

. the. respon51b111ty of .A.A. VETLITSKIY, -another case. offlcer )
;DbPhotographs were taken of homosexual’ relations. between - .

' VOLKOV and*MERTENé]on two’ separate. ‘occasions in- Moscow.;'~
Q @éWhen[yERTQ;S“iater travelled to Uzhgorod he was "arrested" -
' by 'KGB officers (posing as militiamen) while he was" engaged
 in relations with a KGB homosexual .agent, from Odessa, whom )
- NOSENKO had arranged by phone to bring to Uzhgorod. {He = |
7+ 'did not recall 'his name, and could only supply CIA with a.

- . physical description.] MERTENS}was then brought before C@
;- NOSENKO, who recruited hlm during a session lasting =

R approx1mately flve hours. NOSENKO later travelled: with-

) 60G14¢3
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Db |
MERTEN%}when he visited Lvov and Minsk before leaving the
USSR. NOSENKO said that he had used the name "George" with
OG{EERTENQ} but he could not recall what last name he had
given him. ‘ : ,

When he related the case in 1962, NOSENKO could not
recall the American's name. In 1964 he stated the name
was[ﬁﬁ?flﬁ} or[%ARTINg}

oL

kst

Comment: 1In a signed statement given to the FBI on
' 5 August 1964, MERTENQ, an American professor,C%

generally confirmed NOSENKO's account. He
names his recruiter as one "George PETERSON"
and stated that NOSENKO's photograph might be
~that of a person whom he had met while

visiting the Soviet Union in 1959. [MERTENS ] (&
reported one KGB attempt to recontact him
after he returned to the United States. In
September 1959, according to arrangements

made at the time of his recruitment, he
received a letter signed "George PETERSON"
telling him to be at a rendezvous point in

New York. By the time he received the letter,

-however, the date of the meeting had already
passed and so he ignored it. [?ERTEN claimed(jé
that there were no further attempts by the

~Soviets to contact him.

L
N
. Vb

Compromise gﬁ[%ARRET?}(1959);J_

- NOSENKO's Information
- o o T . : .(D . . i
fﬁobert BARRETT, a guide at the|U.S. Exhibition in Moscow |
in 1959, had become friendly with Tthe homosexual agents
e OLKOV_and YEFREMOV whom he met at the[iairground. Althougmog/
‘ [gARRETE}was not an active homosexual, VOLKOV succeeded after
a long period of development in involving him in homosexual
acts, which were photographed by KGB personnel from an
adjoining hotel room. As case officer for VOLKOV and YEFREMOV,

126K
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NOSENKO was - respon51ble for: arranglng the compromise, was
present when- the photographs were. taken,‘and he has described
the ocecasion:in detail. . (There was much’ complaining among
the photographic technicians because of the amount of time
~ they 'spent. waiting for VOLKOV' to succeed in his’ mission, and
‘NOSENKO ‘recalled that he’ prov1ded them with drinks and-
treated them well because they were a big help t6 him in.
'~ this’ operation.) . The photographs we¥e good, but’ the KGB
' was unable to. use them in 1959 because of a general ban
placed by  the Central Committee on the recruitment ofﬂy—_ﬁ\
(j&yTxhlbltlon guldeé]due to Elsenhower 'S, planned v151t to the
Sov1et Unlon.r;”agx~
._ L 0

- NOSENKO reported that ARRETT}was recrulted on the basis
. of the 1959 photography when he returned with another . :

.. exhibition in°1961: . The" ‘fecruitment was carried out ‘by

¢ the First (Américan): ‘Department of :thé KGB Second: Chlef

"'fDlrectorate, and NOSENKO was not 1nvolved.

Immedlately on. hlS return to the Unlted States }
“in January 1962,{§ARRETT ‘confessed to the FBI . C)é
“that he.had been recruifed in 1961 ‘on the ba51svp‘
- oF photographs depic¢ting: him in a homosexual -
-act with VOLKOV, which had been taken during
his 1959 trip- to Moscow. - He.claimed. that" the
photographs ‘had been taken while he was
“uncon301ous,’after belng drugged.~E§ARRETﬁ]wasC)b
~ contacted once. by the KGB in New YOF¥k City -
following his - adm1551ons to the FBI. He was .
- contacted by KGB officers, including SKVORTSOV
- of the First Chief Dlrectorate durlng later-
- trips to the Soviet Union in 1963, 1964, .and’
7271965 and arrangements were made for meetings
“in the United States. ' No Sov1ets appeared at
g,such scheduled meetlngs. '

e
NS R
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_‘ .

Compromise of WILLERFORBWil959)
-

NOSENKO's Information : ,

11,08 06

¢ an American Negré} was{EARRETT s
959 exhibition| in MoScow. Tnitial y he

s

was a target of the Moscow City KGB Directorate which

- D6
[Erederick WILLERT%?b
1

request for operational approval to recruit[@ILLERFOR§L but 06
permission was refused because of the ban on recruitment
attempts at the time. The case file was retained by the
Moscow KGB organization, and NOSENKO did not know whether

[ﬁ;LLERFORQ}was approached subsequently.

D&

| 06 -
Comment: ZEILLERFORQ]was interviewed by the FBI in July
1964 and "advised emphatically that-he had

feel that he ever could be compromised by
anyone except through the use of drugs, since
he felt that he was 'too smart’ and most
Soviets that he has ever met are aware of his Oéﬁ
pro-American sentiments". BARRETf]has reported

00 that{WILLERFORD]| hag visited VOLKOV in his hotel
room and was friendly with,him{%[@ARRETTTsaid _
that he had often wondered if WILLERFORDwas af)
homosexual because of his manner and bearing.

. , 136 }
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Recrultment ofEERIPPE£1(1959 1963)

As a member ‘of - the Amerlcan—Brltlsh Commonwealth Sect1on,
Cos NOSENKO in 1959 personally participated: in the récruitment .
_’Zﬂ of.. the{Emerlcanhggpress Companz}representatlve in Moscow,,,
CéLérsene FRIPPEE ... He continued €0 be one of this-agent's two
_KGB. handlers, even after transferring to the American - -
‘Department in: 1960(XfERIPPE§]1eft Moscow in 1961 but - -
~-returned on: trlps to. the USSR in 1962 and 1963, when NOSENKO:
‘met him.. " The ‘only . recrulted Amerlcan whom NOSENKO ever
claimed. to. handle,{ERIPPEL confessed to his recrultmentC%
.+ ~when questioned by the FBI on .the basis:of. the NOSENKO lead
~v{363Although the[ERIPPEé}case only started during NOSENKO's .
first a551gnment to.the Seventh Department (1955- 1960), it

,*jls described in’ its. entlrety through 1963, for the conven-—
:Tllence of the reader.ﬁf;rgé oo

- NOSENKO s Informatlon:{,,}

’ At hlS second meetlng w1th CIA in Geneva on ll June 1962
‘JNOSENKO descrlbed -the circumstances.in which an unnamed '
foreigner was. compromlsed by a KGB ‘female agent, Klara. - -
Konstantlnovna GORBACHEVA ‘Hé described the scene ‘in detall
including the. attempt by: a KGB technlclan to take motion . D
- pictures through-a ‘two-way mirror, .and the confrontatlon of
the foreigner by’ ‘the militiamen, who. brgke into -the room.-.

NOSENKO identified 'that foreigner-as FRIPPE Tby. name theigé,A
follow1ng day whlle dlscu551ng KGB successe 1n»Mosc6w:- '

l-"There ‘was. another agent,-[KGB cryptonym] 'Artur

. He was not’ a correspondent.g He knew me as George,: .

‘fourly Ivanov1ch .and my. last name as NIKOLAYEV. . He

. was *a perm ent represegtatiye, not in the Embassy,,

. but of thelAmerican- Express. Compani}ln MOscow. 2 R

: Ogﬁ;hIPPEL:ffArghur FRIPPELL" He liked drinking, -allays

. drank He was also strongly attracted to women. I

~ provided. h1m with beautiful women... Well, we-
‘decided to have 'a ‘talk with him." Why? ' What could
‘he give? = He now works in. the{American 1 Express zZ?

' *Compani}(maln offlce 1n New York Clty] A new

: jﬁbbi4ﬁ7
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department has now been organized for the Soviet
Union and the Peoples' Democracies. And he is
chief of the department... He is no longer in
Moscow, but he was here two and a half or three
years. We hope that he will return. We are waiting
for him to come back. We know that the company
' wants to send him again, because he knows the Russian
_ language very well. He is, in fact, an emigre, this
,‘7QLEERIPPEJ. And he also did a good and intelligent job
N i of establishing relations with Inturist. He had very
. good relationships with ANKUDINOV, the Chairman of
Inturist, and with other people, both the chiefs and
 the Iow-level workers... But, why was{?RIPPEiE 06
" recruited? I was interested in knowing precisely
by whom, by name, and how approaches were being made
to our delegations [in the United States]. I was
interested in him from the point of view of counter-
intelligence, not intelligence. What kinds of '
approaches are taking place to our people in America
and by whom? This is what interested me. But he
didn't know anything. _He provided only superficial
information, nothing more.™ '

. , -0 . :
NOSENKO was then asked whetheriEFIPPEL would not have been
useful for coverage;of Americans visifing the Soviet Union.
He replied no, that the KGB had already had great success in
this by other means. o ;

In Geneva in 1964 and during subsequent debriefings. and
sl interrogations, NOSENKO made additional statements concerning
©Y . the[FRIPPEL\case. . . o o 06
oo T - . S
NOSENKO attributed his involvement in the[ERIPPEEJ
- recruitment as follows: ~ ' N ‘

“In 1958, after 1958, when I became the Deputy
'Chief of the section, my area of activity was
narrowed down. I didn't handle all the tourists at
that time. I worked as the Deputy Chief of the
section and I had my own little area--for example, .
the permanent representative of the|American Express?i?
Company} and besides that T began to collect all the
materi&l on all American tourist firms which have
anything to do with Inturist and which send tourists
to the USSR." ‘
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: Although he had personally recrulted[ERIPPEiﬂ he dld not
" do so alone.. Col., V.D. “CHELNOKOV, Deputy Chief (and later
Chlef) of the Seventh Department, was present, and he and

- NOSENKO carrled ‘out“the recruitment together" in early '
September 1959 NOSENRO was, however,{%RIPPEi]s case.
”;f.offlcera L : ‘

‘ NOSENKO met "pretty steadlly“ w1th{;RIPPEﬂ3untll January ‘

v_fl961 and once NOSENKO and his wife, in company with - :

Lo CHELNOKOV and his wife, had dlnner at ) RIPPEPKS home, wherec%;f

@6 they met Mrs.{?RIPPEE“ﬁ; dette FRIPPEL|was unaware of her

_husband's -status as & KG agent, ;. and therefore NOSENKO .and .

CHELNOKOV~used Inturist cover for their acqualntance with.

C%;’FRIPPE;} Although unusual for KGB Second Chief Directorate
case officers to visit agents ‘in their homes with wives

. present, NOSENKO explained that he went because he "was.

;jlnv1ted" ‘and CHELNOKOV' went "because he was also 1nvolved

' in the recrultment" : :

i As Deputy Chlef of a. Tourlst sectlon of the Seventh
*’VDepartment and later as Deputy Chief and Actlng Chief of
" the. American Embassy" Section of the American Department,~ C
7'NOSENKO contlnued ko -meet - w1th’FRIPPEL in Moscow hotels and 06
-restaurants. = Throughout this period, The was almost - e -
“invariably accbm anied: by CHELNOKOV.'{"Perhaps one’ tlme I-
>met with]| FRIPPEL ‘alone,’ otherwise it wds always w1th c
1;:CHELNOKOV " Usually NOSENKO would arrange -meetings. w1th

o [FRIPPEL] at CHELNOKOV's request and the two continued to
“meet: W1th{;RIPPEgﬁﬁdesp1te his lack of produttion,. because
.they . "kept hoping” he would give something™. . (In:a. dlfferent
‘ ‘context, but- speaking of CHELNOKOV, NOSENKO explalned that:

" GRIBANOV. insisted that even Department Chiefs - of the Second
‘hChlef Dlrectorate must each have two or three agents )

When NOSENKO began to work in- the Amerlcan Embass IR
= Sectlon of the American Department in 1960, he. took[%RIPPEi]Oé'f.q

'.-ng1th him becauseEEkIPPﬁE was acquainted w1th some Americans . . <
- at the Embassy. - NOSENKO guestioned FRIPPEL about the Embassy. ]‘“

© " 'and about Embassy officers George WINTERS and Lew1s W.

e BOWDEN but[:RIPPEg]never told NOSENKO anythlng useful

o6
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- Qo
~ NOSENKO continued to act as[EBIPPEEJS case officer after
Q@[iRIPPEﬂ\left the Soviet Union and after NOSENKO had been
Y Yransferred and promoted to the position of Deputy Chief
of the Seventh Department. He met twice with FRIPPEﬁ]duringaé
this latter period when [FRIPPEL|visited the Soviet Union as (34
‘a guide with groups of foreignvisitors. Both of these
meetings were handled by NOSENKO alone, without CHELNOKOV.

i ' The first meeting took place in the summer of 1962, after
° NOSENKO returned to Moscow from Geneva. (FRIPPEL] arrived 06
in the Soviet Union as a guide for some American journalists.
(NOSENKO was unable to give the composition of the jouxrna-
list group or to recall where they stayed in Moscow and
where else they travelled in the Soviet Union.) NOSENKO
contacted him in Moscow. to. learn what questions the newsmen
. intended to ask Khrushchev during a scheduled interview;
" [subsequently NOSENKO acknowledged that standard practice
~ required visiting journalistS“to-submit their intended »
questions for Khrushchev in writing to Soviet authorities
, ~prior to interviewsl. After the interview, he recontacted
'DQuERIPPEL‘to learn the reaction of the journalists to .their
21k with the Soviet leader. NOSENKO could not recall their
' specific reaction to the Khrushchev interview but did
remember that they were "satisfied". Another reason for
(Obcontacting {FRIPPEL) NOSENKO added in a later discussion,
was to learn whetler any of  the journalists might have
"joined the group at the last moment in the United States,
which might suggest»intelligence connections on théir party

NOSENKO met [FRIPPEL)alone for_ the second and last time .
during March 1963, Since(ﬁklPPEﬁ?was a guide for tourists-Cé
aboard the ship "Olympia®, which stopped for a day in Yalta

- _and Odessa, NOSENKO flew to Odessa from Moscow and accosted :

OBEERIPPEilin the lobby of the hotel where the tourists were ot

~ having_dinner. Finally able to get away from his group, - g

OEEERIPpﬂi)Called on NOSENKO in the latter's hotel room, and
The two drank and talked. NOSENKO had given{FRIPPEL}a
bottle of vodka.as a gift, and[@BIPP T) said he wanted to 0G

- give NOSENKO some whisky in return. ey drove in NOSENKO's
car to the port, where NOSENKO waited in the car while

06 (FRIPPEL| went aboard for the whisky. (He had invited NOSENKO

o visit the ship but could not obtain a pass for him.)

0004410 140 e
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sh:}WhenEERIPﬁE:greturned he brought another Amerlcan, ‘so

‘. NOSENKO had %0 invent for himself a suitable cover (Inturlst)

. “:-on the spot. The three returned to the hotel .and drank some
oo more; everyone gettlng drunk. - Durlng thlS contact; (:RIPPEﬂ]U%
. # reported ."nothing of’ 1mportance ‘and his most lnterestlng

" news. was- that he might again be rea381gnéd to Moscow in’ o 2
.- ,: December 1963 as the(American Express Compa resentative. ?3/ ‘
.| (NOSENKO said he later read a report that(¥ ?]had ‘been Oé N
~assigned elsewhere, and it was thereéfore unllkely that. his..
‘Tagent ‘would return to Moscow. This report was submitted by
V.V..KOSTYRYA ‘(alias VLADIMIROV), .a member. of the KGB Legal - ‘
Re51dency and overtly an Inturist. ‘employee in New York Clty,,;g}f
‘who- was. a_former Second Chlef Dlrectorate colleague of

E:§IPPE£lprov1ded no 1nterest1ng 1nformatlon durlng
- NOSENKO's two meetings with him~in 1962 and 1963, when .
'{EBIPPEE}returned to the. Sov1et Union as a tour gulde, -_”

On 3 February 1964 whlle rev1ew1ng the CHEREPANOV :
;papers ‘(see p.309) in Geneva; NOSENKO was asked. about the
‘followihg- passage deallng w1th[§gIPPEL whlch appeared 1n(}é
the,KGB operatlonal plan agalnst BOWDEN. ' -, R

rrew . ey

E"He [BOﬁDEN] showed hlmself to be “an 1nd1screet
‘ persona - One day, as.. though by -chance, he - _—
[BOWDEN blurted out to.our agent SHVEDOVA [the
7 ~'ARTUR's' afflllatlon w1th Amerlcan L

ntelllgence.'j‘ - el A

s

Asked who SHVEDOVA was, NOSENKO sald she was "probably
a cleanlng woman". . [Elsewhere NOSENKO described e
SHVEDOVA as his own agent working’ ‘against-Ameérican--
;A y-.:. Attaches, see . p. 85..]- Asked what connectlon ;
}Oé[:RIPPEgahad with Amerlcan 1ntelllgence, 'NOSENKO replled
. ;'that he .could not say. . To the inguiry why not, since e
“he: was[fglPPE@ S ‘case offlcer, NOSENKO was, 51lent.

u[gpencer ROBERTS [whose KGB recrultment is descrlbed S
on p.424] in August 1962 became friends with a young. = ~'.
Soviet .male . who acknowledged. having been a KGB' agent used
agalnst French speaklng forelgners.;_Included among the ;

i 1:4'1,:. _'::-_ | '?'_"' .v , o
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. latter, the Soviet toldIBOBERT@, was{E‘RIPPEEIfl whom -the
g 'KGB suspected of being an American intelligeénce agent. ‘
"~ [NOSENKO reportedigbBERT%bérecruitment but has never - SE
i indicated awareness of other KGB agents being targetted . I*' -
' against @RIPPEI:]. o6 '

© (FRIPPEL's Information
L 06 |
R YERIPPE@L.who uses the nickname(ﬁ&rthufm was the American?i% """"""
' Express Compani]representative in Moscow from 7 April 1958
o to 3 January 1961. He was first interviewed on the basis
¢ -~ of NOSENKO's information on 30 April 1964, and when shown a
;i picture of NOSENKO,[ERIPPEﬂ]admitted his recruitment by the C%g
: KGB in 1959. During this and subsequent interviews with
Oé;the FBI,(ERIPPEL has reported in detail on his association
V*@éwith the KGB. \E_IPPEQfs version coincides with that provided
~YDby NOSENKO to a considerable degree, with the following

' exceptions: _,

FRIPPEL) asserts that at the time of his recruitment

- Fhe KGB wanted only general information on American

+

Embassy officials and American tourists travelling OX/ '~@;;w=~

to the.Soviet-UniQn[ﬁnder American Express auspices
According, to NOSENKO, [ FRIPPEL) was originally (J
recruited to provide information on American intelli-
gence approaches to Soviets in the United States,
‘and he claimed that[?RIPPEﬂ]was not needed for (4
coverage of Americans visiting the Soviet Union,
‘since . the KGB had already "great success" by other
. means. NOSENKO stated that later, when he trans-
., ferred to +he American Embassy section, he took
: Oéhis agent[ﬁRIPPE;]with him to report on acgquain-
ioé tances among the Embassy employees. NOSENKO and
[FRIPPEL) agree that, with one exception (when
O([FRIPPEL| was queried regarding BOYDEN and WINTERS) .,
‘@L RIPPE?}was not so used. e :

SQE?RIPP@E,‘while acknowledging that NOSENKO partici-

pated in all meetings and on occasion met[?RIPPEL 06

alone, stated that CHELNOKOV "was in charge of th
entire operation”.

L (1 E e
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tw1ce in Odessa, whlle v151t1ng the USSR in:1962 and el
-1963.. NOSENKO insisted that he met{ERIPPELbut once 06;;
1n Odessa and once 1n Moscow in- that perlod : -

NOSENKO: volunteered his’ account of thefERf?PﬁE},*
~case in Geneva.in 1962 and 1964. Ille freely .

- “related the detalls of the summer 1962 and

. [February . 1963 meetings w1thE§RI§?§Q in . the Dé

' USSR. His account. of: FRIPPEE]S activities ‘is- 0
.y;con51stent w1th(:BIPPE s)ver51on, except as -
1;noted above.y~~ BT e e e T

:Lee Jarvev OSWALD 41959 196QL

: For contlnulty of presentatlon, both perlods of NOSENKO s

:,alleged ‘involvemerit with OSWALD:in 1959-1960 and. in 1963 . G
o ate- ‘described elsewhere. ' (See p.303 )y - Accordlng to NOSENKO, -
- he- wasﬁlnvolved with OSWALD in 1959 because he was then —""

t»Deputijhlef ‘of the American=British Commonwealth" Sect}on
~fbffthe75eventh Department. ~In that capacity:he participat
~:in the decision that OSWALD was of no interest to the KGB

and he should not. be. allowed to’ ‘rémain in the Sov1et Unlon;

* “Comment:. NOSENKO's information on his involvement with
Lo s OSWALD in 1959 is- 1nsufflclent to serve -as . .

7 . .evidence confirming or - refutlng his claimed

L fﬁserv1ce as Deputy Chief. of the American Sectlon;
”.-jof the Seventh Department 1n 1959

R -.*UQCix_zi_a
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Operational Activities ~ 1955-1960: Summary

According to NOSENKO, after an uneventful assignment in
the American Department's Embassy Section, in 1955 he was
transferred to the newly-organized Seventh Department
Tourist Section as a case officer. Between 1955 and 1957
he assembled a network of agents and was involved in four
KGB attempts to recruit foreign tourists. One of these
attempts, that against |Richard BURG@, was the first recruit-@é
ment of the Tourist Section; it won NOSENKO. a commendation,
brought him to the attention of General GRIBANOV, and turned
NOSENKO into an effective and successful KGB officer. In
1958 NOSENKO was promoted to the position of Deputy Chief
of the American-British Commonwealth Section. He then
recruited the second member of his two-man homosexual team

_ and, in 1958 and 1959, participated in ten KGB attempts to
¢ recruit American and British visitors to the USSR and one
American resident of Moscow. NOSENKO's success in the
: Seventh Department prompted GRIBANOV to transfer him back
4 o the American Embassy Section as Deputy Chief with the
-::::;;gﬁical priority task of reviving KGB operations against
rican Embassy code clerks. . ; -

, - It is worthy of note that of the fifteen cases in which
-he personally participated, by his own admission, NOSENKO
became involved in. nine not because they were operations of
his section, but because the targets were the victims of
homosexual or other entrapment. 1In addition, three of the
fifteen operations were not directed by his section, but:
by senior Seventh Department officers. According to his
own statements, four others were specifically the responsi-
- bility of other Seventh Departmeént sections of KGB elements,
including the Foreign Seamen Section Q@EHRCKENS); Delega~— 6%
OLDQtions Section [LAN and(BIRSE), Commercial Representatives
oL CbSection (TAYLORY, and WILLERFORD] (Moscow City KGB). [FRIPPEL]0S
77 does not relate clearly to IIOSENKO's claimed Seventh
- . Department service: NOSENKO states he was also used as an
- agent of the First Department Embassy Section. Even the
‘remaining case, that of(EARRIé} was not necessarily a

vl
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* Seventh Department operation: by NOSENKO'sfother'Statements,='
.. she was not a "tourist" and she would have been the target. -
A fof the Moscow Oblast KGB because of her 1ntent10n to marry

-a Sov1et 01tlzen. o : , o

: _:j Whlle NOSENKO s partlclpatlon in, the attempted recrult—.'
-.ment of the targets he uescrlbes, even where not conflrmed,
is not- ulsputed, the evidence suggest that he was an-

Engllsh-speallna specialist in sexual- entrapment, not a ‘
.‘counterintelligence officer respon51ble for the- 1dent1f1—"“
. cation of foreign agents among  tourists- ‘or for the develop—;;
T;;ment, recrultment, and explo;tatlon of agents for the KGB.T

, e Nothlng NOSENKO has sald 1nd1cates that there was’ any
ffﬂmaterlal change®in his: dutles and- respons;bllltles after.
.’ he was-allegedly. promoted to; Deputy Chief of the Amer1can~¢ A
" British Commonwealth Section. ' The' ev1dence is that he was ,f;g;,
S more” actlve, ‘but not that he- had” any admlnlstratlve and L
-y‘superv1sory respon51b111t1es. . ; : , SR

vKnowled e: of other Seventh Department ey
Amerlcan Tourlst Qperatlons SRTEE

B NOSENKO sald that upon hlS return to the Seventh Depart—fw '
fment in 1962 as Chief of ‘the _American-British Commonwealth:. '
@Sectlon, he  reviewed the sectlon s:activities durlng hlS -
‘two-year ‘absence, e.g. January 1960 .to January 1962, In’
he “course of that review he made written notes of the
‘section’'s operatlonal targets durlng that perlod notes i -
.. which he brought. to Geneva in 1964. (See p. 319.)- NOSENKO
~ -could not. describe the- operatlons other “than: to’ say ‘that he
- .xecorded the: target s names and- such details as he could- .
,f‘acqulre at the ‘time of his: review. ‘Tleven of the operatlon

'~ included ‘in his: notes. were those againstlBernard PECHTER, - 06060605060

" Patrick PRESSHAN; John RUFE, Gerald SEVERN, Sofia SHATTAUER,/'DQUQ

,,p\fnu”KARLOV, Norman-FISK, Ralph_ MATLAW,‘ farvin KANTOR, L
G%\Mlchael _GINSBERG|, and|WJilliam TARASK @5All were from the
perlod 1956-1959 and six of the e. elevén 1nd1v1duals were.
-‘identified by the KGB as homosexuals.» All of these cases
'are descrlbed in Annex B.an - SRR RN PRI
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Comment: NOSENKO has never resolved why these cases,

: - ‘which predated the records he claimed he
reviewed, were included in his notes. More
important, he never could explain why he was
unfamiliar with American tourist cases which
occurred at a time. when he claimed that he
was Deputy Chief of the American-British
Commonwealth Section and was knowledgeable
of all such cases. ' '

KGB Counterintelligence Operations _ :
Among Foreidgn Tourists, 1955-1960 . ]

 Besides those operations in which NOSENKO claimed personal

 involvement or about which he learned in his capacity of
‘Deputy Chief of the American-British Commonwealth Section,
“NOSENKO claimed awareness of what the KGB knew of the use
" of tourists in the USSR.by foreign intelligence services
" throughout the 1955-1960 period. " Information from other

- sources serves as’'a basis for judging the validity of

- NOSENKO's claim. - R ‘ »

' NOSENKO's Information

. NOSENKO's Tourist Study -

: Sometime between May and October 1959, during the
TR “tourist season, NOSENKO was ordered to gather facts for
. -+ - Second Chief Directorate Chief GRIBANOV concerning the use
. of tourist cover by foreign intelligence services during
the period 1955 through 1958. NOSENKO said he assembled
this material from the Seventh Department's annual reports
of the years 1955-1958, supplemented by information he
" obtained from discussions with knowledgeable Seventh
.. Department case officers. NOSENKO recalled only that the
- 'study incorporated statistical data on the growth of
foreign tourism; he did not remember the content of the
7 study, any examples included in it, or what the study
- concluded about American or British Intelligence tourist
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-operations. . Nevertheless, based on . his réseérch for this

;study;aS‘well”asfon.hi$4géneral-and superVisory:responsi—gﬂg;ﬁ'w'
S bilities in- the Seventh“Departméntf_NOSENKOEasSerted.that;f;*f”

Qhewcoﬁldﬁaccurately.deScribe]KGB_counterintélligehcé‘
‘operations among touriStS'during_the period 1955-1960.

‘T%EXtent’gg'KGB Khowlédqé ﬁf.51’

’:f;‘Aécordihg:toﬂNOSENKO;Jopératibns'againSt foreignﬁtouristé

" were developing slowly during this period and very little
- was known,by,the“KGB'about‘the;American’Intelligence'use’v»i-=
... of, tourism atthe time.he wrote the study-in 1959. - No. :
xﬂagenté_WErefdefinitelyfidentifiedfamongQAmErican tourists,
“and]no'tourists'weré~"caughtfinftheVactW*mailing‘létters,fﬁj:,
éqrvigipg~deaddropstOr[qpntactinggagehts;gwithsone exception..

,  ,despitefvariOus“Qperatipnalfmeasutégftakenisucb}as;vgemké
‘T“(cbvert.baggagé”ééarCh)land,manéuvering'KGB agents: in. .

AR

N —

said, d eloped suspicions’ concerning a number. of tourists. =
because Qf’their~apparent>interestfin~photography,gor‘because R
gtheylwereZdissemihating,foreign?literature.1 The KGB never-:: = . =
‘eStablished‘any»firm:intélligence.connectioh,ﬂhbwever,ﬂ~ R

:i’ioé(@pGUIRﬁjxsic, s¢e below.) ' The Seventh Department, NOSENKO . .

- contact with the suspect:tourists. No American tourists -

“were definitely identifiéd as American Intelligence agents,

'”NOSENKO concluded:” On. related matters, NOSEMNKO ‘asserted . .

“'“ﬁthat duriﬁgrhis l955fl960 service~in;thefSeventhﬁDepartméht7f“";h

;thEQKGB*vauired-ho'infcrmation-regardinglAmerican,IntelliQQ,“*1

. “gence use. of tQUrism}fspeCifically;1the:KGB_Obtaihed no .

~.documentary information,onvthis_topiq.from any agent sOuréégf-:>“

American TouristQAqenfsv,' S

{l*one}whbsejnémeWhe;récalledfasfMégglgE‘Xandfwhojmailed;a O6
‘lettet in Minsk in 1959,

'-'clandestine_letter;mailing.-

. .observed performin

/. The one exception in which an American fourist was

- NOSENKO ‘said he never knew what .

g a clandestine task, NOSENKO said, was ‘.

KGB'Qperational'actiViEYfled to thefdiscove:Y;offMcGUIRE}éf;ﬂVJ”l
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06
Comment: NOSENKQO here is apparently referring to[gdward
McGOWAN} a CIA tourist agent who was infact
detecté&d by the KGB while clandestinely mailling
an operational letter in Minsk, but in August
1958. . ] . ,
“There was a|Robert Alan McGUIRE]who visited
~ the Soviet Union during NOSENKO's Seventh
Department service, but he was not connected
with American Intelligence at the time and he
. mailed no letter. [@iGUIREL however, was a OZ
" former CIA staff employee. He visited the
Soviet Union as a tourist in April-May 1959,
.during which period he was the target of
. numerous KGB provocations, including black~
market, females, and a Soviet citizens' request
for assistance in defecting to the Americans.
-~ Also, a custums- officer confiscated from
GE;E%cGUIREKa Radio Liberation Russian-language
&6 Script,; and%ﬁpGUIRﬁ]was'compelled to sign an l@@ .
acknowledgement of the event, although the di A
reasons vere left blank. Interrogatioﬁ has

., neVer resolved how NOSENKO knew the name of
' OgﬂchUIRﬁy but not the background of the case,
or the background of[@;GOﬂAﬁTs case, but not
- his name. . O@ o

Information Furnished the KGB by George BLAKE -

Tn 1959 the KGB obtained from its agent in MI-6,
[George BLAKE, who was arrested by British authorities in
April 1961] the complete details of the CIA-MI-6 program for
utilizing tourist agents in the Soviet Union. In early
June 1959 a three-day conference was held in London between
CIA and MI-6 representatives, at the conclusion of which a

‘nineteen-page document was drawn up which described opera-
tional doctrine on tourist operations, including agent '
spotting, agent selection, agent assessment, agent training,
and agent tasks planned for the current (1959) tourist
‘season. The document stressed CIA planned use of tourists

0001418
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.;7for spottlng, contactlng, and asse531ng and eventually,»]
.~/ ‘communicating with agents in the Soviet Unlon.“ .BLAKE
- confessed to passing the document ‘to the. KGB ‘as soon as 1t
. came: 1nto hlS posse551on,.l - IR _

'ﬁ,It is not advanced that NOSENKO should neces~f
- sarily havé known of BLAKE, although his )
.. statements on ‘the matter'have been ambiguous.
Asked- in 1962 whether he-knew of BLAKE (whose =
edrlier- arrest had been publlclzed), NOSENKO . -
affirmed that he did but indicated that. BLAKE =~ - .
was ‘a less important source than’ ‘the Canadlanl
 Ambassador. (WATKINS) or.the: agent in the ‘
- British Admlralty (VASSALL) "When.. BLAKE was™ L
‘mentioned in.-'1964, /NOSENKO. asked "Who’s. BLAKE’"_'
- The 51gn1f1cance -of BLAKE is that his -~ -
confession established that the KGB- was fully
. aware' of the-status.and ‘character of ‘American. .
" and British Intelllgence tourlst operatlons
while’ NOSENKO alleges ‘he was in’ the Seventh
Department., ‘It is judged by any measure as’ o
;well as by NOSENKO 5. statements about the KGB,
_that the substance’ of. the: 1nformat10n if not -
the document. itself would be brought to. the
attention of a key KGB- counterlntelllgence
~.officer" concerned ‘the Deputy Chief: of- the -
.- .American-British Commonwealth Sectlon, Whlch
' 35JNOSENK0 clalms was hlmself R :

“%;KGB Study of Amerlcan Intelllgence Tourlst Operatlons’

L .;In 1961 CIA acqulred a lengthy KGB Top Secret study on.

'gjthe subject of ‘the use of “tourists by’ ‘American Intelllgence
. for espionage and operational. support in-the Soviet, Unlon.,

CL gThe KGB- study draws ‘recognizably upon the 1hformatlon .
. supplied by BLAKE -and, although concerned- prlmarlly with.

[ "American’ tourist operations in ‘1960, it also refers to.
-American’ agents whom KGB counterlntelllgence elements: .
identified among - tourlsts in the years 1958 and. . 1959, whlle,'

. .. NOSENKO claims he was Deputy Chief of the Amerlcan-Brltlsh
.. /Commonwealth Section and. during which' time he clalms the: =
';KGB 1dent1f1ed no Amerlcan Intelll ence agents. -

. ? R 0001419
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(SEVENTH DEPARTMENT - June 1955—January 1960)

SEVENTH DEPARTMENT ~ 1955-1960: Summary and Conclusion

NOSENKO's description of the activities of the Second
Chief Directorate Seventh Department in this period is
almost solely restricted to his account of these fifteen
KGB operations. Other than to allege that certain KGB
officers he named were his subordinates, he provided no
information to substantiate his claim that he had any
supervisory or. administrative responsibilities. The common
feature of the operations do not relate to NOSENKO's own
description of the function of the Seventh Department's
Tourist Section or later, to the American-British Common -

‘wealth Section. Most were Sexual or other entrapment

operations, .and he acknowledges that several were operations.
conducted by KGB elements other than his own section, - In
short, NOSENKO need not have been in the Seventh Deparitment -

_'Sections, as he claims, to have learned of or participated . .
~in the activities he describes. Although NOSENKO gives a

. graphic .account of the Second ChiefrDirectbrate'sl(and his

. own) counterintelligence mission, his knowledge is not of

- counterintelligence operations among tourists; in the only
‘three such operations he describes, the counterintelligence -
- aspects were incidental. Contrary to his claims, NOSENKO

- is aware neither of all important KGB operations conducted

against American tourists during the period, nor what was
known to the KGB about American Intelligence and British

-tourist operations.

Conclusion

While NOSENKO was associated with .a KGB element conducting

~ operations against American and other foreign tourists
~during the period 1955-1960, he was neither a senior case

officer nor Deputy Chief of the Seventh Department American-

"British Commonwealth Section.
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Nﬁﬁf}homes.v Each offlcer had a limited number :.of.American.

CHAPTER VII

AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION OF AMERICAN DEPARTMENT
o (January 1960~ January 1962} :

_fDeputy Chief ggvthe>Sectibnff“ffﬁfbeef;;:_f R

¥ NOSENKO clalms to have served as Deputy Chlef of the Lo
American Embassy Section of the American Department, KGB "~ *
‘Second Chief Directorate, from sometlme in January: 1960 N
until: the first days of January 1962. - This:section, in: L
“his words, was worklng ‘against "the most 1mportant counter- S
*1ntelllgence target in . the Soviet Union", the permanent S
. American representation in Moscow. ‘It ‘regarded. every -
-TAmerlcan stationed there a p0551ble spy and, 51multaneously
as’ a target for recrultment. U ,@.k,_, R

nffﬂThe functlons of the Amerlcan Embassy Sectlon were =
';descrlbed by. NOSENKO as. belng to; monitor:- all contacts: by:
.Embassy personnel with- Soviet citizens, to collect all :
“information possible on American Embassy employees,’ and
“to use..this information as -a ‘basis for planning and imple
Tmentlng recrultments. The Amerlcans personalltles, jobs, .-
‘personal relatlonshlps, weaknesses, daily routines, securltyi.
'precautlons, ‘contacts with Soviet citizens, and the major -
~..and minor scandals in ‘their Moscow lives formed the basis|
' for this work. To gather such 1nformatlon, the section’ s
.0fficers employed large numbers of agents and 1nformants _ o
" among the 1nd1genous employees. of the Embassy, Soviet: ’*”7,‘g;-
- eitizens foving in Embassy social c1rcles,'and thlrd-country;f"
.nationals ‘with American contacts’ The officers also .
. 'benefitted from the reports of numerous. surveillance ‘teams-
‘at-their disposal, as well as information obtained from CoT
" telephone taps and microphores. in Americans’ ‘offices and’ N

i;;targets with whom he attempted to become thoroughly" famlllar.;u
:.Annually, they submltted detalled operatlonal plans for ‘

S TS No._197124_
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - January 1960-January 1962)

exploiting the knowledge they had gained of their targets.
During 1960 and 1961, NOSENKO said, within the section
special emphasis was placed on "jdentifying intelligence
officers in the Embassy and actively developing them,
acquiring ciphers, and painstakingly studying code clerxks,

creating the basis on which they can be recruited"”.

As Deputy Chief of this section, NOSENKO said, he had
access to all information concerning its activities:
"Nothing was hidden" from him. On this basis, he expressed
certainty that in 1960 and 1961 the KGB recruited no
Americans associated with the Embassy, there were no KGB
agents among Americans assigned to the Embassy in this
period and, in fact, +he KGB had recruited no American
Embassy personnel since "ANDREY" (Dayle SMITH, recruited

- ca. 1953, see p. 33). From continuing friendships with

-~ his fellow-officers of 1960—and 1961, who remained in the
section when NOSENKO transferred, NOSENKO has also claimed
certainty that there were no KGB recruitments from the '

_ time he left the section in January 1962 until his January
1964 departure in Geneva. : '

Transfer +o the American Embassy Section

In December 1959, while serving as Deputy Chief of the
American Section of the Seventh Department, NOSENKO learned
from the Department Chief DUBAS of plans to transfer him
back to the American Department's American Embassy Section,
as Deputy Chief. NOSENKO said he was opposed to the move
and wanted to remain in the Seventh Department:

"1 was used to it there and wanted to continue.
I wanted to stay in the Seventh Department. This
{the transfer] was no promotion. Here I was the
Deputy Chief of section and would be the same
there. The American Department is, of course, the
most important. But here I was working against
American tourists. This is also important.
Furthermore, I showed [had proven] myself there in
55, '56, '57, '58, and '59 and was considered to
be not a bad case officer. and there, in the
American Department, I must prove myself with new
people.” :

o 152
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" ‘Directorate Chief 0. M. GRIBANOV on his behalf, but to no -

'?QNOSENKO were 1ssued.¢

7 to report to GRIBANOV's office.. NOSENKO expressed his

‘I . misgivings about the change of. a351gnment to GRIBANOV. _
<~ . GRIBANOV replied that DUBAS had spoken to him but that he,
-/ “'GRIBANOV, "had his own plans and- that was all". ' GRIBANOV.'

" -told NOSENKO that he thought NOSENKO could brlng "fresh alr"

S ."No one." 'Hé assumed responsibility for the’ Embassy securltyf
. file from KOVSHUK.- Various case officers earlier -had been L

7,5jBAKHVALOV—-but never in connection with the Ametrican Embassy‘;““

% (Edstern Countries) Department. ' .In February he identified -3?f”‘”’

- Top Secret
(AMERICAN.'E_'MBASS.Y SECTION - January 1960-January 1962)
" U NOSENKO therefore asked DUBAS to try to retain'him. DUBAS
-latexr told NOSENKO that he had twice spoken to Second Chief

‘avail. - In- January 1960 the officialvorders'transferring

L On the day NOSENKO reported to v. A.,KLYPIN, Chlef of
" “the American Department, to begin his new .job, he was told .

" to the American. Embassy Section's operations and that he j«':“
- .was’ to pay partlcular attentlon to operations agalnst
JAmerlcan code clerks, the number one target" B

’Predecessor as Deputy Chlef

,:Asked on 17 Aprll 1964 whom he had relleved upon reportlng;
Cfor - duty in“the American Embassy Section; NOSENKO replieds:s = -

responsible for Embassy ‘Security Officér Russell 'LANGELLE,

lgincludlng MALYUGIN, then KUSKOV, KOVSHUK, . ‘and KLYPIN; but-
LANGELLE. had been. expelled from the. Sov1et Union in. October .
-1959 and his successor, John ABIDIAN, was - not to arrlve -

ntll March 1960 LT e .

“..f On several occa51ons between January and June 1964 NOSENKO,,:Zteﬁ
~had referred.to a KGB officer: named Mikhail - Fedorovich: L

©..Section.. ~Thus,-in January he first identified him.as. . .uhﬂ‘;,f
"Colonel Mikhail BAKHVALQV, .the. Deputy Chief of the Fifth !

- "a V.A. ALEKSEYEV as.the .alias.of. a. Mikhail:Fedorovich, last
3ﬁgname not recalled, who was Deputy Chlef -of the Fifth- '
“wDepartment.{‘In June, in ‘listing KGB officers who had

received various awards for their service, NOSENKO' 1ncluded I
‘the name of Mikhail BAKHVALOV,. Deputy Chief of Man unremem- RRU
;bered department" of’ the Second Chlef Dlrectorate." L

o ;;t\» 68614
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - January 1960-January 1962)

On 18 June 1964 NOSENKO was asked to list the names of

all officers who had either joined OX departed the American

Fmbassy Section from the time NOSENKO was transferred to

the Seventh Department in 1955 to his return to the American )
in 1960. NOSENKO 1isted fourteen officers

Embassy Section 1in
ho had been trans-—

as having joined the gection, and five W
either list did NOSENKO mention BAKHVALOV.

ferred out. In n

: A week ‘later, however, oOn 24 June 1964 NOSENKO stated

that "in 1959 and possibly in 1958 Mikhail Fedoxrovich

BAKHVALOV was the Deputy Chief of the American Embassy
1960 and he

gsection. I replaced him in his position in
went to the Fifth Department as Deputy Chief". .In September
ty chief, [not

1964 NOSENKO asserted that BAKHVALOV, as Depu

the others he had identified earlier] had been LANGELLE's

1 1 I case officer. In 1965 NOSENKO first mentioned that

Il .- BAKHVALOV, not KOVSHUK, had been responsible for maintaining
' the Embassy security file and stated that BAKHVALOV had '
shared with KOVSHUK responsibility for supervising code

clerk operations.

.ok

11 ~ Comment: . interrogation has never resolved contradictions

.between NOSENKO's earlier accounts of what
4 from whom when he entered

s belated assertions that
Deputy.Chief.

functions he assune
- the gection, and hi
. BAKHVALOV- was his predecessor as

Responsibilities

‘Shortly after’reporting.for‘duty in th

section and following his short discussio
NOSENKO said he met with American Department Chief KLYPIN

and Embassy gection Chief KOVSHUK to discuss his responsi-
pilities and functions in the section. Repeating what
GRIBANOV had said, KLYPIN stressed that NOSENKO's most
important single responsibility in the section would be

supervision of all KGB operational activity against American
military and State Department code clerks stationed in
Moscow. As for the other Americans

e American Embassy
n with GRIBANOV,

at the Embassy. KLYPIN

- 0001424 S No. 197124
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,ﬂf.Suggested a lelSlon of 1abor under whlch KOVSHUK would be
‘f,respon51ble for. superV151ng operatlons agalnst State

- - Department personnel and NOSENKO would supervise work- o
v against the- Army, Air Force, and Naval. Attaches and thelr"
. assistants..: . NOSENKO was also to be custodlan of certaln

‘lffsen51t1ve flles in: the sectlon.

g,‘?WNOSENKO has 51gned a protocol whlch llsted hlS pr1n01pal
‘ﬁf,respon51b111t1es durlng 1960 and 1961.3 It reads in’ part.r

.,JDur ng the entlre perlod 1n the Flrst [Amerlcan
=Embassy]iSectlon, First [American]. Department 1n31”
and 1961 my position was Deputy Chief of .

My responsxbllltles were the follow1ng.

Hf—General Deputy to the Chlef of" the Flrst
'Sectlon, Vladislav. Mlkhaylov10h ‘KOVSHUK, and
Actlng Chlef of Sectlon in: hlS absence._5~

o =TImme ‘ate superv1sor forJthe operatlonal work
'agalnst American' code clerks. - In this capacity I

QiGRYAZNov and’ Vadin KOSOLAPGV"-“' S SRS

, %offlcer for Amerlcan Embassy Securlty
"ﬁJohn ABIDIAN..Lc_‘: : |

For'about the flrst 51x-months of 1960 super-
_v1sor ‘of -the work. ‘against’ the offlces of the Army, o
;JNaval,"and Alr attaches.;wgaa.. S N S

;Before 1965 NOSENKO never clalmed respon51b111ty L
for supervising operations against. service o
attache targets. - In October 1966 NOSENKO

.“ for the first time claimed he was personally

- responsible for (as contrasted to superv151ng)
.-~ operational- activity against Naval and Marine
officers of the office of the Naval  Attache.

,6061425;
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - January 1960~January 1962)

-I maintained the file on American Embassy
security.

-I maintained the log books for the reports sent
to the First [American Embassy] Section by the.
Operational Technical Directorate, KGB, based on
the information obtained from all the microphones

~installed in the American Embassy. I read all
the reports and gave the pertinent reports to the
~appropriate case officers in the section. . In my .
absence this work was done by KOVSHUK or GRYAZNOV.

. ~During this period I was the agent handler for
agents 'SHMELEV',. 'GRIGORIY', 'PROKHOR', 'ARTUR'
" and 'SARDAR'N [VoLkoOV, YEFREMOV, EREISFREUNIE?, Ué
E§BIPPEi]andLE@ISé]respectively]. _ -
' %36 -~ ! _ A
'Throughout_%his entire period I sat in Room- 618
- of KGB Headquarters. at House Number 2, Dzherzhinskiy
Square, Moscow. GRYAZNOV and KOSOLAPOV shared .this -
office with me throughout most of this period."

- Comment: NOSENKO's assertions with respect to each of
: these claimed functions are examined in some
. detail in the ‘following pages. ’

Deputy and‘Occasional Acting Chief of Section

- 8ince his defection NOSENKO has maintained undexr repeatéd:

interrogation that as general 'deputy to KOVSHUK, with the
responsibility of taking over in KOVSHUK's absence, he had

~access to and was obliged to keep current on all information

relating to the section's activities. On this basis he
has assured his questioners that the KGB was ‘completely

- unsuccessful in its attempts to recruit Americans assigned

to the Embassy in these two years. NOSENKO has also said
at various times that his access to section files and his
association with section officers made it certain that:
there were no such KGB successes even in the periods

156

0001426

Top Secret Copy

TS No. 197124




Top Secret

»(AMER:eAn}r{'_EMBAssY SECVTI’ON - qa.n‘u,ar_yi"_1960-—;Janua:y§-19‘6,2‘), o

“.fﬁ1955 1960 and 1962 1964, when he was a351gned in the Seventh
Department. “His statements -on 'this subject durlng February
1965 were- dlstlllEd 1n a protocdl whlch NOSENKO srgned on
20 February: ot o S N

r"As the only Deputy to the Chlef of the Amerlcan
‘Embassy . Section, First Department, Second Chief ..~
Directorate, KGB, Vladislav Mikhaylovich KOVSHUK, ,,-'
from January 1960 .to January 1962, one of my. . © -
functions was to serve as KOVSHUK's general deputy
‘and to.assume the rights and. respon31b111t1es of =
‘Chief" of the -Section during KOVSHUK's absence. - In
order‘to perform' this function I-had the right and
1the obllgatlon of knowing the details about every. -
;1mportant act1v1ty of the’ sectlon agalnst the
'Amerlcan ‘Embassy. and its: personnel . No. act1v1ty

' -hi 'nature was w1thheld from me.pow

_'As Deputy Chlef of " the Sectlon I know deflnltely
that- no U.S.. 0officials serv1ng in the Embassy were .
agents of ‘the KGB or reportlng unoff1c1ally in any
way. to the: KGB during my service -in:the Section;-
There. were no- approaches or recruitments made by
the Section-during the- period January 1960 to-
January 1962: against personnel of-the American. i
Embassy; . 1nclud1ng personnel of the: Attaches --5-3- ‘
{Axrmy ;" Navy, ‘and Air), the .Départment of Adriculture
and - USIA,-including Marine guards, Army ser eants, ° .
tate Department code clerks except" againsty STORS—K;‘
’;BERQBandiBEYSEZS} both unsuccessful approaches.«*

St O AR

"There were no:. approaches or. recrultments made
against;any,employees oflthe»United‘States~Governf L
ment who were assigned to. the. Amerlcan Embassy.on™. .. - .
temporary duty durlng this. perlod. I have read .and .
unde stood this: report and certlfy it as correct.?;g_:

0061427',
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - January 1960-January 1962)

In the two years of NOSENKO's service in the section
there were a total of over three months when he said KOVSHUK
was 11l or on leave. NOSENKO recalled that he was Acting
Chief during KOVSHUK's two 30-day leave periods in 1960 and
1961, although he did not remember precisely in which months.
He also served as Acting Chief for about a month in the
summer of 1960 when KOVSHUK was in the KGB hospital with
heart trouble and for a week or two some time in 1961, again
when KOVSHUK was ill. .He recalled that KOVSHUK was also
absent for several days in connection with preparations for

President Eisenhower's planned visit to the Soviet Union in -
1960. . '

As Acting Chief in KOVSHUK's absence, NOSENKO stated that:
he was responsible for supervising the administrative work
and operational activity of the entire section and, in
particular, for assuming KOVSHUK's work in directing -
operations against diplomatic personnel assigned to the
‘American Embassy. : ' <

NOSENKO could recall no operational decisions that he
made ‘as acting chief, nor any specific or unusual occurrences
during these times. NOSENKO said that the only specific _
responsibility-of KOVSHUK's which he handled in the Chief's
absence was reporting to the Chief of the First Department
about all correspondence going out of the Embassy Section.,

" .. NOSENKO stated he met none of KOVSHUK's agents during his

absences, rnor could he remember any of them except-  GLAZUNOV -
[whom NOSENKO said in April 1964 was his own agent and later
said was. "KOVSHUK's and FEDYANIN's"] and the American
correspondent STEVENS]{about’whom NOSENKO had reported in

~connection with his .activities -in 1953-55].

According to NOSENKO, KOVSHUK had peréonal'contact, under

~Ministry of Foreign Affairs .cover, with "some" American g j oo
- Embassy officers, but the only such Embassy officer he could - DU

identify was WINTERS, and he knew of no details about
KOVSHUK's relations with him. _ , '

- 158 | . I
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o SRR co . : : 193 .
ix,COmment:_~NOSENKO knows nelther that( ] L
T .. .. was identified: formally by "the Embassy. to the
;- Soviet Government to be a CIA employee, nor: .
that KOVSHUK (who' was aware of this fact), '
"was in personal contact w1thE;::::;;1m :

szeneral Superv1sory Dutles;:fi“j;]f

o - « oy

”fﬁ; In Interrogatlons of January 1965 NO“ENLO was questlonedj"
" in considerable detall about his supervisory duties as ‘
- Deputy Chief of the Embassy. Section. . .He didn't know 'what
- .major duties occupled most of his time, nor which were: the
. most. important: . He.stated that Meverything" was 1mportant.;_-
~His subordinates were GRYAZNOV and.KOSOLAPOV (responsible’ .
. for code ‘clerk operations), [Vladimir] DEMKIN assisted by
'“[Yevgenly] ‘GROMAKOVSKIY (residents of America. House), o
INGALY 'GAVRILENKO (Air Attaches personnel and the alrcrews
.'of the. Ambassadox's alrcraft), [T.va. ] KURILENKO (Army o :
,i‘_Attache personnel) , and [V:Lctor] BELOGLAZOV (Naval Attache
personnel) . Except for "little~ questlons“ which the ;_”v"gV' o
officers’ decxded for thémselves, NOSENKO said he directed’ j~~ﬂﬁ*.,glh
their -activities, discussed-with them various aspects of =~~~ =7 7
their work, and: responded to’ their. questlons as requlred.:-”j e
If he could not answer their ‘questions, NOSENKO stated, orn
if the problem was not. ‘within his authority, . NOQENKO A
discussed .the matter w1th KOVSHUK. If it was necessary,ﬂe_
NOSENKO clalmed he - thereafter would dlscuss the. matter with’
American’ Department Chlef KLYPIN or his successor,: [S,M;}»
“w1th Gecond Chlef SRS

FEDOSEYEV, and ‘on . some occa51ons;
‘Dlrectorate Chlef GRIBANOV.,x‘ :

5 NOSENLO stated he accompanled hlS subordlnates to some
meétings with ‘their agents, not- because -he didn't trust . o
~-them, but to hear for himself what the agent was report1ng.-;;7
- He cited as’ hypothetlcal examples .occasions when DEMKIN - R
. ‘might’ relay reports from Ella UMANETS -or Inga VARLAMOVA j S
*".(agents working against America House residents), reports‘“*”'
° which "NOSENKO would -want to. hear .-for himself, personally. ,

S C NOSENKO would not estimate to his 1nterrogators what percen— T

' %3_7‘ ' tage of Embassy Sectlon agents he met in’ this fasnlon. i

. : 0001429 :
159 Lo t

r$' l_"r{z_of ,‘1-97.1 2‘4

‘ Copy.__l£L;

' Top Secret



14-00000

foep Secret
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In addition to supervising his subordinates's direction
of agents, NOSENKO said he personally managed PREISFREUNﬁ?Oé
( "PROKHOR") and[@EIsgj("SARDAR"). ~7T

Ob

Supervisor of All Code Clerk Operations

NOSENKO said that, upon assuming responsibility for
supervising operations against American code clerks, he
found a very "difficult Situation". Prior to the assignment
of KOSOLAPOV to the American Embassy Section in late 1959,
all operations against code clerks had been handled by
MALYUGIN, but during MALYUGIN's two years of effort there.
had been no operational approaches and no successes. When
NOSENKO took over there were no active developmental
operations against code clerks under way, he stated, and
the only agents or operational contacts being used against
them were poorly educated maids and waitresses none of
whom had accomplished anything of importance. No non-Soviet
citizen agents were being used in operations against code-
room personnel., - - . B : ) '

From this poiht .on,. NOSENKO,; KOSOLAPOV, and GRYAZNOV' shared

the same KGB Headquarters office. There, all KGB files on
American code clerks as well as the files on all agents

available for work against them, were stored in one large
safe accessible to all three officers. NOSENKO supervised

~all of the section's. work along these- lines, and no provo-

cations, compromises, recruitment attempts, or recruitments
could have been planned or carried out without his prior .
knowledge and agreement when he was in Moscow. TIf NOSENKO
was absent on a trip, “he would have been told about any such

~activity upon his return.

'NOSENKO said that he carefully directed the work of
GRYAZNOV and KOSOLAPOV during these two years, discussing
their cases with them, taking part in operational planning,
and approving or disapproving all operational measures.

L6 | /&
TS No. 197124

GUU1430
o Top Secret Copy




e

'-.fo% ob

- Top Secret

'~"'(AMERICANT,E,1\4_BASSY" "s'EcT:toN_*-_;_Tanua:ry ‘,196'0—Jahﬁary 1962) S e

When NOSENKO took ‘over respon81b111ty for operatlons; ‘
agalnst code clerks, le ‘read files on targets and agents,
"discussed the 51tuat10n with MALYUGIN, DEMKIN (the American
Embassy . Section case officer responsible for the residents

- of -America House), ‘GRYAZNOV, and. KOSOLAPOV, and reported ..
His flndlngs and recommendations to his" superlors, LOVSHUK

and KLYPIN. Several changes were made as a result,’ NOSENKO

. asserted.  In introducing a new program for the work of
- the section,. NOSENKO -suggested the use of thlrd-country

nationals (neither American nor Soviet citizens) for agent
work against code clerks; in line with this- suggestion, he

personally recruited a[Eyrlan military officer, Samih WEIS%]JKDggf

.. (see-p.181), 'and directed him against the America House.

. -After his first few v151ts,iWEIS§}was spec1f1cally targetted(jé.“al~
;1}aga1nst[éllltary code clefk Matthew .ZUJUS|. . Another such(ﬁaUé .

.. wagent directly . handled by NOSENKO was<the[?1nnlsh bu51ness @gUG v

man Johan.. PREISFREUNﬁL:who figured in the case of the

@nltary code clerk James STORSBERG] (see p.166). ‘NOSENKO
Talso suggested 1n1t1at1ng activity-dgainst code clerks prlor
.,5to their arrival in the ‘USSR and specifically proposed that
...operational measures bé undertaken or that operational

Q“ﬁ,pOSSLbllltles e studied in ‘Helsinki, the city through Which

*5Lmost of the Amerlcan code. clerks passed on- thelr way to
~Moscow.." . SRR o L , _

-

‘Anguestionedflater-onrindividual’cases,JNOSENKO

. retracted his .assertion that he read and

~. studied: all the files on individual American

. v code clerks, stating instead that he did not.
.- study any. although he "may have. skimmed some"
" _He'insisted, however, that in any - ‘event he .

-<.read all the .Gurrent incoming information on -

" code “clerks. recelved from mlcrophones, agents

.. @nd the like, and routed the reports to the

fg"case offlcer concerned R

e IR 60%431 |
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(AMERICAN EMBASSY SECTION - January 1960-January 1962)

GOLITSYN's Information About KGB Operations Against Embassy
Code Clerks in 1960-1961

The most significant collateral information about KGB
operations against American code clerks in this period, ‘
with which to compare NOSENKO's assertions [on this topic],
is that provided by GOLITSYN after his defection in 1961.

GOLITSYN identified KOSOLAPOV and GRYAZNOV by name and
from photograph as being two veteran KGB officers, personally .
known to him, who were in 1960 "working against code clerks
in the American Embassy in Moscow." With respect to the
priority attached to the recruitment of American code clerks

- in 1960, GOLITSYN commented in 1961 that: "The task of

strengthening of work against Americans had been a standing
requirement, both in the past.and most particularly [in
1960]}. This work was particularly intensified after the
appointment of SHELEPIN. to the KGB... In 1960, it was

‘recommended in thée KGB to intensify the work against the
. Americans at the Embassy in Moscow, and against American
colonies in other, countries... This question of intensifying

work against the Americans was up before the Collegium of
the KGB. Thereafter there was a directive from SHELEPIN
regarding the intensification of work against the American
cipher-clerks." -

- GOLITSYN said that NOSENKO was not assigned to the Fmbassy
Section in 1960-1961, since if he had been GOLITSYN would
have known about it. : ' S

-Preparing for his assignment to llelsinki, GOLITSYN. in
the spring of 1960 visited the Embassy Section and learned ' l
from GRYAZNOV that the latter had as an agent an Fmbassy
code clerk who was scheduled to be transferred to Helsinki.

)

mation and he was considered by the KGB to be a "real"

agent. GOLITSYN was told by GRYAZNOV that, if the code clerk's
transfer materialized, GOLITSYN might have him in Helsinki

as his agent. ]
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GOLITSYN also 1earned from GRYAZNOV in sprlng of 1960

;]that the Jlatter. had developed an operation against an

. Embassy mllltary code clerk ‘in which the KGB was. "99 per

wv'“'.cent sure that the target would ‘be recrulted

, _ GRYAZNOV 1nformed GOLITSYN in Aprll or May 1960 that an-
‘Amerlcan employee ‘of the' Embassy in Moscow, possibly:-a code
clerk, was either recruited or. prepared for recruitment on

- -the- ba51s of . homosexual compromise-beginning in 1959 and
Aconcludlng in 1960. The KGB had photographed the American

~in various homosexual acts but SHELEPIN, who had just become

. Chairman of the KGB, at the time was - stressing ideological"
rather than- blackmall recruitments.  -SHELEPIN said that the

1-§homosexual ‘blackmail was in- this instance  "too dirty", and .. .
"~ the KGB should find another basis for recruitment. SHELEPIN,‘

~did not exclude future use of. the photographs, which: the KGB

‘lc5would hold in reserve..,rqﬂr

'%-'Whlle on-a- temporary a551gnment to Helslnkl in. November*

. .1960, V. V.. KOSOLAPOV ' told GOLITSYN that he had come to -
V;fHelsmnkl 'in order to ‘accompany an” Embassy code clerk back -

to Moscow on the- train. KOSOLAPOV planned to stiike. up an

?l'acqualntance w1th the code clerk whlch he could contlnue T
' to develop in Moscow.:. In ‘September 1961 a friend of

;

};;KOSOLAPOV also visited Helsinki on: temporary duty.-. GOLITSYNl
“w'tried to get him-to. talk about KOSOLAPOV s ‘November traln

-*»foperatlon, but -KOSOLAPOV's: friend would not'discuss-the -

casé, GOLITSYN- reasoned that" there ‘would be no reluctance

F o to dlscuss ‘the case if ‘it had been unsuccessful, and that
gV,ftherefore KOSOLAPOV must have been successful in developlng
,‘yﬁ;the code clerk on the traln or: afterwards° o

used” in the successful recrultment of an Amerlcan employee

6 gl
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Comment:  Two of GOLITSYN's leads may refer to[gTORSBERé)C)&
K (O, and[GARLAND) (see below). The other ledds, more
than one of which may refer to the same ‘
individual, have not resulted in an identifica~
tion of any code clerk target of the KGB.

Operations Against Military Code Clerks

Comment: According to official U.S. Government records,
4 Service Attaches of the Embassy in Moscow as
.0f 1960 shared a single cryptographic center
and a single military code clerk (except when
two code clerks overlapped ‘during periods of
turnover). The military code clerk was respan-
sible‘for'enciphering and deciphering the
traffic of all three military services. In'
~‘practice, at least one other member of the
‘Service Attaches' offices. in Moscow held a.
cryptographic clearance:and was trained to
replace the-regular military code clerk when
the latter was absent. , :
~[§ames STORSBERG ‘was the only military codéC%/%f
- clerk]assigned to the Moscow Embassy from T '
, February 1960 to September 1961, when his o
(I, successor, [Matthew ZUJus], arrived. [STORSBERG] U(
himself arrived in Moscéw in January 1960 and
departed in November 1961. é%é ,
During the period of{g?ORSB_R;;s tour in
Moscow, back-up cryptographic dutes were per- ~
formed by the[ﬁilitary Communications“Officer,0§1>6
CNO-2 HURLEY). [HURLEY]performed these duties 74
on a number of occasions, including the night
of the KGB approach to[E?ORSBER@} and he could (b
be loosely termed a code clerk. (Although .

. NOSENKO has distinguished between (§TORSBERG'S Ué
function as "military code clerk" and(HURLEY]'s ()}
duties as "military code machine mechanic”,” he
considered both to be within the general category

164
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Comment._ (Contlnued) ‘ '

' cof: "military code clerks NOSENKO reported .
“that there was no KGB operatlon agalnst '

é[ﬁURLEf}) Addltlonally,{EURLEinerformed repair Oé

‘work ~on' the cryptographic ' machines and- dlrected

;“;fcertaln other ‘sensitive activities at the

%/~ “Embassy DbfHURLEY!.s' tour in Moscow began: shortly

vfﬁoé'before[§TORSBERg1s, in December 1959, and he -

'uﬁj'served there until June or July- 1962.v ’

7 The. only other person performing’ official

. “functions in .the military code room during the

- 71960-61 period wascﬂamengEYSERg who arrlved()%

~_ in Moscow. on 22 Decémber 1960 and was assigned -

. to the office of the Air Force Medical Officér.:

As ‘a concurrent ‘secondary a581gnment,ngYSEﬁ306

‘worked as’'a-clerk~typist in the. office of . the’

‘Air Attache’ From" February until mid-April "’

‘1961, as a collateral duty,[REYSERS|worked lnckg

~the joint- mllltary code room where ‘he was in

B tralnlng to serve-as back=up: cryptographer. L
“He was relieved of "this duty in April 1961 for =~
reasons of low aptitude and lack:'of interest; - |
Yin' June '1961 ‘he ‘was removed from: Moscow because"
of reported homosexual act1v1t1es. SO '

" S The” significance of (the" follow1ng cases,
‘particularly- that off§$ORSBBR§, is ‘the extentOé

st which: collateral information corroborates

or contradicts" NOSENKO's "c¢laims 'to have” been,j”
Deputy Chief of the Amerlcan Embassy Sectlon,

+to have: superv1sed all KGB- operations against:
Embassy code clerks, and to have certain know-“ - g
‘ledge that no Americans 'in the Embassy were . - = ..:
recruited between' "ANDREY" (Dayle SMITH) in o
1953 and NOSENKO S defectlon in: 1964

AAAAA eGOqugs,
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hY
Attempted Recruitment _qg_):gTORSBER(-;-](Jé
NOSENKO's Information-1962

NOSENKO first 'alluded to a KGB attempt to recruit an
unnamed American military code clerk during his initial
meeting with CIA in 1962 He ‘was describing a new technique
(which he later claimed to be his own idea) ‘introduced in

Beginning in'l960'the'KGB'instructed‘"third—national" agents
(Germans, Frenchmen;'and'Finns; for ‘example) to visit the
American Club on‘Kropotkinskaya'Naberezhnaya to cultivate
American enlisted men living there. (GOLITSYN learned of
one such agent of NOSENKO and the KGB concluded that GOLITSYN

“had reported the KGB practise to the Americans, because

foreigners no longer were pPermitted to enter the America
House billets freely for dances, movies, and the like at
the club there.) NOSENKO had recruited the "agent known to

. GOLITSYN in-order to develop an’American'milita:y code

Recruiting a military'code clerk from the Embassy was the

American Embassy Section's "number“one‘assignment", and for

4 year NOSENKO was involved in'an'operation'against such a

. target almost'tO'theiexclusion'of“all*other'duties.v The

case was considered to be the " "number one" case, and XGB

" GRIBANOV impatiently inquired'as to its progress. The target

&

was an American [Army sergéaht with about 20 years' service ()
who, the KGB lea¥ned, wanted O retire and take a. position

[Es a code clerk] with the State Department. For the purposeCMy_

of developing the target, NOSENKO recruited a foreigner who
visited the USSR frequently. The,"third-national“'agent was -

‘Placed in contact with the American, and they had several

drinking bouts together. After about two ‘months, NOSENKO

- instructed his agent to take the American to the agent's

hotel room and introduce him there to a KGB female agent.

| | 28R
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*Although ‘the" glrl and the Amerlcan were lntlmate, no photo- ,
 'graphs were taken, nor were photographs taken the next time
¢ .the agent provrded the American with a girl. 'On the third. .
. ’such occasion;: ‘however, the KGB- techn1c1ans did obtain pﬂn%< S
f“*lncrlmlnatlng photographs., The »foreign agent also’ involved . - -
- the American in: an illicit currency transaction in which -
" ‘the American’ contrlbuted %300 as:his share to finance "the" el
... purchase. and:subsequent sale’ of 'some. jewels. . The Amerlcan -
7+ was allowed to believe that he earned a $5, 000 proflt. the'
”ﬁjfmoney was. actually furnlshed by the KGB. o e

: After a’ year s development GRIBANOV decrded that a
- recruitment should be- -attempted, through another foreigner.:
. .The orlglnal foreign agent was- withdrawn from the. operatlon,'

~ ~ and ‘a KGB officer; ‘Nikolay Semenovich 'SKVORTSOV, was-

"1ntroduced to'the- American in the guise of ‘wealthy French |
;bu51nessman'“Marcel MICHAUD"" SKVORTSOV/MICHAUD met. and'
‘drank’with the American several times, “even at- America *_”
.House". "It was SKVORTSOV's estimate that the American was. -
Tvery. careful ~but that he mlght be.. susceptlble to recrultment R
‘while drunk.: After meetlng with the American-‘at the club in
Amerlca House ‘one evening,’ SKVORTSOV telephoned him. and _
1nv1ted5h1m to:"SKVORTSOV.' s “Hotel “room to- ‘meet "two. Dutch _=‘ B
girls".:-When he" ‘arrived, - SKVORTSOV - explained- that ‘the girls
had refused to come, but that" he ‘could ‘call another g1rl for
the American. ' The: ‘girl - {1dent1f1ed by NOSENKO 'in 1964 35"

Inga: VARLAMOVA] was'a KGB~ agent of “GRYAZNOV's who was used © -

for such- ‘operations; ‘and- she and’ the ‘American ‘were.’ 1nt1mate R

in SKVORTSOV'S hotelroom. “In-an’ adjacent roonm were - GRIBANOV,&

'NOSENKO," KOVSHUK, -and '’ another- KGB officer.  In another: .
adjacent room were" technicians ' of the- ‘Operaticnal: Technical -

Dlrectorate, ‘who" taped the - Amerlcan 8- conversatlons.);When~[

the American left SKVORTSOV's room" at ‘two o'clock  in  the -

morning; he was: "very tipsy™.: NOSENKO and another offlcer S

“iatercepted him' 1n the: ‘hallway . escorted hlm into the adjacentx

sroom, and ‘locked the. ‘door. - -NOSENKO hlmself sollc1ted the'ﬁ“ ’

%Amerlcan 5 collaboratlon with the" KGB" in” exchange for,

g$20 000: in cash- (which. ‘was offered’ in. two packages of - $10°

;. notes): and the’ promise of -additional ‘sums. . .When the- Amerlcan

. 'refused,- the KGB: officers disclosed. their - knowledge of his’

- Plan to transfer to the State - Department. - ‘They threatened.

" to inform the Embassy- that He.-had collaborated with the KGB,

n,ln whlch case he would get nelther the cash nor the jOb w1th

C1er o buomw
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the State Department. The American was adamant in his
refusal, although he was held in ‘the hotel room all night
long. At about six o'clock in the morning the KGB officers

received a telephoned'report'that'the'Embassy Marine guard

needed at the Embassy because an enciphered telegram had
arrived. The American was then released. -

The KGB "knew" that the American did not report the
recruitment attempt, Using that circumstance for blackmail
rather than the incriminating photograp